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Nagovor uprave

Energy for achievements
The GEN-I Group is the largest electricity
supplier in Slovenia and an important player
on the markets of South-East Europe. We
are aware that the energy for achievements
always lies in people, our employees. We
therefore strive for the highly systematic and
continuous development of our employees.
We believe that this is one of the key factors
for long-term and stable commercial success.
One of the many activities aimed at
stimulating outstanding achievements and
recognizing the performance of our employees
is the annual selection of “GEN-I-uses” of
the year. All employees submit nominations
for individuals or a group of individuals,
together with the relevant justification. A
three-member committee then selects award
recipients.
As a testament to the excellence of our
employees and as an incentive to keep
generating outstanding achievements in
the future, this year’s annual report presents
the 2012 “GEN-I-uses” of the year: those
individuals and groups of employees who
made a special contribution to the Group’s
commercial success last year.
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Letter from the Management
Board
The GEN-I Group in figures
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Net Profit
of Subsidiaries in 2012
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Robert Golob, PhD,
President of the Management Board

“The Group generated revenues
of EUR 1.5 billion in 2012.”

“The extraordinary response
of customers to GEN-I’s entry
to the natural gas market exceeded
our expectations.”
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1. Letter from the
Management Board
Dear Stakeholders and Partners,
The year 2012 was difficult and dynamic with many
twists and turns, but was also one of the most successful years ever for GEN-I. Behind us is a year in
which the situation on the international markets was
driven by extreme weather conditions, ranging from
extraordinarily low temperatures in February to a long
drought. In 2012, the governments of certain countries
intervened on the market with unilateral measures,
while the insolvency of individual countries reached its
peak. The increase in renewable energy sources in Germany as a result of the closure of nuclear power plants
in 2011 and regulatory measures in the countries of South Eastern Europe had a significant effect on operations. Developments on the electricity market were thus
exceptionally turbulent, while trading conditions were
considerably more difficult than in previous years.
At the same time, it was a year in which GEN-I once
again proved that it is at its best when conditions are
at their worst. In a period in which some competitors
vanished from the map, GEN-I actually continued to
strengthen its presence on traditional markets. GEN-I
thus recorded growth in every segment of operations:
the expansion of trading to new markets, the expansion of sales activities, growth in sales and growth in
the number of employees.

9

By entering an entirely new segment of the energy
market in June, the year 2012 will certainly be remembered as a milestone for GEN-I. We entered the
Slovenian natural gas market as the first independent
supplier of this energy source.
In maintaining awareness of our competitive advantages, we continued to make intensive investments in
development and the expansion of GEN-I’s capacities,
in terms of personnel, the organization and the infrastructure. We also significantly increased the dynamics of operations and the use of existing capacities,
both in trading and sales of electricity to end-customers.
Business processes were adapted throughout the year
to the difficult conditions. We once again proved that
our responsiveness and adaptability are two of our
outstanding qualities. We exploited our optional capacities, optimized processes relating to the supply of
electricity to end-customers, diversified the portfolio
of financing sources and, last but not least, surprised
the Slovenian market in 2012 with the introduction of
the Affordable Natural Gas brand. Through rapid and
timely measures, we responded to new challenges and
successfully concluded 2012 by increasing operating
revenues by 53% and ending the year with a net operating profit of EUR 8.2 million, 8% above the planned
amount.

“With a market share of 26.2%, we remain
the largest supplier of electricity to
end-customers in Slovenia.”
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Martin Novšak, MBA,
Vice President of the Management Board
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We sold a total of 25.3 TWh of electricity, an increase
of 47% on 2011. At the end of 2012, we were present
on nine European energy exchanges and on 18 wholesale energy markets. In December 2012, we entered
the Turkish wholesale electricity market through our
own subsidiary. Activities in 2012 strengthened our
position as one of the most respected participants on
the energy market of Central and South-East Europe,
while making us an increasingly progressive player on
the liquid markets of Western Europe.
We increased market shares in the sale of electricity to
end-customers in the business segment in Slovenia,
Croatia and Austria. In Slovenia, we sold 3.2 TWh of
electricity and increased our market share by more
than 10%, the aforementioned jump further confirming our position as the largest and most important
electricity supplier. The number of customers in the
household segment exceeded 80,000 in 2012, which
increased our market share by more than 100%. We
entered the household natural gas market in Slovenia
in September 2012, and by the end of the year had
received more than 20,000 requests to change the
natural gas supplier in the scope of the Affordable
Natural Gas brand.
The Management Board focused its strategic work on
the continued building of a contemporary corporate
structure at the Company, strengthened the area of
risk management and adopted guidelines for creating a corporate culture. Process management and
the adaptation of the organizational structure were
closely tied to the strategic Metis project, in the scope
of which we redesigned the employee remuneration
system, and began planning the career and personal
development of employees and creating a key competencies model. With the latter, we will clearly define
what the Company expects from its employees: the
desired behavioral pattern, conduct, focus and orientation. We are aware that constantly investing in our
employees gives us the highest added value, which is
continuously seen in the fact that we are one of the
most successful and recognized companies in Slovenia.
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We selected “GEN-I-uses” of the year for the first time
in 2012. The winners in the scope of the aforementioned project were held up as an example to all Group
employees and received a symbolic reward. We thus
stimulate employees to develop and promote the core
values of GEN-I, which are: respect, responsibility,
commitment, inclusion and flexibility.
No one knows what the future will bring for us. We do
know that we have demonstrated in the past that our
highly responsible and professional approach, linked
to our knowledge and understanding of energy markets, keeps us one step ahead of the competition at all
times. We trust our ability to recognize changes and
the commitment of employees, and we believe that
we will continue to grow together and achieve enviable operating results in the future, as well.
We believe that together we truly make an exceptional team, and that we can further build on our success
story, step by step, but steadfastly every day, and
compile it as an amazing mosaic of uniqueness and
success, both for ourselves and those around us.

Robert Golob, Ph.D.
President of the Management Board

Martin Novšak, MBA
Vice President of the Management Board
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2. Performance highlights
GEN-I, d.o.o.

Operating revenues
Operating profit or loss (EBIT)
Operating profit or loss before depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA)
Net profit or loss
Cash flow
Equity
Liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Number of employee as at 31 December
Quantity of electricity sold in TWh

Indicator/year

Self-financing ratio
Long-term financing ratio
Fixed asset investment ratio
Acid-test ratio
Quick ratio
Current ratio
Operating efficiency ratio
Net return on equity ratio
Return on revenue ratio

The GEN-I Group

Operating revenues
Operating profit or loss (EBIT)
Operating profit or loss before depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA)
Net profit or loss
Cash flow
Equity
Liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Number of employee as at 31 December
Quantity of electricity sold in TWh
Indicator/year

Self-financing ratio
Long-term financing ratio
Fixed asset investment ratio
Acid-test ratio
Quick ratio
Current ratio
Operating efficiency ratio
Net return on equity ratio
Return on revenue ratio
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2012

2011

Index 12/11

1,495,775,248
4,071,192

982,833,069
6,071,478

152.2
67.1

5,406,887

7,165,342

75.5

14,235,271
15,570,966
41,437,828
181,309,152
222,746,980
138
19.6

8,127,346
9,221,210
37,946,892
157,976,045
195,922,937
109
12.5

175.2
168.9
109.2
114.8
113.7
126.6
156.8

2012

2011

18.60%
21.46%
1.05%
10.48%
101.71%
123.38%
100.27%
43.70%
1.00%

19.37%
20.45%
1.02%
9.85%
105.41%
122.73%
100.62%
29.79%
0.93%

2012

2011

Index 12/11

1,552,577,905
8,176,625

1,012,210,309
19,212,856

153.4
42.6

9,539,816

20,327,302

46.9

8,203,526
9,566,717
46,641,851
181,628,777
228,270,628
152
25.3

14,035,289
15,149,735
49,371,554
169,164,961
218,536,515
121
17.2

58.4
63.1
94.5
107.4
104.5
125.6
147.9

2012

2011

20.43%
23.22%
1.11%
12.59%
104.76%
128.00%
100.53%
18.68%
0.62%

22.59%
23.89%
0.95%
12.24%
111.07%
129.78%
101.93%
42.77%
1.61%
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25,235,155
309,048
309,048
241,665
6,735,734
566,461
6,169,273
241,665

42,635,385
296,809
296,904
233,667
8,641,331
550,527
8,090,804
233,762

84,883,491
401,059
403,316
318,691
20,796,241
513,567
20,282,674
320,948

90,418,230
585,787
588,019
475,726
100 4,538,426
671,947
3,866,479
477,958

400,000

50

200,000

GEN-I d.o.o. Beograd 0

Revenues
EBIT
EBITDA
€ 8,000,000
Net profit or loss
Assets
6,000,000
Equity
Liabilities
4,000,000
Cash flow

2009

2009

86,746,853
5,817,861
5,822,759
5,477,376
19,854,993
6,216,136
13,638,857
5,482,274

2010

2010

2011

100,710,390
364,498
371,591
406,109
19,207,356
1,104,141
18,103,215
413,202

2011

2012

188,019,909
1,530,979
1,538,131
1,244,797
57,507,962
1,966,486
55,541,476
1,251,949

0

2012

221,431,054
1,773,055
1,780,350
300 1,189,982
31,213,940
1,864,298
200
29,349,642
1,197,277

2009

0

€ 8,000,000

GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k.

Revenues
6,000,000
EBIT
4,000,000
EBITDA
Net profit or loss2,000,000
Assets
0
Equity
Liabilities
- 2,000,000
Cash flow

2012

2009

2010

2011

2012

7,539,525
1,287,882
1,288,088
1,258,779
2,596,509
1,214,990
1,381,519
1,258,985

33,947,008
1,353,554
1,353,760
1,304,014
6,331,404
1,338,364
4,993,040
1,304,220

50,979,529
1,905,120
1,905,388
1,906,953
14,363,619
1,925,816
12,437,803
1,907,221

102,807,575
150 867,609
867,972
787,670
100
14,451,288
821,426
50 13,629,864
788,033

2009

2010

2011

2012

2009

2010

2011

0
-41,842
-41,842
-41,632
35,545
4,130
31,415
-41,632
2009

26,710,307
612,755
613,587
420,636
5,263,063
422,316
4,840,747
2010 421,468
2011

42,560,527
6,035,602
6,036,522
4,697,218
20,812,565
4,736,616
16,075,949
4,698,138
2012

0

in MIO €

Revenues
€ 300,000
EBIT
EBITDA
Net profit or loss 200,000
Assets
Equity
100,000
Liabilities
Cash flow

2011

100

2012

91,300,834
1,290,324
1,291,637
50
948,002
12,054,210
988,130
11,066,080
0
949,315
in MIO €

GEN-I DOOEL Skopje

2010

in MIO €

0

0

600,000
€ 600,000
800,000

100

400,000
400,000
600,000
800,000
€€ 600,000

50
50
100
60

200,000
400,000
200,000
600,000
400,000
0
0
200,000
400,000

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

200,000
0
200,000

2009

2010

2011

2012

€ 8,000,000
€ 8,000,000
0
6,000,000
€ 6,000,000
8,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
6,000,000
€ 2,000,000
8,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
4,000,000
6,000,000
0
1,000,000
0
2,000,000
4,000,000
500,000
0
€2,000,000
300,000
0
€ 300,000

100
2,000,000

100
100

€ 800,000
€ 800,000

0
-500,000
200,000
€ 300,000
200,000

50

20
0

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

0
100,000
0
€- 8,000,000
1,000,000
€ 8,000,000
6,000,000
0
- 2,000,000
6,000,000
€ 8,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
6,000,000
2,000,000
€ €8,000,000
600,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
0
6,000,000
0
400,000
2,000,000
- 2,000,000
4,000,000
- 2,000,000
0
200,000
2,000,000
- 2,000,000
0
0
- 2,000,000
-200,000

300
100
200
100
200
0
100
0
50

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

2009

2010

2011

2012

100
0
150
150

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

00
100
150
100
150
50
100
150
50

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

2009

2010

2011

2012

2009
2010

2010

2011

2012
2012

2011

100
050
100
0
50
0
50
100
100
0
0
100
50
50
100
300
50

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

2009

2010

2011

2012

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012
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300
0
0300

200
300
200

€ 100,000
300,000
200,000
€ 2,000,000
100,000
1,000,000
200,000
0
100,000
0

40
0
0
50

in MIO €
in MIO
in MIO € in MIO €in MIO
€ €

2012

in MIO €
in MIO
in MIO € in MIO €in MIO
€ €

2011

in MIO €
in MIO
in MIO € in MIO €in MIO
€ €

2010

EBITDA

Net operating profit

EBIT

Revenues

in MIO €
in MIO
in MIO € in MIO €in MIO
€ €

Revenues
EBIT
EBITDA
Net profit or loss
€ 800,000
Assets
Equity
600,000
Liabilities
Cash flow

2009

in MIO €

GEN-I Zagreb d.o.o.

200
0
0
50
100
0

00

2009

2010

2011

2012

2009

2010

2011

2012

49,484,409
423,276
423,518
50
378,462
50
100
100 5,196,668
50
889,755
4,306,913
0
378,704
0
100

50
50
0

2009 2010
2009
2009
2010

777,907
-8,137
-8,137
-5,715
1,328,401
495,855
832,546
2009
2009 -5,715

2010
2011

2011

26,478,590
398,145
398,276
269,371
7,026,886
754,867
2010 6,272,019
2011
2010 269,502
2011

2011
2012
2012

82,795,466
1,513,285
1,513,623
1,416,861
11,641,492
1,891,187
9,750,305
2012
1,417,199
2012

300
0
300
0

2009

2010

2011

2012

100
100
0
150
150

0
0
€ 200,000
300,000
200,000
GEN-I Sofia SpLLC

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

0
0
100
150
100

Revenues
€€ 200,000
300,000
100,000
300,000
EBIT
100,000
EBITDA
Net profit or loss 200,000
100,000
200,000
0
Assets
0
Equity
100,000
100,000
0
Liabilities
€ 8,000,000
Cash flow

€ 8,000,000
6,000,000
0
0
€ 6,000,000
8,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
6,000,000
2,000,000
€€ 8,000,000
8,000,000
2,000,000
GEN-I Athens SMLCC
4,000,000
0
6,000,000
Revenues
6,000,000
0
2,000,000
EBIT
- 2,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
- 2,000,000
EBITDA
0

Net profit or loss2,000,000
2,000,000
- 2,000,000
Assets
0
0
Equity
Liabilities
-- 2,000,000
2,000,000
Cash flow

14

2010

2009
2009

2010
2010

2009

2010

2009
2009

2009

5,291,263
133,940
2009
134,490
2009
99,164
1,840,387
2009
249,164
1,591,223
2009
200999,714

2010
2010

398,982
-27,868
-27,612
-27,868
2011
830,809
2011
70,644
760,165
2011
-27,612
2011
2011

2010

86,866,559
-43,285
2010
2011
-42,376
2010
2011
96,552
17,079,736
2010
2011
345,719
16,734,017
2010
2011
97,461
2010
2011

2011

34,652,272
899,677
900,444
899,677
2012
12,796,014
2012
784,647
12,011,367
2012
900,444
2012
2012

2011

121,640,569
393,923
2012
397,245
2012
257,518
23,518,539
2012
603,237
22,915,302
2012
260,840
2012

400,000
€ 600,000
400,000

40
60
40

400,000
€€ 600,000
600,000
200,000
200,000

40
60
60
20
20

400,000
400,000
200,000

200,000
200,000

2012

20079,267,724
300
200 398,346
398,668
200
300
100
320,718
300
100
6,322,832
921,542
200
200
100
0
5,401,290
0
321,040

0
2,000,000
2,000,000
€ 300,000
€ 300,000

60
60

2012

€ 2,000,000
€ 2,000,000
1,500,000
1,500,000
€ 2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
500,000
€€ 2,000,000
2,000,000
500,000
1,000,000
0
1,500,000
1,500,000
0
500,000
-500,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
-500,000
0
500,000
500,000
-500,000
0
€ 2,000,000
0
€ 2,000,000
-500,000
-500,000
1,000,000
€ 2,000,000
1,000,000

96,695,837
-1,506,110
-1,505,343
291,599
100
50
100
0
0 13,884,470
391,605
50
50 13,492,865
0
100 292,366

0
1,000,000
0
€€ 2,000,000
2,000,000
- 1,000,000
0
- 1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

0
0
100

400,000
-- 2,000,000
2,000,000
€ 600,000
400,000

150
50
100
150
50

100

50
50
100
100

2012

50
200,022,233
0
0
50
50
0

0
0

-63,846
-60,524
41,260
22,682,242
214,561
22,467,681
44,582

- 2,000,000
1,000,000
-- 2,000,000
0
0
- 2,000,000
600,000
-- €1,000,000
1,000,000
€ 600,000

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

2009

2010

2011

2012

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

20
0
20

100
100
0
0
100
50
50
100
100
50
0
0
50
50

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

2009

2010

2011

2012

150
150
0
0

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

150
100
100

0

150
150
100
50
50
100
0
100
50
0

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

2010

2011

2012

50
0
50
300
300

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

0
0
300
200
200

200,000
400,000
200,000
€€ 600,000
600,000
0
200,000
0
400,000
400,000
-200,000
0
-200,000
200,000
200,000

2009
2009

2010
2010

2011
2011

2012
2012

-200,000
0
0

2009

2010

2011

2012

2011
2011

2012
2012

-200,000
-200,000

40
40
0
20
0

inMIO
MIO€€ in MIO €
in MIO
€ €
in
in MIO

28,020,841
303,393
303,681
303,171
10,439,853
814,462
9,625,391
303,459
2012

€ 600,000
€ 600,000

inMIO
MIO€€ in MIO €
in MIO
€ €
in
in MIO

31,765,542
408,511
408,799
276,419
9,336,790
864,588
8,472,202
2010 276,707
2011

2012

300
300
200
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100

LEGEND
2009
2010
2009
2010
LEGEND
EBITDA
EBITDA
LEGEND
EBIT
EBIT
EBITDA
LEGEND
LEGEND
EBIT

Net operating profit
Net operating profit
Revenues
Revenues
Net operating profit

EBITDA
EBITDA
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Net operating
operating profit
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EBIT
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Revenues
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EBIT
4,000,000
EBITDA
6,000,000
4,000,000
€€ 8,000,000
Net profit or loss
8,000,000
2,000,000
Assets
4,000,000
2,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
Equity
0
Liabilities
2,000,000
0
4,000,000
4,000,000
Cash flow

17,906,755
75,990
76,261
76,876
6,716,358
588,168
6,128,190
2009 77,147
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100
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MIO€€ in MIO €
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€ €
in
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0
200,000
200,000
€ 8,000,000
€ 8,000,000
GEN-I Bucharest s.r.l.00
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EBITDA
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200,000
600,000
600,000
Liabilities
0
Cash flow
200,000

2009
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€ 800,000

GEN-I d.o.o. Sarajevo
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GEN-I Budapest Kft.

Revenues
EBIT
EBITDA
Net profit or loss
Assets
Equity
Liabilities
Cash flow

GEN-I Vienna GmbH

Revenues
EBIT
EBITDA
Net profit or loss
Assets
Equity
Liabilities
Cash flow

GEN-I Milano S.r.l.

Revenues
EBIT
EBITDA
Net profit or loss
Assets
Equity
Liabilities
Cash flow

2009

2010

2011

2012

129,039,215
1,707,133
1,707,408
1,069,764
20,164,552
2,377,938
17,786,614
1,070,039

110,749,491
49,478
49,478
-76,423
22,087,703
2,301,513
19,786,190
-76,423

8,246,791
-23,435
-19,685
-116,336
1,637,722
285,177
1,352,545
-112,586

1,594,871
94,226
97,436
110,736
862,809
385,681
477,128
113,946

2010

2011

2012

0
-22,471
-22,032
-22,443
40,396
27,557
12,839
-22,004

9,292,282
48,967
50,488
39,683
2,645,252
67,240
2,578,012
41,204

12,613,321
210,124
211,645
155,374
1,376,691
205,374
1,171,317
156,895

2010

2011

2012

512
-16,035
-16,035
-16,035
112,601
83,965
28,636
-16,035

11,309,144
-283,081
-283,081
-283,779
3,215,564
-199,814
3,415,378
-283,779

164,427
124,129
124,129
122,037
561,832
205,073
356,759
122,037

GEN-I Istanbul

2012

Revenues
EBIT
EBITDA
Net profit or loss
Assets
Equity
Liabilities
Cash flow

864,275
-22,568
-15,657
-19,854
1,883,584
829,717
1,053,867
-12,943
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Basic information and regional
presence
Globally established business
model of the GEN-I Group
Corporate governance

2012: 25.3 TWh

2011: 17.2 TWh

2010: 12.8 TWh

2009: 8.2 TWh

2008: 5.0 TWh

47.1 %

Electricity sales volumes
in the GEN-I Group

Miruna Keuc

2012 GEN-I-us of the year for
work in accordance with the
values of the GEN-I Group.
Miruna is the Head of Data
Management Department Trading.
Miruna is a friendly,
conscientious and responsible
employee, with a constant
smile on her face. In addition
to the aforementioned traits,
her co-workers also value her
commitment and readiness to
acquire new knowledge in less
known areas, and to use that
knowledge to her advantage
in her everyday work. Miruna
is distinguished by her
decisiveness, the speed with
which she resolves operational
problems, and by her vigilant
monitoring and analysis of daily
transactions and the accuracy
of trading results. Her ability
to communicate, accuracy and
logistical skills are qualities
that help her in the preparation
of all necessary documentation
linked to reporting and customs
clearance procedures, which are
carried out in accordance with
the local regulatory rules of every
country in which the GEN-I Group
operates.
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David Danev

2012 GEN-I-us of the year for
work in accordance with the
values of the GEN-I Group.
David is an Treasury Analyst.
David is particularly
distinguished in his work by
his high level of reliability, his
highly developed analytical skills
and his willingness to share his
expertise with co-workers. He
is an important member of the
treasury team, ready to jump in
and help at a moment’s notice,
a trait that is especially valued
by his closest co-workers. David
approaches project work with
a high level of earnestness,
prudence and focus. In 2012,
he assumed sole responsibility
for managing and forecasting
the liquidity of the entire GEN-I
Group, and helped set up the
associated system. David has
particularly proven himself in the
organization and coordination of
the Treasury Department.
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3. Basic information and regional presence

Presence of the GEN-I Group on wholesale and retail electricity market

The GEN-I Group is present on the following markets
through its own subsidiaries: Austria, Italy, Germany,
Hungary, Romania, Bulgaria, Serbia, Bosnia and
Herzegovina, Croatia, Montenegro, Macedonia,
Kosovo, Albania, Greece and Turkey. Subsidiaries
of the GEN-I Group are fully owned by the parent
company GEN-I, d.o.o., with the exception of the
Turkish subsidiary in which GEN-I, d.o.o. holds a 99%
ownership stake (the remaining 1% is also indirectly
held by GEN-I, d.o.o.).
The GEN-I Group is based at the registered office of
the parent company, whose full company name is:
GEN-I, trgovanje in prodaja električne energije, d.o.o.
Abbreviated company name: GEN-I, d.o.o.
Registered office: Vrbina 17, SI-8270 Krško, Slovenia
Core activities: Electricity trading and supply of
electricity and natural gas to end-customers
Share capital of the parent company:
EUR 15,877,610.00
Ownership structure: 50% GEN energija, d.o.o., and
50% IG energetski sistemi, d.o.o.
Company size: Large company
Management model: Single-tier
Registration number: 1587714
Tax number: 71345442
VAT ID No.: SI71345442
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Presence of the GEN-I Group on wholesale electricity market

Court register entry number: 1/04524/00; srg
2011/27433; registered at the District Court of Krško
Date of last court register entry: 13 July 2011
The parent company is managed by a four-member
management board.
President of the Management Board: Robert Golob, PhD
Vice President of the Management Board: Martin
Novšak, MBA
Member of the Management Board: Igor Koprivnikar, PhD
Member of the Management Board: Andrej Šajn, MSc
The Group’s subsidiaries are managed by member
of the Management Board Igor Koprivnikar, PhD and
executive sales director Dejan Paravan, PhD. Details of
their specific roles in individual Group companies can
be found in the chapter on corporate governance.
E-mail: info@gen-i.si; pocenielektrika@gen-i.si
Website: http://www.gen-i.eu; http://www.
pocenielektrika.si
The Group’s subsidiaries have available all the
infrastructure needed to trade electricity and natural
gas products. On four markets, subsidiaries also have
the infrastructure required for electricity sales, and
they supply electricity to large business customers. In
Slovenia, the GEN-I Group also supplies electricity to
customers in the household segment.

ANNUAL BUSINESS REPORT OF THE GEN-I GROUP AND GEN-I, D.O.O. FOR THE 2012 BUSINESS YEAR
Globally established business model of the GEN-I Group

4. Globally established business model
of the GEN-I Group
4.1. The Group’s mission and goals
The GEN-I Group ambitiously entered the energy
market with a commitment to supply our customers
affordable electricity and natural gas. We have gained
the trust of nearly 100,000 end-customers in Slovenia through our reliable supply of products. Our core
mission is precisely this reliable supply which, in the
context of competitive commercial conditions and a
high level of service, creates a strong brand and customer loyalty. We work towards this mission by ensuring
cost-efficient electricity trading, managing risks and
achieving the long-term stable growth of the Group.
Our professional and innovative approach helps us

electricity from producers, and
• the sale of natural gas to end-customers.
Our unique business model is characterized by a conservative business policy regarding electricity trading,
with the careful selection of partners, the constant
monitoring of exposure, the consistent management
of the portfolio and the hedging of open positions, the
segregation of individual portfolios, daily VaR (Value
at Risk) limits and the limiting of potential portfolio
losses. Electricity sales to end-customers are distinguished by innovation and flexibility. We supply our
customers more than one product (e.g. electricity
and natural gas). We facilitate access to the wholesale market by large business customers and provide

We seize new opportunities by adapting quickly to
market conditions and by applying our expertise.

market electricity efficiently by offering production sources competitive purchasing prices, and by providing
end-customers with the comprehensive, high-quality
supply of services and the management of costs associated with energy purchases. By constantly improving
and combining our competitive advantages, we achieve the appropriate economies of scale, thereby improving the reliability of supply even further.
Another key element of our processes is constant communication with all stakeholders and business partners
at annual meetings, conferences and through the media.
Our values include: respect, responsibility, commitment, inclusion and flexibility. We are aware of
the risks that arise in our operations and take full
responsibility for them. We respect the needs of our
employees, business partners and customers. We
adapt to the current situation, strive for efficiency at
all levels of the GEN-I Group’s operations and promote
commitment.

4.2. Unique business model
The GEN-I Group is involved in the following activities
on the energy market:
• electricity and natural gas trading,
• electricity sales to end-customers and purchase of
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various energy products tailored to partners’ needs.
We ensure flexible contractual relationships for all
customers, and make various models and conditions
for the purchase of electricity available to electricity
producers.
Electricity and natural gas are sold via a single sales infrastructure, enabling us to achieve synergistic effects
for the customers of a specific energy product, in
particular for those customers who are supplied both
electricity and natural gas. Trading and sales activities
are carried out by various profit centers and within separate portfolios that are linked on the basis of a model of market prices. This approach enables the Group
to easily evaluate the performance of individual units.
Purchase and sales activities within the Group are centered on energy trading. The combination of purchase
and sales activities creates synergistic effects, as it
increases the efficiency of trading and the reliability of
supply of energy products, while reducing risks.

4.3. The Group’s competitive advantages
Great flexibility and diversity of operations. We have
added the trading and sale of natural gas to our ambitiously conceived electricity trading and sales activities. Through the diversification of the energy product
portfolio and our global presence on purchase and
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sales markets, we have further increased our flexibility
and possibilities to respond rapidly to changing market conditions.
Appropriate risk management. The management
strategy for our global portfolio is implemented at
the parent company. Our local presence on individual
markets enables us to understand local specifics, and
to react quickly and flexibly to market and regulatory
changes. The Group’s centralized organizational structure is reflected in communication and information
links with all markets. This allows the Group to respond quickly, make a quality assessment of the situation on markets and adapt local activities in real time,
thereby directly mitigating operational risks.
Focus on customers. The strength of our sales team
lies in a combination of experience and youth, maturity and flexibility: we know how to listen to the needs
of customers and offer them innovative solutions.
Independent brands with their own pricing policy. We
began supplying electricity to household customers
in Slovenia in 2009 under the Affordable Electricity
brand, with the main goals of reliable supply and an

vices. The appropriate internal organization and the
excellence of our workforce will help us maintain a
high level of responsiveness and enable us to seize
market opportunities, implement innovative projects
and support business partnerships that bring mutual
benefits.

4.5. New regulations and new market
challenges
Announced changes to regulatory frameworks will
require the active monitoring of regulations in the
future and the implementation of legally compliant
processes. The introduction of the European REMIT
and EMIR directives and others will result in an increase in reporting requirements. Only appropriately
implemented, efficient and automated processes will
facilitate the continuity of operations, while greater
focus will be placed on the compliance of operations.
We will continue to enter new natural gas and electricity markets, and expand the sales network for both
energy products on the retail market.

A centralized organization and open communication
are the basis for successful risk management.

affordable price. We took the same steps with the
Affordable Natural Gas brand in September 2012,
when we began supplying household customers with
natural gas.

4.4. Stable and moderate growth in the
future
By focusing on the optimization of internal processes
and the consolidation of purchase and sales processes
for both energy products, we will maintain a vital structure and cost-efficiency. By expanding the Group’s
activities to a new energy product, we are exploiting
synergistic effects in processes, the infrastructure and
purchase and sales activities. We therefore forecast
moderate growth in the future, while our priorities
will be focused even more on risk management and
the constant improvement of the quality of our ser-
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5. Corporate governance
Corporate governance at GEN-I, d.o.o. is in line with
the rules of single-tier management and takes into
account the provisions of the Shareholders Agreement
concluded between its shareholders GEN Energija,
d.o.o. and Istrabenz Gorenje, d.o.o. in 2006 (called IG
energetski sistemi since 2011 and owned by Petrol,
d.d.), as well as the basic business policy for the period
from 2007 to 2016.
The Management Board comprises the following
members, with a term from 2011 to 2016:
• Robert Golob, PhD, President of the Management
Board
• Martin Novšak, MBA, Vice President of the Management Board

• Igor Koprivnikar, PhD, Member of the Management
Board
• Andrej Šajn, MSc, Member of the Management Board
The Group’s executive team includes managers and
experts with many years of experience in the energy sector. Individual members are appointed to the
Management Board by the general meeting of shareholders at the proposal of shareholders. Each member
of the Management Board is considered equal in the
decision-making process, and has one vote. A decision
of the Management Board is deemed valid if the majority of members in attendance vote for it.

Petrol d.d. Ljubljana

GEN energija d.o.o.

IG energetski sistemi d.o.o.

50%

50%

100%

GEN-I, d.o.o.

100%
GEN-I Budapest Kft
Hungary

GEN-I d.o.o. Sarajevo
Bosnia and Hercegovina

GEN-I Zagreb d.o.o.
Croatia

GEN-I Athens SMLCC
Greece

GEN-I DOOEL Skopje
Macedonia

GEN-I d.o.o.Beograd
Serbia

GEN-I Bucharest s.r.l.
Romania

GEN-I Sofia SpLLC
Bulgaria

GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k.
Albania

GEN-I Milano S.r.l.
Italy

GEN-I Vienna GmbH
Austria

GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k.
Kosovo Branch

GEN-I d.o.o. representative
office in Bulgaria

GEN-I d.o.o. representative
office in Romania

GEN-I Istambul
Turkey
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Dr. Robert Golob,
President of the Management Board

Martin Novšak, MBA,			
Vice President of the Management Board

5.1. Managing GEN-I, d.o.o.

Technical Faculty of the University of Maribor with a
major in electrical engineering and industrial electronics. He began working at the Krško Nuclear Power Plant
immediately after completing his studies and served
as a control room operator and line manager, while
some of his duties involved overseeing the organization
of engineering services. In 1992 he completed an MBA
program at the Executive Management Development
Center in Brdo. In close collaboration with his colleagues
at the Krško Nuclear Power Plant, he completed several
important projects, including the modernization of the
plant, replacement of critical equipment, the creation of
a corporate company image, and a number of other improvements, modifications and organizational upgrades.
In July 2005, he accepted his first five-year term as general manager of GEN energija, d.o.o., and was re-elected
for another five-year term in the same position in July
2010. In 2011, he started his second five-year term as Vice
President of the Management Board of GEN-I, d.o.o.

Robert Golob, PhD,
President of the Management Board
One of the leading experts on energy matters in Slovenia, he completed his undergraduate education at the
Faculty of Electrical Engineering in 1989, his master’s
degree three years later, and his doctoral education in
1994. His areas of expertise include the functioning and
deregulation of the electricity system, and the restructuring of the energy industry and electricity markets.
After receiving his doctoral degree, he was awarded a
Fulbright grant for a visiting position at the Georgia
Institute of Technology in Atlanta. In 1997, he became
an assistant professor at the Faculty of Electrical Engineering of the University of Ljubljana. In 1998, he was
appointed head of a negotiation team working on the
EU’s energy policy. From 1999 to 2002, he was State
Secretary for Energy Matters and helped draft several
important energy acts. He has written numerous publications and papers on markets, the optimization of
energy sources and electricity system planning. He has
also managed several basic research and industry-applicable projects for the Slovenian energy sector. In 2002,
he founded and became the general manager of Istrabenz Gorenje (now IG energetski sistemi). Mr. Golob is
an associate professor at the Faculty of Electrical Engineering at the University of Ljubljana. In 2011, he started
a new five-year term as President of the Management
Board of GEN-I, a position he has held since 2006.
Martin Novšak, MBA,
Vice President of the Management Board
An established expert on the Slovenian electricity industry and its production capacities, and a long-time
leading professional at the Krško Nuclear Power Plant,
he completed his undergraduate studies in 1982 at the
24

Igor Koprivnikar, PhD,
Member of the Management Board
An expert with international experience and expertise
in different business areas associated with electricity
trading and market liberalization processes in Central
and South Eastern Europe, he graduated from the Faculty
of Natural Sciences of the Technical University of Graz,
Austria in 1999, and holds a doctorate in nuclear physics
from the Institute for Theoretical Physics of the Technical
University of Graz. Since completing his studies, he has
cooperated with a number of scientific institutes around
the world. From 2002 to 2004, he was responsible for the
development of the EXAA energy exchange in Austria.
He started working for Istrabenz-Gorenje, d.o.o. (GEN-I's
predecessor) in 2004 when it was first founded. He laid
the foundations of the business model for international
and cross-border electricity trading that is still used
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Dr. Igor Koprivnikar,
Member of the Management Board

Mag. Andrej Šajn,
Member of the Management Board

today across the GEN-I Group. From 2004 to 2005, he
was a member of the management board at Austrian
Power Vertriebs GmbH in Vienna. As member of GEN-I,
d.o.o.'s Management Board responsible for trading, he
is in charge of implementing business strategies in the
electricity trading segment in Slovenia and abroad, and
is responsible for the Group’s finance and accounting
function. He is the managing director of nine of the
Group’s foreign subsidiaries.

5.2. Management of Group companies

Andrej Šajn, MSc,
Member of the Management Board
The initiator of many new solutions and the manager
of development projects mainly associated with information technologies for electricity sales and trading,
he began his career in 2001 as an assistant in the laboratory for energy strategies of the Faculty of Electrical
Engineering at the University of Ljubljana, where he
completed his master’s degree in electricity production
optimization in 2004. That same year, he started working for Istrabenz energetski sistemi, d.o.o., taking on
different roles at companies within the business group.
His areas of expertise include information technology
and the management of pilot development projects,
or so-called internal incubators. From 2007 onwards,
he worked as an executive director in research and
development and information technology at Istrabenz
Gorenje, d.o.o., while acting as a coordinator of business
information technology at GEN-I, trgovanje in prodaja električne energije, d.o.o., where he was in charge
of preparations for GEN-I's entry into the household
customer electricity segment in 2008 and in charge of
preparations for GEN-I’s entry into the household customer natural gas segment in 2012. He is the head of
the IT department and the operational side of natural
gas sales. He began his five-year term as member of the
Management Board of GEN-I in November 2011.
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In accordance with the principles of centralized
strategic management, the management functions
at individual subsidiaries within the GEN-I Group are
divided between Igor Koprivnikar, member of the
Management Board responsible for electricity trading,
and Dejan Paravan, executive sales director at the
parent company GEN-I, d.o.o., as follows:
• Igor Koprivnikar is the manger of: GEN-I d.o.o.
Belgrade, Serbia, GEN-I Zagreb d.o.o, Croatia, GEN-I
Budapest Kft., Hungary, GEN-I DOOEL Skopje,
Macedonia, GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k., Albania, GEN-I
d.o.o. Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina, GEN-I
Athens SMLLC, Greece, GEN-I Sofia – Electricity
Trading and Sales SpLLC, Bulgaria and S.C. GEN-I
Bucharest – Electricity Trading and Sales S.R.L.,
Romania.
• Dejan Paravan is the manager of: GEN-I Zagreb
d.o.o., Croatia, GEN-I Vienna GmbH, Austria and
GEN-I Milano S.r.l., Italy.

dr. Dejan Paravan,
executive sales director at the parent company

Operations of the GEN-I
Group in 2012
Financial strength
and cash flow
Risk management
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80,081

37,215

14,855
8,942
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Growth in the number
of household electricity
customers from 2009
to 2012

2012

2011

2010

2009

april 09

1,948

Predrag Savić

2012 GEN-I-us of the year for work in accordance
with the values of the GEN-I Group.
Predrag is the Head of regional origination.
Predrag is an exceptionally ambitious, well-organized and committed member
of the GEN-I team. His co-workers say he is committed to the company, heart and
soul. Predrag is also highly valued because his co-workers can rely on him at
all times, without exception. He is an expert with exceptional knowledge of the
specifics of trading in the countries of South-East Europe. Predrag established
uniform work standards for regional representative and the GEN-I Group in the
area of electricity trading on all the markets of South-East Europe. This was an
exceptional challenge given the cultural diversity and fragmented regulatory
frameworks of regional markets. Thanks to Predrag, processes flow smoothly
between the numerous departments of the trading sector and the aforementioned
regional representatives operating in local environments. In particular, those
processes are constantly developed, updated and adapted to business needs, and
contribute significantly to the excellence of our operations.
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Manca Konjar

2012 GEN-I-us of the year for
work in accordance with the
values of the GEN-I Group.
Manca is Head of the Legal
Department - Sales.
Manca’s co-workers describe her
as a competent employee, who
is an extraordinarily incisive,
dedicated, decisive and effective
leader. Her work is distinguished
by an exceptionally high level
of accuracy and technical
expertise in the field of energy
and consumer law. Manca
knows how to approach and
clearly present demanding and
contextually complex areas to
vastly different audiences. She
shares her knowledge with coworkers and is an indispensable
member of the sales team. Manca
contributed a great deal to the
Affordable Natural Gas project,
and organized numerous key
processes in the supply of natural
gas and electricity in Slovenia
and on neighboring markets.
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6. Operations of the GEN-I Group in 2012
6.1. Global presence of GEN-I on the electricity and natural gas markets
Through entry on the natural gas market and the continued development of operations on electricity markets,
the Group’s vital, flexible and efficient infrastructure is
becoming one of the key competitive advantages of a
forward-looking energy trader and supplier of energy to
end-customers. As the main pillar of that infrastructure,
professional and experienced employees represent a
competitive advantage which, in the context of effective
IT support and an extensive international trading infrastructure, is seen in rapid responses to market changes
and the exploitation of business opportunities. Natural
gas and electricity are traded on organized markets via
trading platforms and bilateral contractual relationships,
through which GEN-I ensures the price optimization of
its global portfolio thanks to various products in both
short- and long-term exchange trading and bilateral
trading. Through both physical and financial forward
contracts, GEN-I offers its customers the optimal price

Presence on wholesale
electricity markets

Presence on wholesale and retail electricity markets

ities on the wholesale market. Those activities are
carried out centrally and coordinated through the
parent company and its subsidiaries. To that end, the
extensive trading infrastructure and its close links to

The GEN-I Group was present on 18 wholesale and four
retail energy markets at the end of 2012.

local markets constantly ensure an excellent basis for
the development of local purchase and sales activities,
and supply to end-customers on the retail market. In
2012, GEN-I was active on three foreign retail markets
In 2012, the maturity of electricity markets, the deep(Croatia, Austria and Italy). On the Slovenian market,
ening of problems in the European economy and the
GEN-I supplies electricity and natural gas to all customimpact of growth in the production of electricity from
er segments on the retail market, and facilitates access
renewable energy sources were the main external
to the wholesale market by large business customers
factors that affected the situation on markets and the
Group’s operations, and demanded innovative respons- through a selection of energy products tailored to the
es to changes. By expanding to new markets on the bor- needs of partners. It also ensures flexible contractual
ders of Europe, the Group increased its opportunities to relationships and various models and conditions for the
purchase of electricity from small producers (i.e. from
optimize purchasing channels in the management of
the global portfolio, and exploited market opportunities renewable energy sources and high-efficiency cogeneration plants).
through an advanced analysis of markets.
and the minimization of risks arising from market uncertainties associated with energy products.

The GEN-I Group constantly strives for the right balance
between global trading principles and local sales approaches that are supplemented by a fresh, innovative
and partnership-based approach, which represents
the basis for high-quality and reliable operations on
wholesale and retail energy markets. The synergistic
effects of GEN-I’s global operations facilitate stability in
the generation of added value in the scope of its activ30

The use of natural gas has declined significantly due to
the contraction of economic activity in European countries since 2009, while existing traders were obliged to
receive natural gas quantities on the basis of long-term
contracts. The trend in prices turned downward in the
context of changing market conditions, where excess
quantities of long-term natural gas purchases, linked
in terms of price to oil and refined petroleum products,
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shifted to organized markets. Excess demand caused
prices on organized markets to drop below the prices in
long-term contracts linked to the price of oil. This enabled active traders to purchase less expensive natural
gas and attracted new traders, resulting in an increase
in competition.
The natural gas market in Slovenia began to take off in
2012, with the establishment of market mechanisms
and a reduction in the impact of long-term contracts
linked to oil. With the establishment of virtual trading
hubs and an increase in the associated liquidity, natural
gas trading is approaching the level of electricity trading. The transparency of prices and above all the development of short-term trading, which is closer to the

Another important factor in the formation of electricity
prices is electricity consumption. Even smaller changes
in electricity consumption volumes due to changes in
economic activity can have a significant effect on electricity prices.
In difficult economic conditions, the risk of unexpected price fluctuations due to regulatory risks is higher.
Governments often attempt to improve their balance
of payments by introducing new taxes or measures to
help protect the local market. Legislative changes can
also be the result of efforts to improve the reliability of
production and reduce emissions of greenhouse gases.
Short-term changes in electricity prices are strongly

GEN-I is the largest supplier of electricity, and became the
second largest supplier of natural gas in Slovenia already in
its first year of operations in the aforementioned segment.
day of supply, provide active wholesale traders more
opportunities, and thus the optimization of their portfolios and better conditions for their end-customers. By
entering the natural gas market in Slovenia, GEN-I has
taken the first step to trading natural gas. In early 2013,
the Group plans to expand to neighboring markets
through the expansion of the global portfolio and the
optimization of purchasing channels.

linked to weather conditions. Hydrologic conditions,
wind force and the number of sunny days have a direct
effect on electricity production, while temperature
changes affect both the production and the consumption of electricity. Changing weather conditions have
an important seasonal effect on electricity prices, as the
growing proportion of electricity produced from renewable sources has resulted in a stronger correlation
between weather conditions and electricity prices.

6.2. Factors influencing market prices

6.3. Market conditions in 2012

The market prices of electricity are most strongly affected by the price of resources used in its production,
namely coal, gas, oil and carbon credits (introduced as
part of the European emission trading scheme) and the
availability of sources (hydrological and other weather
conditions). The dollar to euro ratio (USD/EUR) is also
important because trading in coal and oil is conducted in USD, while the prices of electricity on all of the
Group’s markets are set in EUR.

Following the events in Fukushima in 2011, the trend of
rising production from renewable sources continued in
2012. On the other hand, electricity consumption was
down due to the continuing fall in economic growth.
Energy from renewable sources and from coal-powered
plants compensated for the drop in production sources
as a result of the closure of nearly half of all nuclear
power plants in Germany.
Production from renewable sources and low consumption dictated lower electricity prices in 2012.

The effect of movement in oil prices has diminished
in recent years on the majority of markets (with the
exception of the Italian market), although some gas
supply contracts are still tied to the price of oil. Thus oil,
as the most heavily traded energy product, continues to
have an indirect effect on electricity prices, as it also has
an important psychological effect on the price of other
energy products.
31

The supply of electricity in Central Europe was characterized in 2012 by growth in electricity from renewable
sources and relatively favorable energy prices. On the
benchmark electricity market in Germany, power generated by wind and primarily solar power plants was up
by nearly 9.3 TW in 2012 relative to 2011, and up by 13.7
TW in the wider Western European region.
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The price of coal fell throughout 2012 by an average of
EUR 14/t compared with 2011. This contributed to an increase in electricity production from coal. The increased
use of coal resulted in several increases in the price of
carbon credits during the year. Nevertheless, the aforementioned price fluctuated between EUR 6/tCO2 and
EUR 9/tCO2, well below the value from 2011, but began
to fall sharply at the end of the year.
Rising oil prices in the first quarter affected the prices
of daily and primarily forward contracts for electricity.
Euro oil prices were up sharply in the first quarter due
to the EU’s decision to prohibit the import of oil from
Iran at the end of January, and owing to the fall in the
value of the euro due to the debt crisis in Europe. Prices
fell significantly in the second quarter primarily due
to high oil inventories and the expected slowdown in
economic growth. Prices were up again slightly in the
third quarter and then stabilized for the remainder of
the year at USD 105/barrel.
Natural gas prices rose sharply on the daily market in
February (from EUR 22/MWh to nearly EUR 40/MWh)
due to fears of difficulties in gas supply on account of
above-average cold weather. Natural gas prices fell
back to almost the level before the sharp jump when
the extraordinary winter conditions subsided. Natural
gas prices were thus relatively stable for the majority of
the year on both the daily and forward markets, ranging
between EUR 24/MWh and EUR 27/MWh.
On the demand side, a stagnation or drop in electricity
consumption was recorded in 2012 relative to the previous year owing to the drop in economic growth and
industrial production.
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Affordable Natural Gas project

Adrijana Germovšek, Robert Vilhar, Nuša Omerzu Korene,
Kristina Dakskobler, Majda Volk, Manca Konjar, Ana Černe
2012 GEN-I-us of the year for exceptional achievements and work in
accordance with the values of the GEN-I Group.
The individuals that comprised the Affordable Natural Gas project once again
proved that the whole is greater than the sum of its parts. With exceptional
courage, effort and dedication, and excellent interpersonal communication and
coordination, the team exceeded all expectations and created an outstanding
story in an incredibly short period of time. Only such exceptional teams of
focused individuals can ensure that GEN-I remains one step ahead of the
competition at all times.
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By December 31, 2012, we had concluded contracts on the
supply of natural gas amounting to annual consumption
of 810 GWh (580 GWh for business customers and 230
GWh for households). The Group’s market share in the
B2B segment was 8% and 19% in the B2C segment. In
the scope of the Affordable Natural Gas brand, GEN-I
set a world record in terms of the number of customers
who switched suppliers on the natural gas or electricity
market in a specific country and a specific period, with a
market share of close to 10% achieved in just two weeks.
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7. Financial strength and cash flow
The GEN-I Group ended 2012 in a good financial position: with sophisticated risk management mechanisms
and a trusted and effective business model, the Group
continues to record growth in revenues and total assets. Through the centralized management of cash
flows, and the diversification of the credit portfolio and
guarantee potential, the Group maintains financially
sound and stable operations with a stable cash flow.
The GEN-I Group’s business model, which is based on

of credit lines with the aim of increasing guarantee
potential while lowering finance costs. The issue was
successfully completed in January 2013.
Our strategy remains ensuring stable sources of financing and the constant optimization of the portfolio with
the goal of ensuring the latter’s robustness in the uncertain banking environment. With the aim of lowering
risks as the result of developments on a specific market,
the Group expanded cooperation with foreign banks

On May 28, 2012, Bonitetna hiša I, d.o.o., Ljubljana, Dun
& Bradstreet Slovenija assigned the GEN-I Group a credit
rating of 5A2 (with 5A1 being the highest possible rating).
a low level of short-term and medium-term liabilities
to banks while maintaining the existing level of selffinancing, has proven to be one of the key advantages
of maintaining stable operations in the context of the
further tightening of operating conditions as a result of
the deteriorating credit ratings of banks and Slovenia.
A high credit rating, stable financial statements, and
the moderate and profitable growth of the Company
are strengths that we have exploited in the search for
the optimal diversification of the portfolio of short-term
sources. We use those sources primarily to bridge gaps
that arise due to the mismatched maturities of operating receivables and liabilities from contractual provisions on the wholesale and retail markets, and to provide
the requisite deposits requested by clearing houses and
other elements of the infrastructure. Those deposits
form the basis for the uninterrupted and effective implementation of business activities in the wider international environment.
In 2012, we continued to secure the appropriate liquid sources in the form of short-term loans to finance
current assets. We have, however, begun to gradually
restructure liabilities, both in terms of maturity and
source of financing, with the aim of ensuring diversification. We succeed in increasing the average maturity
of financing sources by close to 12 months, as we replaced the majority of 6-month loans with 12- and in part
with 18-month loans. Despite the difficult conditions on
the banking market, the GEN-I Group successfully fulfilled all financial commitments arising from contractual
obligations. We began the process of issuing the Group’s first commercial paper in the amount of EUR 30
million at the end of 2012 with the aim of achieving the
optimal diversification of liquid sources. In addition to
diversifying sources, the goal of the issue was to ensure
liquidity reserves in line with our conservative financial
assets management policy, and to unburden a portion
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on all local markets in 2012, which facilitates extensive
operations in the wider international environment.
Financial debt in the form of bank loans totaled EUR 16
million at the end of 2012, of which EUR 10 million was
in the form of short-term loans and EUR 6 million in the
form of long-term loans. Total financial debt was thus
equivalent to 7% of total assets, an increase of just 0.6
percentage points on the previous year. The Group had
nearly EUR 30 million in unused credit potential at the
end of the business year, which ensures sufficient primary liquidity reserves.
With its high level of liquid assets in the form of deposits
and cash equivalents, the GEN-I Group maintained its
position as a net creditor and, despite the adverse market
conditions, ended 2012 with a net cash flow of EUR 9.56
million. The Group’s operating profit in 2012 was sufficient to cover five times the interest expenses incurred.
The Group’s good liquidity position is reflected in the
ratio of current assets to current liabilities, as current
assets exceeded current liabilities by 24%. The active
and effective monitoring and planning of receivables
and liabilities also contributed to the favorable ratio.
The portfolio of guarantee potential facilitates the continued expansion of operations and the growth of the
GEN-I Group. The majority of potential is secured via
local banks. We did, however, make an important step
in this area at the end of the business year, when we
secured new guarantee lines at foreign investment-grade banks. Quality and stable financial indicators and a
high credit rating further enable the Group’s continued
successful deepening of cooperation with the most
renowned, major energy corporations. Their trust in
the GEN-I Group is seen in the allocation of unsecured
limits and as the gradual abandonment of requests for
collateral in the form of bank guarantees, which reduces the pressure on rising guarantee potential while
ensuring moderate growth in operations.
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8. Risk management
The expansion of the electricity trading and sales
activity and entry to the natural gas market has forced
GEN-I to invest additional effort in the management
of operational, credit, market and legal risks due to
the increase in the scope of operations. Such risks
could have a negative effect on Group’s operations
and results. With the aim of enhancing risk management processes, the Company’s Management Board
established guidelines in 2012 for the more comprehensive updating of processes with a more consistent
risk management policy. In addition to clearly defined tasks allocated to individual departments and
active risk management within those departments,
the Management Board resolved to strengthen risk
management and further centralize it as a corporate
risk management function, with the goal of ensuring
the sustained development of the Group and stable
operations. A long-term action plan was drafted for
the development of corporate risk management with
the aim of effectively identifying, reviewing, managing
and reporting on exposures to various risks, both at
the Company and Group levels. The risk management
department is completely separate and independent,
and reports directly to the Management Board. Its
tasks in the broadest sense, in addition to spreading
a culture of risk management, are to coordinate the
management and minimization of risks of other
departments, and to coordinate the functioning of
departments if exceptional events occur that could result in negative effects on the Group’s operations. The
staff of the risk management department was further
bolstered, while the reorganization of the department
ensures a comprehensive view and control over the
core processes of the Group’s operations where significant risks arise.
In addition to the development of corporate risk management, we also give a great deal of attention to
the upgrading of complex models for monitoring and
combining risks, and to the active management of
operational limits with the aim of correctly exploiting
capital earmarked for ensuring the long-term business
sustainability of the Group.

8.1. Credit risks
We paid special attention to managing credit risks in
2012 due to the adverse economic conditions and the
resulting increased probability of partners’ failure to
fulfill contractually defined obligations. For this reason, several departments were included in the credit
risk management process. In addition to the risk management department in the role of coordinator, the
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legal department, the key accounts department, the
trading department and the collections department
are also actively involved in the process.
Credit risk management strategy.
We follow a precisely defined process of assessing and
assigning partners to credit rating categories when
optimizing the portfolio and selecting partners. The
result of in-depth analysis is a decision as to whether
we should enter into a business relationship with a
partner and under what conditions. In addition to an
internal analysis, we also use information obtained
from an external credit rating agency when assigning
a final assessment to a partner. Due to the specifics of
the markets on which we operate, we further upgraded the internal credit rating model in 2012. The model
serves as the basis for determining the maximum
unsecured portion of transactions with a partner. We
also optimized the process of approving credit limits
and forms of cooperation, as well as the permitted
duration of an exposure as defined by the credit committee.
The assessment of risks that are identified during the
assignment of credit ratings forms the basis for defining the framework for future business cooperation, a
process in which maximum allowable credit limits are
set for individual partners. The product offering, and
payment and delivery conditions, as well as collateral
requirements are adjusted to the assessed level of risk.
The terms defined in this process are consistently applied in all phases of negotiation and in the execution of
contracts. For each decision, we ensure that new contracts are still within the agreed limits by monitoring
current market exposure and payment obligations.
Credit lines.
We pay particular attention to the international
aspect of our operations, as we often deal with the
same partner or related parties on several different
markets. The final credit assessment is therefore adjusted to reflect the specific situation created by local legislation on each individual market. The assessed level
of risk depends mostly on the partner’s performance,
particularly their indebtedness, short-term liquidity,
and solvency, profitability and capital adequacy indicators. We are particularly concerned with obtaining current market data, as the status of individual partners
may change quickly in altered market conditions or as
a result of regulatory changes. An extensive infrastructure and a local presence via regional representatives
on individual markets facilitate the more efficient flow
of information and opportunities to adapt more rapidly to new conditions.

Borislava Krešić

2012 GEN-I-us of the year for work in accordance with
the values of the GEN-I Group.
Borka is an Advisor to the Management Board.
Borka is a highly valued member of the GEN-I team, and is considered a person
of exceptional character, both professionally and personally. She enjoys a high
level of respect and is a mentor to many co-workers. They value Borka for her
truly broad range of knowledge and experience, which she is unselfishly willing
to share at all times, and for the wisdom life has brought her. Her rich experiences
and prudence have contributed to the successful implementation of numerous
major and minor projects. Borka personifies what the words “elder” and “legend”
found in textbooks describe. Her expertise, enhanced by years of experience,
contributed significantly to the success of GEN-I’s project in the field of natural
gas. In conditions where clear rules for a market fight did not even exist, Borka
tenaciously and effectively broke down the blockades and overcame the obstacles
set by the competition in an attempt to slow GEN-I’s entry to the natural gas
market. With Borka on our side, they never had a chance.

Saša Krašna
Halilagić

2012 GEN-I-us of the year for
work in accordance with the
values of the GEN-I Group.
Saša is the Head of Forecasting,
Pricing and Scheduling
Department – Sales.
Saša is valued by the team as
a committed, conscientious
and extremely responsible
and reliable co-worker. He
is distinguished by his calm
and deliberate approach to
work. If others lose the will
and persistence, Saša always
has them in abundance. Saša
unselfishly shares his knowledge
and experiences, and therefore
makes an excellent mentor
for younger generations of
employees. He demonstrates
superior professional mastery
of processes linked to
forecasting, scheduling and data
management.
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Hedging instruments.
On developed markets, the Group makes use of the
organized market and the services of clearing houses
which, with their strict and well-defined operating
conditions, minimize (or eliminate) the level of credit
risk between market participants. Contractual obligations that arise from transactions with partners are
secured using various forms of collateral, depending
on the associated credit ratings and contractual conditions. The Group uses first-rate collateral instruments to secure its receivables, as they guarantee the
settlement of overdue contractual obligations if they
are not fulfilled by a counterparty. The most common
form of collateral used in electricity and natural gas
trading is a bank guarantee. Parent company guarantees represent another frequently used form of collateral. The amount of such a guarantee is determined
based on the prior assessment of a parent company’s
creditworthiness. If business partners fail to fulfill
their contractual obligations, these are assumed by
the parent company, which usually has more capital at
its disposal.
In 2012, we noticed a further deterioration in the credit
ratings of the banks that provide the requisite collateral. We therefore use prepayments and deposits much
more frequently as collateral instruments.
In addition to the aforementioned collateral instruments, we use collateral in the form of bills of exchange and, in rare cases, inventories, when selling electricity to end-consumers on the domestic market.
In addition to hedging risks associated with the Group’s portfolio, a well-diversified portfolio of collateral
is required for the issue of guarantees required by
partners for our liabilities to them. Of key importance
are the credit ratings of the banks that issue collateral
instruments. The credit ratings of banks deteriorated
slightly in 2012. We therefore established the process
of monitoring the evolution of issued credit potential
for the purpose of optimizing the use thereof.
Monitoring exposure.
We updated the model for measuring exposure in
2012 with the aim of improving the monitoring of
exposure. The aforementioned model takes into account the daily dynamics of payments for contracts with
different contractual parameters. Both exposure due
to default and exposure due to undelivered/acquired
energy from unfulfilled contractual obligations are
measured. In the associated calculation, we measure
both the current value of exposure and the future
value of exposure by measuring for each future day
separately. In their daily work, both traders and key
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account managers verify whether transactions with a
specific partner are within the permitted limits; new
transactions are concluded with partners if credit
exposure does not exceed established limits. An additional control mechanism to ensure we are within
defined limits is provided by the portfolio controlling
department and the risk management department.
In addition to measuring exposure to individual partners, the Group also carries out stress-test analyses
of credit risk at the level of the portfolio, individual
companies and the Group using the VaR credit methodology, which relies on assigned credit ratings and
the Monte Carlo methodology for generating random
scenarios of default by partners included in the Group’s portfolio.

8.2. Market risks
We exploit our expertise on energy markets to search
for opportunities that derive from the well-diversified
portfolio of the GEN-I Group. We are aware that those opportunities are closely linked to risks that could
affect the value of the Group’s portfolio. We therefore
ensure the continuous development of tools to successfully manage those risks.
Price risks on energy markets.
In its operations on energy markets, the Group encounters infrastructure changes, blockages in cross-border transfer paths, and changes in consumption and
production. The majority of factors result in a change
in energy prices on the market and thus the value of
the portfolio. We manage market risks that arise in
association with products that are tied to an exchange
index and when transactions on the purchase and sale
sides of the portfolio are not completely matched. For
the purpose of hedging positions in the sales portfolio,
we minimize risks to a great degree with immediate
purchases on the wholesale market. Hedging rules, as
well as exposure in terms of quantity and transaction
approval are described precisely in the Group’s rules.
The actual amount of open positions is controlled by
the portfolio controlling department and the risk management department. Daily positions and day-to-day
changes thereto, as well as a comprehensive review of
the evolution of changes are controlled and reported
daily, in accordance with the Group’s policy, to key
departments that are involved in daily portfolio management processes, including the risk management
department.
The management and optimization of the global trading portfolio are the responsibility of traders, with
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support from the market and portfolio analysis department. We use derivatives as hedging instruments
on Western markets with a high level of correlation
when managing the global portfolio, which includes
both Western partners and partners from the markets
of South-East Europe. In addition to derivatives, we
also invest in the purchase of cross-border transfer
capacities to hedge positions in the global portfolio.
The aforementioned capacities serve as a link between
the illiquid markets of South-East Europe and highly
liquid Western markets.
A smaller proportion of trading is accounted for by
proprietary trading, where portfolios are strictly segregated from one another and facilitate an effective and
quick overview of risks. Absolute limits, which define
the maximum permitted risk and may never be exceeded, place severe limitations on proprietary traders.
The Value-at-Risk (VaR) methodology is used to calculate market risk. In 2012, we upgraded our model used
to monitor exposure that facilitates the verification of
risk exposure prior to the execution of a transaction
(pre-deal check) and thus contributes to minimizing
the exceeding of limits. A 99% confidence interval
with the possibility of closing a position in one day
is used to calculate VaR for individual portfolios. The
development and constant upgrading of such models
is, in addition to the proper aggregation of risks, one of
the main goals of the risk management department,
as it facilitates the continuous and comprehensive
monitoring of market risks at the Group level.

diversifying the portfolio of assets for the purpose
of short-term borrowing and began activities for the
issue of commercial paper with a fixed interest rate,
the aim of which is to further limit interest-rate risk.
Quantity risks.
Quantity risks are a special form of market risks associated with the delivery and acceptance of electricity.
They occur because of differences between the electricity quantities envisaged in contracts and the quantities that are actually delivered or accepted. These risks
arise from contracts in which electricity volumes are
not specified (open contracts).

We manage quantity risks by providing comprehensive information support for the long-term and short-term forecasting of electricity supply and consumption, and by consistently monitoring quantity deviations
at the majority of metering points that are included in
the GEN-I balance Group. The early detection of changes to consumption volumes is ensured by effective
communication between the Group and its customers,
thus mitigating quantity risks. In 2012, we noticed
growth in the production portfolio of renewable sources. In particular, we recorded an increase in the portfolio of electricity purchases from solar power plants.
The volatility of consumption in this type of production is higher. We therefore created special modules for
this segment for forecasting the production of small
hydroelectric power plants and solar power plants. The
aforementioned models are based on meteorological
models used to forecast rainfall and sun exposure.
Currency risks.
In addition to models for forecasting electricity consuThe activities that are exposed to currency risks are
electricity trading and trading in cross-border transfer mption, we also developed the appropriate models for
forecasting the consumption of natural gas. All intercapacities. The Group is exposed to risks associated
with currencies that are not directly linked to the euro nally developed models are tested based on historical
data and on the daily monitoring of errors in forecasuch as the Serbian dinar (RSD), the Hungarian forint
sting relative to actual consumption and production.
(HUF), the Croatian kuna (HRK), the Romanian leu
We are exposed to quantity risks in contracts where
(RON) and the Turkish lira (TRY). To hedge currency
partners have limited options to change electricity qurisks, the Group employs FX trading counter positions
to transactions concluded on the energy markets whe- antities on a daily or monthly level, or contracts where
re currency risk arises due to the settlement of contra- the supply of electricity is not guaranteed. We manage
ctual obligations in a foreign currency. The Group also these risks by simulating the most likely changes in
electricity quantities in advance based on the current
uses currency clauses as a hedge when entering into
contracts that envisage settlement in a foreign curren- and expected market conditions. In addition to scenario analyses, the Group uses special clauses in certain
cy and currency trading is limited or liquidity is low.
contracts with higher consumption volumes. The aforementioned clauses facilitate the settlement of costs
Interest-rate risks.
that arise due to excessive deviations from previously
Interest-rate risks are associated with unexpected
determined tolerances.
growth in financing costs due to rising interest rates.
The GEN-I Group generally uses short-term lending to
bridge occasional liquidity gaps, which is why it is not
significantly exposed to these risks. In 2012, we began
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8.3. Liquidity risks

8.4. Operational risks

According to forecasts, we noticed an increase in
payment delays in 2012 in the supply of electricity to
end-customers. We therefore invested additional efforts to enhance the collection process and the diversification of the portfolio of short-term loans with the
aim of bridging short-term liquidity gaps that could
arise due to delays in the collection of overdue receivables. The Group’s treasury department is responsible
for monitoring and reporting cash flows. Any major
transactions are coordinated daily by the treasury
department and trading department.

Despite the expansion of operations, no incidents
relating to operational risks were recorded in 2012. To
facilitate the control of processes and with the aim of
identifying key processes, the Group implemented the
METIS project during the course of the year, as well as
the ARIS project, which will be completed in 2013. Both
projects serve to identify and classify process risks and
contribute to the improvement and optimization of all
activities at the Group level. A operational risk register
was created, and measures proposed for the prevention and management of such risks.
Identifying and managing operational risks encompasses corporate processes, the processes of business
units and those of individual departments.
We are planning to enhance operational risk activities
in the future by further enhancing the identification of
over burdened jobs, the identification of key competencies, work means, knowledge and the identification of
bottlenecks. The aim of both projects is to identify and
manage all operational risks that threaten the achievement of established strategic and business goals.

Managing liquidity.
The treasury department is responsible for managing
liquidity risks. Liquidity is managed centrally by optimizing the liquidity of each company and then the liquidity of the Group as a whole. In cooperation with various departments and in line with established operating
strategies for the future, a cash flow projection is prepared in advance for a specific period, which facilitates
the effective management of liquidity risks. In addition
to planned activities, unexpected events that have a
direct impact on liquidity risk are managed through:
• liquidity reserves in the form of approved credit lines
with various commercial banks;
• the diversification of financial liabilities;
• the continuous matching of maturities of receivables
and liabilities;
• limiting exposure to partners; and
• the consistent collection of overdue receivables.

Human resource risks.
Managing human resource risks is particularly important for the GEN-I Group because of its rapid growth
and the expansion of operations to new markets. To
achieve operational plans, employees must constantly
build on their existing knowledge and learn new skills.
They must also demonstrate the ability to work as part
of a team and show a high level of flexibility, a dynamic approach to work, self-initiative, and excellent inWe have a clearly defined debt collection procedure in terpersonal and communication skills. To prevent the
loss of key employees, we maintain a healthy organizaplace, as well as a system for monitoring customers
and sending out late payment reminders. We monitor tional climate, provide constant professional growth,
create stimulating working conditions, and maintain
data on blocked bank accounts and changes to the
status of legal entities in publicly available registers on good communication with and among employees. We
also ensure that work processes and internal skills are
a daily basis. We are thus able to respond in a timely
well documented, as they represent one of the Group’s
manner to expected difficulties in the settlement of
most important competitive advantages.
customers’ contractual obligations. We are also able
to forecast possible payment delays with the help of
statistical indicators and minimize possible short-term The GEN-I Group manages process risks using a control
liquidity gaps with the appropriate short-term loans.
system that requires all important transactions to be
carried out according to the principle of at least “four
eyes”. These risks are mitigated with clearly defined
The effects of financial instruments.
processes, the unambiguous demarcation of roles, the
Financial instruments tied to the supply or purchase
clear delegation of responsibilities and authority, and
of electricity are settled daily and increase overall
by implementing codes of conduct and internal rules.
liquidity risk. They thus require active management.
In 2012, we continued to equip the most important
We mitigate liquidity risk by limiting the maximum
processes with the appropriate IT infrastructure and
positions of financial instruments, as defined by the
tools that facilitate the monitoring of implementation,
risk management policy, and by forecasting changes
the identification of bottlenecks and audit trails.
in market conditions.
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IT risks
are associated with possible losses or errors in data
records arising from inappropriate information technology or inadequate processing, which can lead to the
disclosure of erroneous results and balances, and the resulting erroneous business decisions. Important aspects
of risk management include ensuring audit trails, limiting or controlling access to data and the results of processing, the mutual integration of specific subsystems,
ensuring the continuous availability of key IT services and
ensuring disaster recovery as required. Our operations
are fully supported by information technology, enabling
us to carry out and manage our daily operations in an
efficient manner. Continuous investment in IT infrastructure upgrades is closely linked to automated controls
used for individual phases of business processes, which
help reduce the possibility of human error and abuse.

8.5. Legal risks
are associated with losses arising from breaches of regulations, such as legal acts, implementing acts, instructions and recommendations, as well as contracts, good
practices and ethical norms. These risks are managed
by clearly defined contractual provisions. We enter into
contractual relations with wholesale partners based on
standardized general contracts recommended by the
European Federation of Energy Traders (EFET). These
contracts address the issues of risk management in great
detail, particularly regarding receivables from electricity
deliveries and compensation for damage where alternative transactions must be agreed in order to compensate
for a partner’s failure to fulfill its contractual obligations
in the event of insolvency. We use a similar level of contractual provisions in electricity sale contracts.

8.6. Regulatory risks
are associated with potential losses due to incomplete
regulatory requirements and trading limitations or
(sudden) legislative changes in countries in which the
Group operates. During the current economic crisis,
these risks are reflected in a number of austerity measures imposed by governments in order to balance
their national budgets.
These risks are managed by closely monitoring developments on the Group’s key markets, which is
facilitated by a local presence in the form of regional
managers. The tax aspect of these risks is managed by
intensifying the processes necessary to obtain trading
licenses for the Slovenian company.
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Important events in 2012
Events after the end
of the reporting period
Sustainability report

46

Educational structure
of employees within
the GEN-I Group
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Doctorate

5%

Master of science 6%

University degree 43%

Junior colleage degree 24%

Secondary school degree 22%

Borislav Antović

2012 GEN-I-us of the year for work in accordance with
the values of the GEN-I Group.
Borislav Antović is the Financial Manager of GEN-I Belgrade.
There are no limits, problems or obstacles for Borislav, only challenges
that he overcomes with the necessary enthusiasm and expertise. His
co-workers especially appreciate the deliberateness, calmness and
wisdom that he brings to the team. With his true dedication to the
company, Borislav is an invaluable element of the GEN-I Group’s success
on the markets of South-East Europe. He is a distinguished expert in
the accounting, tax and customs aspects of electricity trading and sales
in the countries of South-East Europe. His work on numerous projects
has resulted in accounting processes and the reporting activities of
subsidiaries coordinated at the corporate level by the accounting
department and trading departments that are fully in line with local
regulations.

Andreja Zupan

2012 GEN-I-us of the year for
exceptional achievements in 2012.
Andreja is the Head of ShortTerm Trading Department.
Andreja makes decisions without
hesitation, and is not afraid to
take responsibility for those
decisions. In addition to her
decisiveness, she is distinguished
by her energetic and insightful
spirit. Andreja has molded her
team into an exquisite whole
and established a team spirit
among her co-workers. Through
her extraordinary eagerness
and ambition, Andreja has
achieved excellent results in
short-term electricity trading.
Together with her team, she
contributed decisively to the
strategic reorganization of the
trading department. Through her
dedication, Andreja looks after
the Company’s reputation in the
eyes of the internal and external
public. She continuously strives
to achieve established objectives.
Under Andreja’s watchful eye,
the Company’s short-term
trading portfolio is optimized at
all times. GEN-I is thus capable
of compensating for possible
disruptions in the electricity
supply at a moment's notice
throughout the day.
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9. Highlights of the business year

9.1. Important events in 2012
January 2012

April 2012

Slovenia: The number of contracts concluded with
customers in the scope of the Affordable Electricity
brand exceeds 40,000.
Macedonia: An important agreement is signed on the
purchase of electricity produced by a gas powered
plant for the complete service of providing alternative
electricity in the event of unplanned power plant outages.

Germany: Electricity prices on the German market fall
in the second quarter due to a significant increase in
the use of renewable energy sources. Already more
than 25% of electricity in Germany is provided from
renewable sources.
GEN-I: The long-running and important project aimed
at reorganizing the trading sector is completed with
the establishment of a new organizational basis, resulting in a thorough improvement in the transparency
of operations, the mitigation of operational risks and
the clear separation of trading from trading support
and control processes. The operational trading sector
is established. With its six departments, the aforementioned sector will begin the productive phase of
operations on 1 July 2013.
GEN-I Group: The GEN-I Group surpasses the milestone of 2 TWh of electricity supplied in a single month.

February 2012
Slovenia: The largest annual meeting for large business customers in Slovenia is held on February 16,
where guidelines on purchasing and developments on
electricity markets are presented.
South-East Europe (Bulgaria, Serbia, Greece, Macedonia, Romania and Bosnia and Herzegovina): Through
its broadly designed infrastructure and globally oriented portfolio with numerous options, GEN-I successfully ensures every single delivery and effectively hedges the value of its portfolios, despite several instances of force majeure (poor hydrologic conditions, low
temperatures and the resulting shortage of electricity
in South-East Europe), many unexpected regulatory
measures imposed by governments and interference
by certain transmission network operators in the free
functioning of markets (the limitation and prohibition
of exports, the seizure of previously allocated cross-border capacities, etc.).

March 2012
South-East Europe: The situation eases and normal
trading conditions are gradually reestablished following February’s electricity shortage in the region,
which prompted the adoption of regulatory measures
by the governments of countries in South-East Europe.
Albania: Newly adopted rules governing the market
and the calculation of deviations allow GEN-I to conclude its first transaction for the supply of electricity
on the basis of an open contract with the largest endcustomer in the Albanian transmission system.
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May 2012
Slovenia: Contracts are extended with several business customers in Croatia, while GEN-I is successful in
several public tender procedures.
Italy: GEN-I begins intra-day trading on the Italian
market.

June 2012
Slovenia: GEN-I enters the natural gas market and
signs its first major contract with an end-customer on
the supply of natural gas.
Austria: GEN-I extends the contract with its largest
customer for 2013 and 2014.
Turkey: With the subsidiary GEN-I Istanbul, the Group
enters the final phase of preparations to ensure all the
necessary infrastructure specifics to enter the internal
Turkish electricity market, with the aim of making the
first deliveries in the final quarter of 2012.
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July 2012

November 2012

Slovenia: Electricity prices for household customers
are left unchanged, whereby GEN-I surpasses last
year’s commitment to leave prices unchanged for
household customers until 30 June 2012.
Bulgaria: With the start of the new regulatory period
(1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013), the costs of components
for the transfer of electricity and network access are
raised again, thus significantly increasing the costs of
transmitting electricity from Bulgaria, which characterizes market conditions in the wider region of South-East Europe.

GEN-I: The Management Board adopts an important
decision to implement the most extensive IT project
and investment to date: the upgrading of the ERP
system with the aim of standardizing numerous IT
systems, which encompasses billing, the CRM system
and the majority of other IT subsystems.
Italy: An important contract on the supply of electricity for 2013 is signed with several customers with a
large number of metering points.
GEN-I Group: Preparations and the conceptual design
of the global trading portfolio for 2013 are completed in the scope of GEN-I’s operations on wholesale
markets. The majority of auctions of annual cross-border transfer capacities are also completed, with the
Company securing important positions that ensure a
wide selection of optimization capacities for the 2013
business year.

August 2012
Europe: A shortage of electricity from nuclear power
plants and the very hot summer in Europe result in
a rise in electricity prices on Western markets, while
the continuation of bad hydrologic conditions and
high temperatures result in an even more significant
increase in short-term electricity prices in South-East
Europe.

September 2012
Slovenia: GEN-I launches the Affordable Natural Gas
brand, and receives more than 10,000 requests to switch natural gas supplier by the end of the month.
A meeting with partners who use renewable energy
sources and high-efficiency cogeneration plants in
production is held in Krško.
GEN-I Group: The daily coupling of the Czech, Slovak
and Hungarian electricity markets begins, with the
aim of improving trading liquidity on the aforementioned markets.

October 2012
Slovenia: GEN-I receives 20,000 inquiries about the
Affordable Natural Gas brand, together with 20,000
additional inquiries regarding the Affordable Electricity brand.
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December 2012
Turkey: The GEN-I Group’s subsidiary begins normal
operations on the internal Turkish wholesale electricity market.
Serbia: Pursuant to the Energy Act, new implementing
acts and market rules, the first steps are taken to open
the national electricity market. As of 2013, customers
connected to the transmission network will be free to
choose their supplier, which gives GEN-I the opportunity to issue the first offers to such end-customers.
GEN-I Group: The first “GEN-I-uses” of the year are
selected. Winners in the scope of the aforementioned
project receive a symbolic award and are held up as an
example to all Group employees.
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10. Events after the end of the reporting period
With the help of NLB, GEN-I entered the Slovenian
capital market and, with the issue of its first 360-day
commercial paper, secured the necessary funds from
non-banking institutional investors. GEN-I is thus the
first Slovenian company, that by definition is not a
public limited company listed on the Ljubljana Stock
Exchange, to secure financing for operations in such a
manner. It was the third Slovenian company to issue
commercial paper, which will be traded on the organized securities market of the Ljubljana Stock Exchange
in the bond market segment – money market instruments – commercial paper.
On February 8, 2013, GEN-I began supplying electricity to the Serbian company Messer Tehnogas AD,
following the signing of an electricity supply contract.
This was the first instance in which a customer changed its supplier on the liberated Serbian electricity
market. GEN-I thus became the only newcomer to
supply customers in Serbia.
The largest annual meeting for large business customers was held in Bled on February 16, 2012 with the
aim of offering guidelines on purchasing and presenting developments on the electricity market.
At the end of March 2013 (March 31, 2013), GEN-I
purchased business premises in Kromberk (net floor
area of 2,638 m2) that until now were rented from IG
energetski sistemi, Kromberk. GEN-I intends to obtain
business premises of roughly the same size in Ljubljana in 2013 and 2014.
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11. Sustainability report
employees, which brings a natural rise in the employee
turnover rate, the low average age of employees (the
GEN-I Group is the first employer for nearly half of its
In recent years, the number of employees in the Group has employees) and a sharp rise in the number of employees on parental leave in the last two years and the
grown in line with growth in operations and with entry
associated new hires, which is probably linked to the
into certain new segments and markets (e.g. the establishment of the Group’s Affordable Natural Gas brand and low average age of employees (62.5% of employees are
between the ages of 25 and 35).
sales to end-customers on foreign markets). The largest
increase in the number of employees (55%) was recorded
in 2009. In 2012, the number of employees rose by 25.6%.

11.1. Employees

160
The number of employees increased
by 25.6%. The rise in the152number
140
of employees between 2009 and 2012 is in line with 121
plans and reflects
120
101 revenues.
the Group’s increased scope of 100
operations and
83

80
60
40

Of the total 152 employees at the end of 2012, 138 were 20
employed in Slovenia. This was the due to our centra- 0
lized organizational structure. The parent company in
Slovenia is at the top of the Group’s hierarchical structure, and it is there that decision-making, management,
data collection and control functions are performed.
160

Employee structure by age, gender and level of
education
2011
2012
2009
The average
age 2010
of GEN-I Group
employees
was 32.73
years in 2012. Slightly less than two thirds of employees
were aged 25 to 35.
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Chart: Number of employees in the GEN-I Group

Chart: Age structure of employees in the Group

Last year, employee turnover1 at the Group level was
8.54%, which is down on the rate recorded the previous
year of 11.48%, and down slightly on 2010 when it was
20 - 25 years
3%
9.38%. The employee turnover rate was close to zero
25 - aforementio30 years
36%
until 2010. The reasons for the rise in the
ned rate between 2010 and 2012 lie in the
specific
staff
30 - 35
years
27%
profile (employees are highly sought after in Slovenia
35 - 40 years
19%
and the broader South-East Europe region due to their
years
15%
specialist knowledge), a general rise in over
the40number
of

The GEN-I Group comprises a team of highly educated
Secondary school degree
employees. The proportion of employees with a uniJunior
college degree
versity degree or higher was unchanged
compared
with
the previous year. The proportion of employees
who
University degree
have completed doctoral studies was up slightly (from
Master of science
4.10% to 4.61%).

1
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22%
24%
43%
6%

Doctorate

5%

F = O*100/(SZ + S); where the symbols have the following meanings:
F = turnover, O = the number of employees who left the company in the
reporting period, SZ = the number of employees at the beginning of the
reporting period, S = new hires. Reporting period: January 1, 2012
to December 31, 2012.
Culture

4%

Secondary school degree

22%

Sports

78%

Junior college degree

24%

Science and education

14%

Legal Department for the Trading Sector

Živa Klančar, Maks Helbl, Nina Glas Ogorevc, Teja Todori
2012 GEN-I-us of the year for exceptional achievements and work
in accordance with the values of the GEN-I Group.
The Legal Department for the Trading Sector is appreciated by
other departments due to its exceptional accuracy, expertise and
professionalism. Its most important strengths include its exceptional
knowledge of the legal profession and its understanding of the
conditions and functioning of the regional energy market. Its work
mitigates legal risks and resolves conflicts, and generally contributes
to the successful achievement of the Company’s common objectives.
The department once again demonstrated its excellence in 2012 in the
face of highly demanding legal procedures.
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Chart: Educational structure of employees in the Group

Both women and men are almost equally represented
in the employee structure. Women accounted for 53%
Culture
4%
of all employees within the GEN-I Group at the end of
Sports
78%
2012. Slightly more than 40%
of middle management
positions are held by women.
Science and education
14%
Humanitarian purposes

3%

Other

1%

Our most important project in the area of human resource management and development is Metis2 , which
was launched in 2011. The Metis project broadly defines
and combines all content, activities and projects that:
1. establish and maintain the desired culture in
the Company’s operations and the associated
constructive and positive climate, and
2. contribute to the development of employees and
their own potential in terms of career and personal
development, as we believe that career and personal
development are inseparable.
In 2012, Metis combined activities aimed at training and
educating senior and middle management staff, several
professionally conducted and topic-specific team building events, and the initial phase to establish a project

The Group’s power lies in knowledge.
Sports
10%
The development of in-house
potential
Through the findings of numerous
Science andstudies
education of practices
13%
in the area of human resource
management and 42%
metaCharitable purposes
-analytical reviews thereof, the professional public has
purposes
33%
found and emphasizes that Humanitarian
satisfied employees
are,
on
Other
average, three times more creative
and innovative2%in
their work, while their work productivity is 31% higher
Culture
0.5%
and their success rate in sales and core business activities is 37% higher (source: Positive Intelligence, Harvard
Business Review, January-February 2012).

GEN-I is fully aware that employees are the heart and
main driver of our success. We therefore strive for the
gradual, systematic and continuous development of
our employees. We believe that this is one of the most
important factors that lead to long-term and stable
commercial success.

to formulate a model of key competencies and implement it in practice. More in-depth activities relating to
the latter will continue in 2013.
Employee training
Edgar Schein, a pioneer and recognized authority in
the area of organizational culture and climate (source:
Organizational Culture and Leadership, 2004, third
edition), asserts that organizational culture and climate
are closely linked to leadership: management creates
and changes the culture. Schein and other experts in
this area are united in their opinion that it is difficult to
create and/or change the desired culture of a company.
They are also united in their opinion that management,
through its conduct, is the most important element
that drives change in the culture and climate. Management or leadership on the one hand and the culture
and climate at a company on the other represent very
closely tied and complex concepts.
We are aware of this at GEN-I and therefore believe
that managers are at the heart of successful human
resource management. Not only senior management,
but middle managers also play a very important role
in managing employees and creating the proper work
culture. We therefore began to train managers in 2010,
2
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The name Metis (suggested by GEN-I employees) has its origins in
Greek mythology. Metis was a Titaness whose virtues included wisdom,
capability and skill.
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Similar to previous years, training will continue in highly
specialized fields, which individuals require as part of
their specialized jobs. Employees also attend conferences
The emphasis on middle management training in 2012 and seminars not only in Slovenia, but particularly abroad, where they supplement their expertise, exchange
was as follows:
• to help key employees understand and recognize best practices and establish contacts with other experts.
psychological factors (e.g. behavioral, management
and belief patterns) that contribute to performance Annual interviews as a basic tool for the effective maand the achievement of established goals in the nagement and development of employees.
workplace, and to educate employees about the Regular annual interviews are an established element
of management at GEN-I, and are based on the folimportance of their own impact and example;
• to familiarize employees with simple, but highly lowing principles:
effective techniques that contribute to effective and • the systematic establishment of goals and the
definition of an individual’s role in achieving his
stimulating communication that guides employees
or her own success and the overall success of the
to the planned path of success and maintains the
Company;
desired level of internal motivation;
and dedicated a great deal of attention to this process
in 2012.

Its employees make GEN-I unique. There are no hidden
elements: people are what makes us special; they are
our wealth.
• to familiarize them with certain traps that every
individual sooner or later encounters in managing a
team, and how to deal with and prevent such traps;
• to teach employees the meaning of management
by example and how to apply it in practice, what the
strategic stance of a manager should be and how to
use regular annual (and semi-annual) interviews as
an effective management tool; and
• teach staff how to manage different types of
employees and identify their behavioral patterns,
and to identify the motivators of different groups of
employees.

• interviews regarding the development opportunities
of individual employees; and
• the standardization of expectations regarding
instructions on the expected relationship, the
achievement of goals and the development of an
individual’s competencies in the broadest sense.

The Company combines regular annual interviews
with periodic interviews during the year, which provide
employees feedback from superiors and also facilitate
a review of their work, achievements and development.
We consistently carry out regular interviews, as the
profession acknowledges that the root of at least 75%
We organized training activities for middle management of conflicts and disagreements in the workplace is poor
communication and the poor coordination (if it even
that was attended by 19.7% of all Group employees.
exists) of expectations and priorities between superiors
and their employees.
We will continue to conduct similar training activities
in 2013, because we know that the beliefs, values and
behavioral patterns of senior and middle management
are the main building blocks for creating the Company’s
desired work culture. We believe that the benefits of
investing in the education, training and motivation of
employees are more than worth the time and money
spent for those purposes.
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GEN-I was among the finalists in the 2012 Zlata nit
(Golden Thread) project
We participated in the Golden Thread project for
the second time in 2012. The project selects the best
employers in Slovenia and is carried out by Dnevnik, d.d.
The most important selection criterion was the opinion
of employees. The quality of the relationship between
employees and their company is assessed based on the
following seven topics:
1. the basic relationship between the company and the
employee(s);
2. the role and quality of the work of the individual at
the company;
3. the characteristics of the organizational culture and
climate and interpersonal relationships;
4. entrepreneurship and innovation;
5. the quality of the work environment;
6. personal growth and development; and
7. the sense of commitment of the employee(s).
GEN-I is a company prepared to strive for the satisfaction of its employees. Our inclusion among the finalists
for the 2012 Golden Thread award is proof that we are
on the right path.

We ranked among the finalists in the selection of the
best employers in Slovenia in 2012, something we are
very proud of. Such a ranking shows us and others
how those who create the Company’s identity, i.e. all
employees, feel about GEN-I. Inclusion among the finalists for best employers is a clear indication that GEN-I
has established a sound relationship with its employees, that is has established recognized drivers for developing internal potential and that it is a people friendly
company.

11.2. Public relations
The Company divides the public into the internal public
represented by employees and the external public represented by the media, the business world and other
stakeholders. The primary focus of public relations is
employee relations. We therefore strive to ensure that
employees are informed comprehensively and first.
We are an open Group that responds dynamically to the
requirements of the environment and communicates
with all stakeholders in accordance with their needs
and the needs of the target public. We understand
public relations as a strategic tool used when we enter
new sales markets; a tool with which we strengthen
the recognition of the Company and its brands.
The basic tool for public relations is the Company’s
corporate website, which is designed especially for the
Slovenian market and foreign markets, while product
websites for the Affordable Electricity and Affordable
Natural Gas brands are especially designed for our
customers. There is also an intranet site available to all
employees, where current topics are presented daily
and employees are informed about internal and external events. This tool is intended exclusively for the internal public, our employees.
Events for employees
We are aware of the fact the Company’s greatest treasure is its employees, and that this must be nurtured.
We organized a team building event for the first time
in 2012, which was warmly received by employees.
Another major event for employees is the New Year’s
gathering attended by all employees, including those
from the region. We promote a wining attitude and
celebrate even the smallest progress.
Two events are organized annually for business
partners.
Every year, we organize what has become a traditional
event for large business customers where, with the
help of experts, we present the latest trends in the area
of electricity and natural gas, and prepare advice and
recommendations for the most efficient functioning of
our business partners.
During the second half of the year, we also meet with
producers who use renewable energy sources and high-efficiency cogeneration plants.
The aforementioned events represent an excellent
opportunity to exchange opinions, make new acquaintances and socialize.
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The Group’s sponsorship policy is defined in an internal
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All decisions regarding sponsorship funds and donatiSecondary school degree
22%
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43%
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Doctorate
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presence in the local environment and the media.
Master of science

6%

Doctorate

5%

Culture

4%

Sports

78%

Science and education

14%

Humanitarian purposes

3%

Other
Culture

1%
4%

Sports

78%

Chart: Structure of sponsorships in 2012

Science and education

14%

Humanitarian purposes

3%

In 2012, we gave attention toOther
local sports clubs. Some
1% of
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Sports
10%
Hrastnik and Krško handball clubs, and the Go Volley
Science and education
13%
volleyball team.
Charitable purposes

42%

Humanitarian purposes

33%

Other
Sports

2%
10%

Science
Culture and education

13%
0.5%

Charitable purposes

42%

Humanitarian purposes

33%

Other

2%

Culture

0.5%
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2012: 1,553 MIO eurr

2011: 1,012 MIO eurr

53.4%

We recorded growth
in sales revenue
in all segments.

Tanja Zdouc Gantar
2012 GEN-I-us of the year for
exceptional achievements and
work in accordance with the
values of the GEN-I Group.
Tanja is the Head of Business
Administration Department.
Tanja brings a high level of
professionalism to the workplace.
She is an almost inexhaustible
source of positive energy, and
thus stimulates a pleasant
work atmosphere. Tanja is a
shining example to her fellow
employees of how to live by and
realize the values of the GEN-I
Group, even when faced with
everyday challenges. Through
her dedication, constructive
approach, positive attitude, and
in particular her sense for the
quality and important details in
the functioning of organizational,
commercial and administrative
processes, Tanja and her team
successfully reorganized and
structured numerous processes
that are unseen by outsiders,
but are crucial to the smooth
functioning of the Company.

Data warehouse project

Blaž Dakskobler, Matej Pintar
2012 GEN-I-us of the year for exceptional achievements and work in
accordance with the values of the GEN-I Group.
Today, and in particularly in our business, data means money. Blaž and
Matej, managers of the data warehouse project, are well aware of this
fact. Through their professionalism, persistence and precision, they
successfully standardized trading and sales data, which facilitated
consolidation and the standard presentation of data. Blaž and Matej
facilitated the rapid and simple production of complex analyses for
co-workers and decisions makers, and thus increased the added value
of selected data for the Company.
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12. Introduction
The GEN-I Group, for which the consolidated financial statements are prepared, includes the parent company
GEN-I, d.o.o. and the following fully owned subsidiaries:
• GEN-I, d.o.o., Belgrade
• GEN-I Zagreb, d.o.o.
• GEN-I Budapest Kft.
• GEN-I, d.o.o., Sarajevo
• GEN-I DOOEL Skopje
• GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k.
• GEN-I Athens SMLLC
• S.C. GEN-I Bucharest S.R.L.
• GEN-I Sofia EOOD
• GEN-I Milano S.r.l.
• GEN-I Vienna GmbH
• GEN-I Istanbul Ltd.
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13. Financial statements of the Gen-I Group
13.1. Consolidated statement of financial position
Items

Note

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

1
2
3
4
14

1,135,136
1,408,242
0
272,826
1,102,745

1,295,696
784,743
243,139
224,368
113,803

8

3,918,949
159,109,737
37,864,730
2,865,434
2,450,653
22,061,125

2,661,749
163,724,610
29,656,867
1,474,261
664,122
20,354,906

9
9
9

224,351,679
228,270,628
15,877,610
469,085
30,295,156

215,874,766
218,536,515
15,877,610
9,349,817
24,144,127

14

46,641,851
0
46,641,851
6,000,000
168,941
186,157
0
0

49,371,554
0
49,371,554
0
0
809,939
439
2,017,483

10
15
16
17

6,355,098
10,022,237
492,059
121,566,110
43,193,273

2,827,861
14,055,289
554,277
109,403,831
42,323,703

175,273,679
181,628,777
228,270,628

166,337,100
169,164,961
218,536,515

Amounts in €

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Interests in associates
Non-current receivables and loans
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets
Operating receivables
Prepayments and other assets
Other investments and loans
Current tax assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets
Assets
Share capital
Reserves
Retained earnings
Equity attributable to owners of the company
Non-controlling interest
Equity
Loans and borrowings
Other non-current financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Other financial liabilities, including derivatives
Trade payables
Advances payable and other current liabilities
Current liabilities
Liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
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13.2. Consolidated income statement
Items

Note

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

20
20
21
21
21
22
23
24

1,542,895,518
9,682,387
-1,521,066,112
-327,794
-7,656,716
-7,278,619
-1,363,191
-6,708,848

1,011,514,334
695,975
-976,396,149
-229,703
-6,056,829
-6,934,510
-1,114,446
-2,265,816

25
25

8,176,625
243,639
898,685

19,212,856
0
473,925

25

5,277,852

956,524

25
25
25

6,420,176
-1,474,124
-1,400,110
-993,642

1,430,449
-1,112,068
-361,206
-1,801,175

25

-1,124,042

-1,044,499

-4,991,918
1,428,259

-4,318,948
-2,888,499

0

3,139

9,604,885
-1,401,357

16,327,496
-2,292,207

8,203,528

14,035,289

Generated from
01/01
to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01
to 31/12/2011

8,203,528

14,035,289

-207,691
-4,563,827
-11,132,754
2,971,042

-34,905
10,087,413
0
-2,017,483

-12,933,230
-4,729,702

8,035,025
22,070,314

Amounts in €

Revenue
Other operating revenues
Cost of goods sold
Cost of materials
Cost of services
Labor cost
Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expenses
Operating profit or loss
Gain on disposal of investments
Income from interest
Finance income from revaluation of investments
and other finance income
Financial income
Expenses for interest
Net foreign exchange differences
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Impairment of assets and other financial
expenses
Financial costs
Profit or loss from financing
Recognized profit or loss of equity accounted
investees
Profit before tax
Income tax expense

26

Profit or loss from continuing operations

13.3. Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income
Amounts in €

Profit or loss for the period
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to profit of loss
Income tax on other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the period
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13.4. Consolidated cash flow statement
Items
Amounts in €

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit or loss for the period
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Write downs of property, plant and equipment
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment property
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment property
Write downs of good will
Financial income
Financial expenses
Share of profit of equity accounted investees
Income tax
Operating profit before changes in net current assets and taxes
Changes in net current assets and provisions
Change in receivables
Change in prepayments and other assets
Change in operating liabilities
Change in advances payable and other current liabilities
Change in provisions
Change in deferred income
Income tax paid
Net cash flow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets
Proceeds from sale of associates
Receipts from decrease in loans given
Proceeds for settlement of derivatives
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Acquisitions of associates
Acquisitions of other investments
Expenses for increasing loans given
Payment for settlement of derivatives
Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Repayment of short-term loans
Receipts from long-term loans received
Receipts from short-term loans received
Change in equity
Dividends paid
Net cash from financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

8,203,527

14,035,289

1,363,191
1,731

1,114,446
84

-3,602

-1,503

0

740

0
-6,170,377
3,591,808
0
1,401,357

926
-1,222,898
3,918,742
-3,139
2,292,207

8,387,634

20,134,894

3,585,455
-8,207,862
11,954,584
869,571
-623,782
-439
-3,223,271

-65,978,840
-16,462,283
31,206,924
36,361,335
734,664
439
-2,191,163

12,741,890

3,805,970

1,145,125

476,814

9,132

1,503

486,778
874,658
0
-1,833,387
0
-12,682
-2,274,438
-12,050,324

0
45,815,720
10,618,350
-1,488,728
-236,861
-8,760
-47,280,415
0

-13,655,139

7,897,623

-1,597,113
-18,000,000
6,168,941
14,047,640
4,000,000
-2,000,000

-1,128,902
-52,140,000
0
47,340,000
3,000,000
-6,000,000

2,619,468
20,354,906
0

-8,928,902
17,580,216
0

1,706,219
22,061,125

2,774,691
20,354,906
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13.5. Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Changes in 2012
Changes in equity
Amounts in €

Share
Share
Legal
capital premium reserve

Hedging Translation
reserve
reserve

31/12/2011
15,877,610
0 1,587,762 8,069,930
Balance at 01/01/2012
15,877,610
0 1,587,762 8,069,930
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the period
Profit or loss for the period
0
0
0
0
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation
0
0
differences
Effective portion of changes in
fair value of cash flow hedges,
0
0
net of tax
Net change in fair value of
cash flow hedges transferred
0
0
to profit of loss, net of tax
Total other comprehensive
0
0
income
Total comprehensive income
0
0
(loss) for the period
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Entry of additional capital
0 4,000,000
payments
Dividend (shares) payout
0
0

Retained
earnings

Owners
of the
company

Total
equity

-307,875 24,144,127 49,371,554 49,371,554
-307,875 24,144,127 49,371,554 49,371,554
0

8,203,527

8,203,527

8,203,527

0

-155,193

-52,498

-207,691

-207,691

0 -3,819,336

0

0 -3,819,336 -3,819,336

0 -8,906,203

0

0 -8,906,203 -8,906,203

0 -12,725,539

-155,193

-52,498 -12,933,230 -12,933,230

0 -12,725,539

-155,193

8,151,029 -4,729,703 -4,729,703

0 4,000,000 4,000,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 -2,000,000 -2,000,000 -2,000,000

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control
Balance at 31/12/2012
15,877,610 4,000,000 1,587,762 -4,655,609
-463,068 30,295,156 46,641,851 46,641,851

Changes in 2011
Changes in equity
Amounts in €

Share
capital

Legal Hedging Translation
reserve reserve
reserve

31/12/2010
12,877,610 1,287,762
Balance at 01/01/2011
12,877,610 1,287,762
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the period
Profit or loss for the period
0 300,000
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Owners
of the
company

Total
equity

0
0

-254,522
-254,522

16,390,392 30,301,242 30,301,242
16,390,392 30,301,242 30,301,242

0

0

13,735,287 14,035,287 14,035,287

Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation differences
0
0
0
Effective portion of changes in fair
0
0 8,069,930
value of cash flow hedges, net of tax
Total other comprehensive income
0
0 8,069,930
Total comprehensive income (loss) for
0 300,000 8,069,930
the period
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Entry of additional capital payments
3,000,000
0
0
Dividend (shares) payout
0
0
0
Balance at 31/12/2011

Retained
earnings

15,877,610 1,587,762 8,069,930

-53,353
0
-53,353

18,448

-34,905

-34,905

0 8,069,930 8,069,930
18,448

8,035,025

8,035,025

-53,353

13,753,735 22,070,312 22,070,312

0
0

0 3,000,000 3,000,000
-6,000,000 -6,000,000 -6,000,000

-307,875

24,144,127 49,371,554 49,371,554
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14. Notes to the consolidated financial
statements
14.1. Reporting company
GEN-I, d.o.o. (hereinafter: the Company) is based in
Slovenia. Its registered office is at Vrbina 17, SI-8270
Krško, Slovenia. The consolidated financial statements
of the GEN-I Group for the business year that ended on
December 31, 2012 include data on the parent company
GEN-I, d.o.o. and its subsidiaries (hereinafter: the GEN-I
Group or the Group).
The Group’s core activities include trading electricity
internationally on a number of exchanges and
organized electricity platforms and through various
forms of bilateral trading, selling electricity to endcustomers, and purchasing the electricity necessary for
trading and sales from producers. The Group expanded
its activities in 2012 to include the sale of natural gas.

14.2. Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and the provisions of the Companies
Act. The financial statements were approved by the
Company’s Management Board on February 26, 2013.

(b) Measurement basis

estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
Estimates and assumptions are mainly associated with:
• estimated useful lives of amortizable assets,
• asset impairment,
• employee earnings, provisions,
• contingent liabilities, and
• derivatives.

14.3. Significant accounting
policies
Companies of the GEN-I Group consistently applied
the accounting policies described below to all periods
presented in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Basis of consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the entity so
as to derive benefits from its activities. The Group’s
influence is assessed based on the existence and
effect of potential voting rights currently exercisable
or convertible. The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date when control starts to the date it ceases.
Accounting policies applied by subsidiaries are adapted
to the Group’s accounting policies.

The consolidated financial statements were compiled
on a historical cost basis, except in the case of
derivatives and financial instruments at fair value
(ii) Investments in associates
through profit and loss, where fair value was used.
Associates are entities in which the Group has
significant influence but not control over the financial
(c) Functional and presentation currency
and business policies. Significant control exists if the
The consolidated financial statements are expressed Group owns between 20% and 50% of voting rights in
in euros, the functional currency of the controlling another company.
company GEN-I, d.o.o. All accounting data presented in
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
euros are rounded to the nearest integer.
equity method and are recognized at historical cost,
including any transaction costs.
(d) Use of estimates and judgments
When preparing the financial statements, management
is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported values of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses in accordance with the IFRS.
Actual results may vary from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on a regular basis. Revisions to accounting
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The consolidated financial statements include the
Group’s share in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. If the Group’s share in the loss exceeds its
share in a company, the carrying amount of the Group’s
share is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further
losses is discontinued.
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(iii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

financial asset generated or transferred by the Group is
Balances, gains or losses, and revenues and expenses recognized as an individual asset or liability. Financial
that arise from transactions within the Group were not assets and liabilities are netted, and the net amount is
disclosed in the statement of financial position if and
included in the consolidated financial statements.
only if the Group has the legal right to settle the net
amount or cash in the asset and settle its liability. Non(b) Foreign currency
derivative financial instruments include the following:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held(i) Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are converted into the to-maturity financial assets, loans and receivables, and
functional currency of the companies within the Group available-for-sale financial assets.
using the exchange rate applied on the day they arise.
Cash, cash equivalents and liabilities denominated in Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
foreign currencies are converted into the functional Instruments are stated at fair value through profit or
currency using the exchange rate applicable at the end loss if they are available for sale or if they are classified
of the reporting period. Positive or negative exchange as such after initial recognition. Financial assets are
differences are differences between the amortized cost measured at fair value through profit or loss if the
in the functional currency at the beginning of a period, Group is capable of managing the assets and deciding
increased or decreased by the amount of applicable on their purchase and sale based on fair value. After
interest and payments in the period, and the amortized initial recognition, the related transaction costs are
cost expressed in foreign currency, converted using the recognized in the income statement when they arise.
exchange rate at the end of the period. Non-monetary Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value, and the amount of any changes
and measured at fair value are converted into the in the fair value is recognized in the income statement.
functional currency at the exchange rate applicable on
the day their fair value was determined. Exchange rate Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed
differences are recognized in the income statement.
or determinable payments that are not quoted on an
active market. They are initially recognized at fair value
(ii) Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign companies are and increased by any direct transaction costs. After
converted into euros using the exchange rate applicable initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured
at the end of the reporting period. The revenues and at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
expenses of foreign companies, with the exception of reduced by impairment losses. Loans and receivables
hyperinflationary economies, are converted into euros include operating and other receivables.
at exchange rates applicable on the day of conversion.
Any exchange rate differences are recognized in other Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and
comprehensive income and disclosed in the foreign sight deposits. Bank overdraft facilities repayable on
currency translation reserve (FCTR) as an item of equity. demand, which form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management, are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement.
(c) Financial instruments
(i) Non-derivative financial assets
Loans, receivables and deposits are initially recognized
on the day they arise. Other financial assets (including
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss) are
initially recognized on the exchange date or on the day
the Group becomes a party
to the instrument’s contractual provisions. Financial
assets are derecognized when the contractual rights
to cash flows from these assets expire, or when the
Group transfers the rights to cash flows from financial
assets based on a contract that involves the transfer
of all risks and benefits associated with the ownership
of the financial asset. Each share in the transferred
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(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Any debt securities issued and the underlying liabilities
are initially recognized on the day they arise. All other
financial liabilities are initially recognized on the
trading day when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial liabilities are derecognized if the obligations
set out in the contract are fulfilled, cancelled or have
lapsed.
Financial assets and liabilities are netted, and the
amount is disclosed in the statement of financial

ANNUAL REPORT GEN-I FOR BUSINESS YEAR 2012
FINANCIAL REPORT GEN-I GROUP

position if and only if the Group has the legally on changes in current market prices and the residual
recognized right to offset the recognized amounts and maturity of the forward contract.
intends to either settle the net amount or cash in the
Standardized forward contracts (futures) are binding
asset and settle its liability.
agreements on the purchase or sale of a standardized
The Group discloses non-derivative financial liabilities quantity of well-defined standard quality instruments
as other financial liabilities. Such financial liabilities are on a standardized day in the future (standard
initially disclosed at fair value increased by any costs specification) at a price determined in the present.
directly attributable to the transaction. After initial Standardized products are a prerequisite for exchange
trading. The main advantage of standardized products
recognition, financial liabilities are measured at
is the minimization of transaction costs associated with
amortized cost less payment of principal.
trading. When such products are used, there is no need
Other financial liabilities include loans, bank overdrafts, for buyers and sellers to define the contractual elements
of each transaction; they only need to agree on the
and operating and other liabilities.
price of individual forward contracts. Transactions are
concluded without the physical presence of the goods.
(iii) Share capital
Share capital is the called-up capital contributed by A standardized forward contract comes into effect only
shareholders. The Company’s total equity comprises when registered with a clearing (settlement) house.
called-up capital, the share premium account, legal This type of contract is transferable to enable exchange
reserves, reserves for cash flow hedging and retained trading and its liquidity is determined by exchange
trading volumes. Non-standardized forward contracts,
earnings.
on the other hand, are not liquid because there is
hardly and exchange taking place with these contracts.
Dividends
Dividends are recognized as liabilities and stated in the When trading forward contracts, a security deposit
period in which the general meeting of shareholders must be placed with the clearing house for both sales
and purchases This deposit includes an initial margin
decides on their payment.
and a variation margin.
(iv) Derivatives
The Group uses derivatives to hedge against market In 2011, the Group met hedge accounting requirements
in order to hedge against risks associated with
and currency risks.
electricity price changes. When introducing hedge
To hedge against market risks caused by electricity price accounting, the Group prepared formal documents
fluctuations, the Group uses forward contracts and clarifying the relationship between hedging and risk
a number of different financial trading instruments. management targets within the Group, and outlined a
To minimize currency risks, the Group primarily uses strategy for the hedge accounting project. The Group
defined hedging instruments, the items that were
forward currency contracts.
being hedged, the types of risks for which hedging was
The Group uses non-standardized forward contracts to used, and the methods for assessing the effectiveness
hedge against market risks arising from electricity prices of hedging instruments.
and currency risks. These are agreements on the sale or
purchase of an underlying instrument whose price is The Group assesses the effectiveness of hedging
determined at the time of the agreement’s execution, instruments at the start of a hedge relationship and
but with a future effective date. The prices of forward also on a regular quarterly basis. A hedge is considered
transactions are determined based on the underlying highly effective if changes in the hedging instrument
financial instrument. At the time of execution, the value offset the changes in the cash flow of the hedged
of the contract equals zero because the strike price (the item by between 80% and 125%. In the case of hedging
agreed settlement price) is equal to the forward price. against cash flow risks, the forecast transaction, which
Not taking into account the costs of supply, the value is the subject of the hedge, must be highly probable and
of a non-standardized forward contract is equal to the exposed to cash flow changes that may significantly
difference between the current price of an underlying affect profit or loss.
instrument at maturity and the contractual forward
price or the agreed settlement price. The forward price Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value; any
changes during the validity of the contract depending transaction costs are recognized in the income statement.
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After initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair produced comprise the costs of materials, direct costs
value. Any gain or loss arising from the remeasurement of labor, other costs that can be directly attributed to
enabling the use of assets for their intended purpose,
of fair value is calculated as described below.
costs of disposal and removal, costs of restoring the
location of the asset to its original state and capitalized
Cash flow hedge
The Group accounts for cash flow hedges used for borrowing costs. Any computer software that
standardized forward contracts and non-standardized contributes significantly to the assets’ functionality
forward transactions by recognizing the proportion of the should be capitalized as part of these assets.
gain or loss from a hedging instrument that is deemed
effective in other comprehensive income; the amount is Components of items of property, plant and equipment
recognized as a hedging reserve and disclosed directly that have different useful lives are accounted for as
in equity. The ineffective proportion of the gain or loss separate items.
from a hedging instrument is recognized in the income
statement as other operating revenues or expenses. The (ii) Subsequent costs
amounts recognized in equity as a hedging reserve are Costs arising from the replacement of parts of fixed
transferred to the income statement in the period in assets are recognized at the carrying amount if future
which the hedged item affects profit or loss.
economic benefits associated with a part are likely
to increase and if its historical cost can be measured
If a hedging instrument no longer meets hedge reliably. All other costs (such as daily maintenance)
accounting criteria, or if it is terminated, sold, are recognized as expenses in the income statement
revoked, or exercised, hedge accounting ceases. The immediately after they arise.
accumulated gain or loss recognized in equity remains
in equity until the forecast transaction occurs.
(iii) Spare parts
Spare parts and maintenance equipment of lower
value with useful lives of up to one year are treated
Fair value hedging
The Group calculates fair value hedges against the risk as inventory and recognized as costs in the income
of fluctuating prices for standardized forward contracts statement. Spare parts and equipment of significant
by recognizing changes in the fair value of derivatives value with estimated useful lives exceeding one
immediately in the income statement. Gains or losses year are recognized as items of property, plant and
from hedged items that can be attributed to hedged equipment.
risks must be adjusted to the carrying amount of the
hedged items and recognized in the income statement. (iv) Depreciation
If an unrecognized firm commitment is defined as Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
a hedge item, the subsequent cumulative change method based on the useful life of each component
in the fair value of the firm commitment that can of an item of property, plant and equipment. This is
be prescribed to a hedge is recognized as an asset or the most accurate method for predicting asset usage
liability, with the relevant gain or loss recognized in patterns. Leased assets are depreciated over the
the income statement. The initial measurement of an shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. Land is
asset or liability arising from the fulfillment of a firm not depreciated.
commitment by the Group is adjusted by including the
cumulative change in fair value of the commitment Estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
that can be attributed to a hedge previously recognized period are as follows:
in the statement of financial position.
• Plant and equipment 			
2 to 5 years
• Furniture and built-in equipment 4 to 5 years

(d) Plant and equipment
Investments in fixed assets owned by third parties are
depreciated for the duration of the lease period (1 to 10
(i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are disclosed years).
at historical cost, reduced by depreciation costs and
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
impairment losses.
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
The historical cost includes the costs that can be directly adjusted if necessary. Estimates regarding fixed assets
attributed to the procurement of assets. Costs of assets were not revised during the business year.
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(e) Intangible assets

the value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Impairment loss
associated with available-for-sale financial assets is
(i) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets with limited useful lives calculated using the current fair value of the asset.
acquired by the Group are disclosed at historical cost,
reduced by amortization costs and accumulated Impairment assessments of significant financial
assets are carried out individually. The impairment of
impairment losses.
remaining financial assets is assessed collectively with
regard to their common risk exposure characteristics.
(ii) Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs associated with intangible assets
are only capitalized if they increase future economic All impairment losses are reported in the Group’s
benefits arising from the asset to which the cost is income statement for the accounting period.
related. All other costs are recognized as expenses in
Impairment losses are derecognized if they can be
the income statement when they arise.
objectively associated with events that occurred after
their recognition. Impairment losses associated with
(iii) Amortization
financial assets that are stated at amortized cost and
Amortization is calculated based on an asset’s historical available-for-sale financial assets that are considered
debt instruments are derecognized in the income
cost or another amount that is used in its place.
statement.
Amortization is recognized in the income statement
using the straight-line method and is based on the (ii) Non-financial assets
useful life of intangible assets (with the exception of At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying
goodwill), starting from the date the asset is available amount of non-financial assets (except deferred tax
for use. This is the most accurate method for predicting assets) to determine if there are any indications of
the patterns of future economic benefits associated impairment. If there are such indications, the asset’s
with the asset. Estimated useful lives for the current recoverable value is assessed. Impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life not
and comparative year are as follows:
yet available for use is reviewed at each reporting date.
• Software 2 to 5 years
Amortization methods, useful lives and other values The recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating
are reviewed at the end of each business year and units is the higher of their value in use or fair value
reduced by costs of sale. In determining an asset’s value
adjusted if necessary.
in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their current value at a pre-tax discount rate that
(f) Asset impairment
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In order to
(i) Financial assets (including receivables)
The Group assesses the value of financial assets at test them for impairment, assets are consolidated into
the reporting date to determine whether there is any the smallest asset groups that generate cash inflows.
objective evidence of asset impairment. A financial
asset is considered impaired if there is objective The impairment of an asset or cash-generating unit is
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more recognized whenever its carrying amount exceeds its
events that led to a decrease in estimated future cash recoverable value. The impairment is recognized in the
income statement.
flows of the financial asset.
With respect to other assets, impairment losses
from previous periods are evaluated on the balance
sheet date, to determine whether or not there has
been a reduction of loss and whether or not the loss
still exists. Impairment losses are derecognized if the
Impairment loss associated with a financial asset estimates that were used to determine the recoverable
disclosed at amortized cost is measured as the value of assets have changed. An impairment loss is
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and derecognized to the extent that the asset’s carrying
Impairment loss associated with a financial asset
that is disclosed at fair value in other comprehensive
income is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the asset.
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amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined in the net amortized
amount if no impairment loss had been recognized for
the asset in previous years.

(g) Employee earnings
Liabilities from short-term employee earnings
are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
recognized as expenses as soon as the work performed
by an employee and related to the short-term earning
is completed.

reduced by returns, discounts and quantity discounts.
Revenues from sales are recognized at the moment
when all significant forms of risks and benefits
connected with the ownership of assets are transferred
to the buyer, when the payment and the associated
costs are certain, and when the Group
ceases to have effective control over the goods sold.
If discounts are likely to be offered and their amount
can be measured reliably, they are recognized as
revenue reductions at the time when the sale itself is
recognized.

(ii) Revenues from services rendered
Revenues from services rendered are recognized in the
income statement according to the stage of completion
Provisions are recognized if the Group has a present of individual transactions at the end of the reporting
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past period. The stage of completion is assessed based on
event which can be measured reliably, and it is probable inspections of the work performed.
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are discounted by (iii) Commissions
determining expected future cash flows at a pre-tax If a company within the Group acts as the intermediary
in a transaction and not as a parent company, the
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the Group’s net commission is disclosed as revenue.
risks specific to the liability.
(iv) Revenues from rents
Revenues from rents are recognized on a straight-line
Provisions for severance payments and long-service
basis over the term of lease.
bonuses
Pursuant to the law, the collective agreement, and
internal rules, the Group is obliged to pay long-service (j) Government grants
bonuses and severance payments to employees, and
has created long-term provisions for this purpose. All types of government grants are initially recognized
There are no other pension liabilities. Provisions are as deferred revenue if there is reasonable assurance
created in the amount of estimated future severance that the grants will be received and that the Group will
payments and long-service bonuses, discounted at the comply with the associated conditions. Government
end of the reporting period.
grants that compensate the Group for costs are
recognized as revenues on a systematic basis in the
The Group created provisions for severance payments period in which the costs occur. Government grants
and long-service bonuses based on the current value associated with assets are recognized as other
of its liabilities to employees. Their amount was operating revenues in the income statement on a
determined based on an actuarial calculation of future systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.
payments to each employee, taking into account the
costs of severance payments upon retirement and the (k) Financial income and financial costs
costs of all estimated long-service bonuses until the
day of retirement. The chosen discount interest rate Financial income includes interest from investments,
was 4.60% p.a., which was the return on 10-year gilt- dividend income, changes in the fair value of financial
edged corporate bonds in the euro area at the end of assets at fair value through profit or loss, positive
November 2012, plus a local risk premium.
exchange rate differences, and gains from hedging
instruments recognized in the income statement.
Interest income is recognized when it arises at a
(i) Revenues
contractually agreed interest rate.
(i) Revenues from goods sold
Revenues from goods sold are recognized at the fair Financial costs include borrowing costs, negative
value of payments received or the resulting receivables, exchange rate differences, changes in the fair value

(h) Provisions
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(n) New standards and interpretations that have

of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
not entered into force
losses from impairments of financial assets and losses
from hedging instruments recognized in the income
statement. Borrowing costs are recognized in the income The new standards and interpretations stated below
statement at a contractually agreed interest rate.
have not entered into force and were not taken into
account in the preparation of financial statements as
at December 31, 2012:
(l) Income tax
Income tax includes current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognized in the income statement, except
where it relates to business combinations or items
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

• Amendment to IFRS 7 Disclosures – Offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities
(Applies to annual accounting periods beginning
on January 1, 2013 and to interim periods within
those accounting periods. Application prior to the
aforementioned date is permitted.)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
profit for the business year, using tax rates in force at The amendment includes new requirements regarding
the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to the disclosure of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are:
tax payable in respect of previous years.
• offset in the statement of financial position; or
Deferred tax is disclosed taking into account temporary • the subject of executable general agreements on
offsetting or similar agreements.
differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
relevant amounts for tax reporting purposes. Deferred The aforementioned amendment is not expected to
tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
be applied to temporary differences when they are statements, as its does not offset financial assets and
reversed based on laws that are in force or substantively financial liabilities, and has not concluded any general
agreements on offsetting.
in force at the end of the reporting period.
The Group must reconcile deferred tax assets and
liabilities if it has an enforceable right to do so and if
these assets and liabilities relate to income tax for the
same tax authority and the same taxable unit, or if the
tax relates to different taxable units that intend to
pay or receive the resulting net amount or settle their
liabilities and reverse the assets.
A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reduced by the amount of tax benefits that
are not expected to be realized.

(m) Segment reporting
An operating segment is a part of the Group that
carries out business activities from which it generates
income and incurs costs that relate to transactions
with other members of the same group. In 2012, the
Group defined business segments for the purpose
of internal reporting, but does not disclose them for
external reporting purposes. There are two segments
used for internal reporting in the Group: the wholesale
segment and the retail segment.
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• IFRS 13 – Fair value measurement
(Applies to annual accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013. Application prior to the
aforementioned date is permitted.)
IFRS 13 replaces instructions regarding the measurement
of fair value set out in individual standards with one
source or standard. That standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and
states disclosure requirements associated with fair
value measurement. IFRS 13 defines “how” to measure
fair value when so required or permitted by other IFRS.
The standard does not introduce new requirements
for measuring assets and liabilities at fair value, nor
does it distinguish exceptions or cases when fair value
measurement is unfeasible that currently exist in
certain standards.
The standard includes a comprehensive framework
of disclosures that provides additional provisions to
existing disclosure requirements, on the basis of which
the users of financial statements can more easily
assess the methods and inputs used to measure fair
value, and the impact of measurements (in the event
of multiple measurements that include significant
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inputs) on profit or loss or other comprehensive
income.
The Group does not expect the standard to have a
significant impact on its financial statements, as the
Management Board believes that the methods and
assumptions currently used in the measurement of
fair value are in line with the provisions of IFRS 13.
• IAS 19 (2011) – Employee benefits
(Applies to annual accounting periods beginning
on or before January 1, 2013. Transitional provisions
apply. Application prior to the aforementioned date is
permitted.)
This amendment requires that actuarial gains and
losses be recognized directly in other comprehensive
income. The standard abolishes the “pasu” approach
used for the recognition of actuarial gains and losses
and prevents companies from recognizing all changes
in the scope of a commitment for specific benefits
and compensation program in the income statement,
as currently permitted in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 19. The amendment also requires
that the expected return from a compensation
program recognized in the income statement be
calculated on the basis of the criterion used to discount
the commitment for specific benefits.
The Group does not expect this amendment to have a
significant effect on its financial statements, as it does
not have compensation programs.
• Amendment to IFRS 32 – Offsetting of financial assets
and financial liabilities
(Applies to annual accounting periods beginning
on or before January 1, 2014. Application prior to the
aforementioned date is permitted, but conditional on
disclosures that are in line with the amendment to
IFRS 7 Disclosures – Offsetting of financial assets and
financial liabilities.)
The amendment does not introduce new requirements
regarding the offsetting of financial assets and
liabilities, but clarifies offsetting criteria and deals
with inconsistencies that arise in the process.
According to the amendment, the Group has a legally
enforceable right to offsetting if:
the right is not conditional on a future event; and
the right is only legally enforceable in the scope of
operations or in the event of default, or the insolvency
or bankruptcy of one or more counterparties.
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The Group does not expect this amendment to have a
significant effect on its financial statements, as it does
not offset financial assets and financial liabilities, and
does not conclude general agreements on offsetting.

14.4. Determining fair value
In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies,
the measurement of the fair value of both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities is necessary
in several instances. The fair value of individual asset
groups for accounting and reporting purposes was
determined using the methods described below. Where
additional clarifications regarding the assumptions
used to determine fair value are necessary, they are
given in the breakdown of the Group’s individual
assets or liabilities.
(i) Property, plant and equipment
The fair value of property, plant and equipment from
business combinations is equal to their market value.
The market value of property is equal to the estimated
value for which property, having been appropriately
advertised, could be exchanged on the valuation date
between knowledgeable and willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction. The market value of plant,
equipment and small tools is based on the quoted
market price of similar objects.
(ii) Intangible assets
The fair value of patents and trademarks acquired
through business combinations is based on the
discounted estimated future value of royalties whose
payment will not be necessary thanks to the ownership
of the patent or trademark. The fair value of customer
relationships obtained through business combinations
is determined using a special multi-period excess
earnings method, while the value of individual assets
is determined after the fair return from all assets that
contribute to the cash flow is deducted.
(iii) Operating and other receivables
The fair value of operating and other receivables is
equal to the carrying amount of future cash flows,
discounted using the market interest rate at the end of
the reporting period.
(iv) Derivatives
The fair value of forward contracts is equal to their
quoted market price at the end of the reporting period
if the market price is available. If it is not available,
fair value is determined as the difference between
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the contractual value of the forward contract and its
current bid value, taking into account the residual
maturity of the contract and using a risk-free interest
rate (based on government bonds).
(v) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Fair value for reporting purposes is calculated based
on the present value of future principal and interest
payments, discounted at a market interest rate at the
end of the reporting period. The market interest rate
for finance leases is determined by comparing such
leases with similar lease contracts.

14.5. Financial risk management
The GEN-I Group is exposed to the following risks in its
operations:
• strategic,
• financial and
• operational risks.
The GEN-I Group’s prudent approach to risk
management helps it maintain its high level of
operational quality and is crucial for achieving its
business goals. The use of standard methodologies
and risk management procedures enables quality
risk assessment, timely responses, and minimum
exposure of the GEN-I Group to major risks. A detailed
description of individual risks and the appropriate risk
management procedures can be found in the business
report in Chapter 8 Risk Management.
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14.6. Overview of all subsidiaries in the gen-i Group
Group companies

% Of ownership

Investment value Equity of subsidiary

Amounts in €

GEN-I, d.o.o., Belgrade
GEN-I Zagreb, d.o.o.
GEN-I Budapest Kft.
GEN-I, d.o.o., Sarajevo
GEN-I dooel Skopje
GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k.
GEN-I Athens SMLLC.
S.C. GEN-I BUCHAREST
S.R.L.
GEN-I Sofia SpLLC
Gen-I Milano S.r.l.
Gen-I Vienna GmbH
Gen-I Istanbul Ltd.

Share capital
of majority
shareholder

31/12/
2012

31/12/
2011

31/12/
2012

31/12/
2011

31/12/
2012

31/12/
2011

31/12/
2012

31/12/
2011

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

150,000
204,910
203,915
512,847
20,000
46,452
150,000

150,000
204,910
203,915
512,847
20,000
46,452
150,000

1,864,298
671,947
385,681
889,755
821,426
988,129
214,561

1,966,486
513,567
285,177
814,462
1,925,816
4,736,616
603,237

678,451
198,478
187,540
511,292
19,978
43,267
150,000

742,348
199,018
187,540
511,292
19,794
42,957
150,000

100.00%

100.00%

500,000

500,000

921,543

1,891,187

473,979

487,267

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
-

100,830
380,000
50,000
844,566

100,830
100,000
50,000
0

391,605
205,073
205,374
829,717

784,647
-199,814
67,240
0

100,005
100,000
50,000
849,221

100,005
100,000
50,000
0

3,163,519

2,038,954

8,389,109 13,388,621

3,362,211

2,590,221

Total

14.7. Disclosures of items in the financial statements
Disclosure 1: Property, plant and equipment
Property plant and equipment

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Buildings
Other plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment under construction

293,723
836,056
5,357

471,935
823,761
0

Total property, plant and equipment

1,135,136

1,295,696

Amounts in €

Computer equipment and investments in leased office space account for the majority of property, plant and
equipment.
Total investments in property, plant and equipment in 2012 amounted to EUR 574,791, most of which related to
purchases of computer equipment.
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Assets of subsidiary Liabilities of subsidiary

31/12/
2012

31/12/
2011

31/12/
2012

31,213,940
4,538,427
862,809
5,196,668
14,451,289
12,054,210
22,682,242

57,507,962
20,796,241
1,637,722
10,439,853
14,363,619
20,812,565
23,518,539

29,349,642
3,866,479
477,128
4,306,913
13,629,863
11,066,081
22,467,681

6,322,833

11,641,492

5,401,290

9,750,303

13,884,472
561,832
1,376,691
1,883,585

12,796,014
3,215,564
2,645,252
0

13,492,866
356,759
1,171,317
1,053,867

12,011,368
3,415,378
2,578,012
0

115,028,998

31/12/
2011

Income of subsidiary

Net profit or loss of
subsidiary

Number of
employees in
subsidiary

31/12/
2012

31/12/
2011

31/12/
2012

55,541,476 221,469,681
20,282,674 90,446,933
1,352,544
1,628,343
9,625,390 49,484,558
12,437,801 102,964,656
16,075,949
91,213,890
22,915,302 200,802,794

188,049,051
84,886,409
8,247,139
28,021,569
51,056,226
42,566,354
121,648,690

1,189,982
475,724
110,736
378,463
787,670
948,001
41,261

1,244,797
318,691
-116,336
303,171
1,906,953
4,697,218
257,518

4
2
1
1
1
2
0

3
1
1
1
1
1
0

79,387,682

82,957,702

320,718

1,416,861

1

1

98,841,822
164,435
12,613,325
870,368

34,652,645
11,312,185
9,292,384
0

291,600
122,037
155,374
-19,854

714,792
-283,779
39,683
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

4,801,714 10,499,564

12

9

179,374,823 106,639,886 165,986,197 949,888,674 662,690,354

31/12/ 31/12/
2011
2012

31/12/
2011

Changes in 2012
Property plant and equipment

Buildings

Amounts in €

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at 01/01/2012
Other acquisitions
Write downs
Disposals
Transfers within property plant and equipment
Effect of movements in exchange rates

Other
Production plant and
plant and
equipment under
equipment construction and advances

Total

754,474
0
-3,756
0
10,207
0

1,771,462
31,224
-7,589
-30,308
528,003
-1,799

0
543,567
0
0
-538,210
0

2,525,936
574,791
-11,345
-30,308
0
-1,799

Balance at 31/12/2012
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Balance at 01/01/2012
Write downs
Disposals
Depreciation expense

760,925

2,290,993

5,357

3,057,275

282,539
-3,756
188,419

947,699
-5,862
-29,003
542,103

0
0
0
0

1,230,238
-9,618
-29,003
730,522

Balance at 31/12/2012
Carrying amount at 01/01/2012
Carrying amount at 31/12/2012

467,202
471,935
293,723

1,454,937
823,763
836,056

0
0
5,357

1,922,139
1,295,698
1,135,136
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Changes in 2011
Property plant and equipment

Buildings

Amounts in €

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at 01/01/2011
Other acquisitions
Write downs
Disposals
Transfers within property plant and equipment

Other
Production plant and
plant and
equipment under
equipment construction and advances

Total

224,966
0
-4,224
0
533,732

1,329,222
6,128
-344
-3,208
439,664

114,645
858,751
0
0
-973,396

1,668,833
864,879
-4,568
-3,208
0

Balance at 31/12/2011
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Balance at 01/01/2011
Write downs
Disposals
Depreciation expense

754,473

1,771,462

0

2,525,935

147,405
-4,224
0
139,358

449,601
-291
-2,468
500,857

0
0
0
0

597,006
-4,515
-2,468
640,215

Balance at 31/12/2011
Carrying amount at 01/01/2011
Carrying amount at 31/12/2011

282,538
77,561
471,935

947,699
879,621
823,763

0
114,645
0

1,230,237
1,071,827
1,295,698

Disclosure 2: Intangible assets
Intangible assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

884,751
523,491

650,482
134,261

1,408,242

784,743

Amounts in €

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets under construction and development and advances
Total intangible assets

The Group’s other intangible assets include property rights in the form of software, which amounted to EUR
138,937, and long-term licenses for trading on foreign markets in the amount of EUR 745,814.
Investments in intangible assets were made by the parent company in the amount of EUR 1,137,077 and relate to
software intended as IT support for employees, support for electricity sales to end-customers and server support.
A portion of the aforementioned assets in the amount of EUR 747,846 was activated already in 2012.
Changes in intangible assets in 2012
Intangible assets

Other intangible
assets

Intangible assets
under construction and
development and advances

Total

1,839,886
121,519
-918
747,846
721

134,261
1,137,077
0
-747,846
0

1,974,147
1,258,596
-918
0
-720

Balance at 31/12/2012
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Balance at 01/01/2012
Disposals
Amortization expense

2,709,054

523,492

3,232,546

1,189,404
2,230
632,669

0
0
0

1,189,404
2,230
632,669

Balance at 31/12/2012
Carrying amount at 01/01/2012
Carrying amount at 31/12/2012

1,824,303
650,482
884,750

0
134,261
523,492

1,824,303
784,743
1,408,242

Amounts in €

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at 01/01/2012
Other acquisitions
Disposals
Transfers within intangible assets
Effect of movements in exchange rates
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Changes in intangible assets in 2011
Intangible assets

Other intangible
assets

Intangible assets
under construction and
development and advances

Total

1,282,726
0
-199
531,910

67,771
623,849
0
-531,910

1,350,497
623,849
-199
0

Balance at 31/12/2011
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Balance at 01/01/2011
Write downs
Amortization expense

1,839,886

134,261

1,974,147

715,372
-199
474,231

0
0
0

715,372
-199
474,231

Balance at 31/12/2011
Carrying amount at 01/01/2011
Carrying amount at 31/12/2011

1,189,404
567,354
650,482

0
67,771
134,261

1,189,404
635,125
784,743

Amounts in €

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at 01/01/2011
Other acquisitions
Write downs
Transfers within intangible assets

Disclosure 3: Investments in associates
The Group sold its 40% stake in Enerve d.o.o. in 2012, resulting in a gain of EUR 243,639.
Disclosure 4: Non-current receivables and loans
Non-current receivables and loans

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Total non-current operating receivables
Non-current financial receivables

219,710
53,117

183,933
40,435

Total non-current receivables and loans granted

272,827

224,368

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Trade receivables
Interest receivables
Other receivables related to financial income
Other operating receivables
Receivables from operating activities on behalf of third parties

126,844,393
167,754
8,711,956
23,385,084
550

141,640,412
200,061
0
21,785,771
98,366

Total operating receivables

159,109,737

163,724,610

Amounts in €

Disclosure 5: Operating receivables
Operating receivables
Amounts in €

The Group’s consolidated current operating receivables at the end of 2012 were down 2.8% on the end of the
previous year. Trade receivables resulting from regular operations accounted for the largest portion of operating
receivables.
Customers settled their receivables by the contractually agreed dates or with a slight delay. In the case of repeated
payment delays or delays in the payment of larger amounts, the Group charges customers default interest at a
rate determined by existing agreements or in accordance with the applicable local legislation.
Receivables from customers that purchase electricity and cross-border capacity rights based on general or annual
agreements are usually secured with bills of exchange or bank guarantees. Such collateral is used for receivables
that exceed the limits set for individual customers. Receivables from some customers who have signed EFET
general agreements with the Group are well-regulated by the agreements. In some cases, the Group does not
request any collateral for its receivables because of the customers’ strategic position and/or financial stability.
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Other operating receivables comprised current receivables from deductible VAT and current receivables from
prepayments of corporate income tax, of which the parent company accounts for EUR 14.04 million and its
subsidiaries for the difference, with the following subsidiaries accounting for the majority of that difference:
GEN-I Sofia SpLLC (EUR 2.86 million), GEN-I d.o.o. Belgrade (EUR 1.86 million) and GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k. (EUR 1.35
million).
The Group calculated fair value hedges for contracts for future sales and purchases of electricity that were
concluded from January 1, 2012 onwards. The majority of other receivables linked to financial income thus related
to changes in the fair value of physical contracts for sales and purchases of electricity that were hedged using
derivatives (futures) and relate to the following periods:
• the 2013 business year in the amount of EUR 4,358,825
• the 2014 business year in the amount of EUR 3,472,907; and
• the 2015 business year in the amount of EUR 396,585
in the total amount of EUR 8,228,317. The effect of changes in the fair value of physical contracts for sales and
purchases of electricity were offset in the income statement against changes in the fair value of associated
derivatives in the amount of EUR 8,496,365. The net effect in the amount of EUR 268,048 was recognized in other
expenses.

Age structure and changes in the impairment of receivables
Aging of receivables
Amounts in €

Gross amount

Impairment

Gross amount

31/12/2012

Impairment

31/12/2011

Not past due
Past due to 90 days
Past due from 91 to 180 days
Past due from 181 to 360 days
More than one year

146,874,928
8,425,573
263,260
1,524,165
3,707,878

0
134,029
315,315
796,829
439,894

155,879,831
8,303,814
407,326
579,939
637,259

707,433
100,492
233,300
424,345
617,989

Total

160,795,804

1,686,067

165,808,169

2,083,559

The Group’s parent company recorded impairments of receivables in the amount of EUR 649,546, including EUR
358,178 for receivables from companies against which court proceedings to collect debt or bankruptcy or liquidation
proceedings were initiated in 2012. The remaining revalued receivables relate to outstanding receivables in the
amount of EUR 291,368, which will probably not be recovered in full due to the debtor’s insolvency.
In addition to the parent company, receivables in the amount of EUR 1,036,521 were impaired at GEN-I Tirana
Sh.p.k. owing to a fine for the company’s failure to accept electricity. The management assessed that the
collection of these receivables is unlikely as the customer has rejected the invoice in question.
Impaired receivables from customers accounted for 1.05% of all current operating receivables.
Movement of impairment receivables
Amounts in €

Impairment
2012

2011

Opening balance at 01/01
Increase in impairment
Decrease in impairment
Write downs of receivables
Foreign exchange differences

2,083,559
606,105
-128,274
-879,143
3,819

577,284
1,714,362
-207,551
0
-536

Closing balance at 31/12

1,686,066

2,083,559

Additional impairments were created for receivables in 2012 at the parent company in the amount of EUR 280,836
EUR and at GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k. in the amount of EUR 325,269.

84

ANNUAL REPORT GEN-I FOR BUSINESS YEAR 2012
FINANCIAL REPORT GEN-I GROUP

Disclosure 6: Advances and other assets
Prepayments and other assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Advances paid
Short-term deferred costs and/or expenses
Short-term accrued revenue

7,948,099
3,436,981
26,479,650

9,340,339
4,536,938
15,779,590

Total prepayments and other assets

37,864,730

29,656,868

Amounts in €

Advances of EUR 7,948,099 paid by the Group relate to deposits paid for the purchase of cross-border transfer
capacities, advances for electricity purchases and other smaller purchases of goods and services.
The majority of short-term deferred costs and expenses relate to expenses for cross-border transfer capacities,
the electricity supplied in the first quarter of 2013 in the amount of EUR 2,604,608, maintenance costs associated
with property, plant, equipment and intangible assets, accrued bank fees, costs of accessing databases for
electricity trading purposes, and other deferred expenses for the 2013 business year.
Accrued revenues in the amount of EUR 26,479,650 comprise revenues from customers whose electricity and
natural gas purchases will be invoiced in 2013 in accordance with contractual provisions, and accrued revenues
from financial transactions in the amount of EUR 1,142,445.

Disclosure 7: Financial investments and loans
Investments and loans including derivatives

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Current deposits
Loans to others
Current interest receivables

864,475
2,000,000
959

1,464,695
0
9,566

Total investments and loans

2,865,434

1,474,261

Amounts in €

Current deposits were placed in order to obtain bank guarantees. Loans to others comprise a loan to the parent
company with an annual interest rate of 3.5%.
Disclosure 8: Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Cash in banks
Call deposits
Cash in hand

15,478,316
6,562,111
20,698

12,428,724
7,925,656
526

Cash and cash equivalents

22,061,125

20,354,906

Amounts in €

Cash and cash equivalents include bank account balances, cash in hand and call deposits.
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Disclosure 9: Share capital and reserves
Share capital comprises the owners’ cash contributions in the amount of EUR 15,877,610.
Reserves
Reserves

31/12/2012

31/12/2010

4,000,000
1,587,762
-4,655,609
-463,068

0
1,287,762
0
-254,522

469,085

1,033,240

Amounts in €

Share premium
Legal reserve
Fair value reserve
Translation reserve
Total

In 2011, the parent company achieved the legally defined threshold of 10% of share capital for legal reserves,
the amount of which remained unchanged. The balance of the share premium account in the amount of EUR
4,000,000 comprised subsequent payments by the owners.
At the end of 2012, hedging reserves were negative in the amount of EUR 4,655,609 EUR and related to:
a) cash flow hedges from standardized forward contracts and hedges against electricity price fluctuations for:
• the 2013 business year in the negative amount of EUR 4,376,172
• the 2014 business year in the negative amount of EUR 847,599
• the 2015 business year in the negative amount of EUR 376,846
b) cash flow hedges from non-standardized forward contracts and hedges against exchange rate fluctuations
for:
• the 2013 business year in the negative amount of EUR 9,060
• the 2014 business year in the amount of EUR 510
• reduced by deferred taxes in the amount of EUR 953,558.
Exchange rate differences arising from the conversion of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are
recognized directly in other comprehensive income as a foreign currency translation reserve.
Retained earnings
Retained earnings

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Net profit or loss for the period
Retained net profit or loss

8,203,527
22,091,629

13,735,287
10,408,840

Total

30,295,156

24,144,127

Amounts in €

Retained earnings, which amounted to EUR 24,144,127 at the end of 2011, were increased by net profit in the
amount of EUR 8,203,527, and reduced by dividend payments to the parent company’s owners in the amount of
EUR 2,000,000 and exchange rate differences.
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Disclosure 10: Loans
Non-current loans and borrowings

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Amounts in €

Secured bank loans

6,000,000

0

Total non-current loans and borrowings

6,000,000

0

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

10,000,000
22,237

14,000,000
55,289

10,022,237

14,055,289

Current loans and borrowings
Amounts in €

Secured bank loans
Current interest payable
Total current financial liabilities

Loans received were recognized at fair value less acquisition costs. At the reporting date, they were measured at
amortized cost less principal payments, taking into account acquisition costs, discounts and premiums.

Disclosure 11: Cost and maturity of loans
At the reporting date, the parent company’s liabilities from long-term and short-term loans totaled EUR
6,000,000 and EUR 10,000,000, respectively. Loans from Slovenian commercial banks were secured solely by bills
of exchange.
One long-term loan bears a variable interest rate tied to the 3-month EURIBOR with a mark-up of 3%. The final
loan installment is due in 2014.
Short-term loans comprise two loans, the first bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.1% and a revolving loan bearing a
variable interest rate tied to the 3-month EURIBOR with a mark-up of 3%.
Interest expenses for long-term, short-term and revolving loans from domestic commercial banks amounted to
EUR 1,465,217 during the 2012 business year. Interest payable amounted to EUR 22,237 as at December 31, 2012.
New loans raised during the business year totaled EUR 14 million, while loans totaling EUR 18 million were repaid.

Disclosure 12: Other financial liabilities
Other non-current financial liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Amounts in €

Non-current finance lease liabilities

168,941

0

Total non-current financial liabilities

168,941

0

Other financial liabilities comprise the long-term portion of financial leases for vehicles.
Disclosure 13: Non-current provisions
Provisions
Amounts in €

Balance at 01/01/2012
Provisions made during the period
Provisions used during the period
Provisions reversed during the period
Effect of movements in exchange rates
Balance at 31/12/2012
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Provisions for severance
payments and longservice bonuses

Other provisions

Total provisions

94,281
109,660
-17,784
0
0

715,658
0
0
-723,700
8,042

809,939
109,660
-17,784
-723,700
8,042

186,157

0

186,157
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The Group created provisions for severance payments and long-service bonuses based on the carrying amount
of its liabilities to employees.
Their amount was determined based on an actuarial calculation of future payments to each employee, taking into
account the costs of severance payments upon retirement and the costs of all estimated long-service bonuses
until the day of retirement. The chosen discount interest rate was 4.60% p.a., which was the return on 10-year
gilt-edged corporate bonds in the euro area at the end of November 2012, plus a local risk premium.
Other provisions totaling EUR 715,658, which were created in 2011 at GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k. for liabilities from
ongoing tax proceedings, were reversed in 2012 due to final court rulings in the company’s favor. Revenues from
the aforementioned proceedings were recognized in other operating revenues.

Disclosure 14: Deferred taxes
Deferred taxes relating to:

Receivables

Liabilities

Amounts in €

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

126,618
953,558

96,848
0

0
0

0
-2,017,483

126,618
953,558

96,848
-2,017,483

22,568

16,956

0

0

22,568

16,956

1,102,745

113,804

0

-2,017,483

Intangible assets
Derivatives
Provisions for termination severance payments
and long-service bonuses
Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Net effect

1,102,745 -1,903,679

Deferred tax assets that effect operating results are recognized in the income statement. In 2012, the Group
recorded an increase in deferred tax assets in the amount of additionally created provisions for long-service
bonuses and severance payments, for the amortization of intangible assets in cases where amortization exceeded
the amount deductible for tax purposes, and for financial instruments used in cash flow hedging, where the
effective portion of the hedge was recognized directly in other comprehensive income.
Changes in temporary differences
Changes in temporary
differences in the period
Amounts in €

Intangible assets
Derivatives
Provisions for severance
payments and long-service
bonuses
Total

31/12/ Recognized
Recognized
2010
in the
in other
income comprehensive
statement
income

31/12/ Recognized
Recognized
2011
in the
in other
income comprehensive
statement
income

61,207
0

35,641
0

0
-2,017,483

96,848
-2,017,483

29,771
0

13,777

3,178

0

16,955

5,612

74,984

38,819

-2,017,483 -1,903,680

35,383

31/12/
2012

0 126,619
2,971,042 953,559
0

22,567

2,971,042 1,102,745

Disclosure 15: Other current financial liabilities
Current financial liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Current finance lease liabilities
Derivatives

47,640
444,419

0
554,277

Total other current financial liabilities

492,059

554,277

Amounts in €

Other current financial liabilities comprise agreements concluded with financial institutions for the purpose of
hedging against foreign currency risks and the current portion of a finance lease, as recognized at the parent
company.
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Disclosure 16: Operating liabilities
Current operating liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

109,733,869
1,345,136
10,184,248
302,857
0

92,202,367
1,152,137
15,807,932
240,941
454

121,566,110

109,403,831

Amounts in €

Trade payables
Current payables to employees
Current payables to state and other institutions
Current payables to others
Current interest payable to others
Total operating liabilities

Current trade payables mainly comprise current liabilities to suppliers of current assets, electricity and electricityrelated variable costs.
Current liabilities to employees comprise liabilities for December salaries and other employee earnings.
Current liabilities to state and other institutions accounted for a significant portion of the Group’s current
operating liabilities; they included liabilities for VAT, excise duties, and employment-related liabilities payable
by the employer.
Current liabilities to others are disclosed at the parent company and include liabilities from contractual work,
meeting attendance fees and liabilities from payment card transactions.

Disclosure 17: Advances payable and other current liabilities
Advances payable and other current liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

753,433
41,762,894
676,946
42,439,840

2,114
41,107,577
1,214,012
42,321,589

43,193,273

42,323,703

Amounts in €

Current advances payable
Accrued costs and expenses
Deferred revenue
Accrued costs and deferred revenue
Advances payable and other current liabilities

Current liabilities for advances received relate to advances received for electricity sales to domestic and foreign
entities.
Accrued costs and expenses mainly include the differences between the expected electricity supply and
consumption according to schedules and the actual realization, the acquisition of cross-border capacity rights
and electricity purchases, costs of cash flow hedges and other costs from invoices not yet received. Accrued costs
and expenses amounted to EUR 37,977,859 at the parent company and EUR 3,785,035 at subsidiaries.
Current deferred revenues comprise electricity supplies that were calculated for the next business year in the
amount of EUR 634,975, and were recorded by GEN-I dooel Skopje.
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Disclosure 18: Classification of financial instruments and fair values
Fair values
Amounts in €

Assets carried at amortized cost
Non-current financial receivables
Non-current operating receivables
Short-term deposits
Short-term loans
Operating receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total
Liabilities carried at fair value
Derivatives
Total
Liabilities carried at amortized cost
Secured bank loans
Other financial liabilities
Liabilities from leasing
Operating liabilities
Total

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Carrying
amount

Fair value

Carrying
amount

Fair value

53,117
219,709
864,475
2,000,959
159,109,737
22,061,125

53,117
219,709
864,475
2,000,959
159,109,737
22,061,125

40,435
183,933
1,464,695
9,566
163,724,610
20,354,906

40,435
183,933
1,464,695
9,566
163,724,610
20,354,906

184,309,122

184,309,122

185,778,145

185,778,145

-444,419

-444,419

-554,277

-554,277

-444,419

-444,419

-554,277

-554,277

-16,000,000
-22,237
-216,581
-121,566,110

0
-22,237
-216,581
-121,566,110

-14,000,000
-55,289
0
-109,403,831

0
-55,289
0
-109,403,831

-137,804,928

-121,804,928

-123,459,120

-109,459,120

At the end of 2012, the Group recognized liabilities carried at fair value in the amount of EUR 444,419, and valued
them based on available data regarding market prices, meaning Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Disclosure 19: Contingent liabilities and assets
Contingent liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Guarantees and securities
Guarantees and securities - subsidiaries operating abroad
Other off-balance-sheet liabilities

79,220,050
28,474,613
3,840,330

65,806,878
37,470,041
9,590,748

Total

111,534,993

112,867,667

Amounts in €

Contingent liabilities comprise liabilities from bank guarantees that were issued to various beneficiaries at
the request of GEN-I, d.o.o. and its subsidiaries. They mainly include performance bonds, bid guarantees and
guarantees issued by banks for the timely payment of goods and services.
Disclosure 20: Revenues
Revenue
Amounts in €

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

1,531,201,013
11,692,255
2,250

1,010,171,060
1,333,577
9,697

1,542,895,518

1,011,514,334

Revenues from the sale of goods and materials
Revenues from the sale of services
Rental income
Total

The Group’s revenues from electricity and natural gas sales amounted to EUR 1,531,201,013 in 2012, up 52.5% on
2011.
Revenues from services include sales of cross-border transfer capacities.
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Income generated in slovenia or abroad

Slovenia

Amounts in €

Abroad

Total

Generated from 01/01 to 31/12/2012

Revenues from the sale of goods and materials
Revenue from the sale of services
Rental income

283,978,964
558,651
2,250

1,247,222,049
11,133,604
0

1,531,201,013
11,692,255
2,250

Total

284,539,865

1,258,355,653

1,542,895,518

In 2012, the Group generated 81.6% of its revenues on foreign markets and 18.4% on the domestic market.
Other operating income

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Income from use and reversal of non-current provisions
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Other operating revenues
Revenues from subsidies government grants

723,700
3,602
8,910,508
44,577

0
1,503
421,410
105,671

Total

9,682,387

695,975

Amounts in €

Revenues from the release and reversal of non-current provisions were generated by GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k. due to
the reversal of non-current provisions for tax liabilities.
The majority of other operating revenues is accounted for by gains from the ineffective portion of cash flow
hedging in the amount EUR 7,567,323, while the remainder is accounted for by the reversal of over-accrued
expenses in the previous year, damages received and other revenues.

Disclosure 21: Cost of goods, materials and services
Items
Amounts in €

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Cost of goods and materials sold

1,521,066,112

976,396,149

Total

1,521,066,112

976,396,149

The historical cost of goods sold in 2012 was up 55.8% on the previous year owing to the increased volume of the
Group’s operations. The historical cost includes the purchase price of electricity and natural gas and associated
costs.
Cost of materials

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Costs of energy
Materials and spare parts
Office supplies

107,585
33,126
187,083

70,167
33,282
126,254

Total

327,794

229,703

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Transportation
Maintenance
Rents
Bank charges and other fees
Intellectual services
Advertising, sales promotion and public relations
IT costs
Other services

279,511
480,168
983,180
1,590,911
2,076,995
577,049
218,873
1,450,029

297,479
724,285
858,920
1,228,210
1,471,434
398,326
139,844
938,331

Total

7,656,716

6,056,829

Amounts in €

Cost of services
Amounts in €
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Costs of services were up 26% on the previous year in 2012. Intellectual services accounted for the largest portion
of the Group’s costs of services and included human resource services (consulting, selection of candidates), legal
and notary fees, auditing and accounting services, and business and tax consultancy services. Costs of services
also included bank fees, various other fees and rents.
Other costs of services included telecommunication services, education, transport, fees and concessions, costs of
accessing different databases, licensing costs and costs for the preparation of the annual report.
Auditing services

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Audit of annual report
Other cost of auditing
Tax consultancy services

36,459
1,983
0

46,609
0
900

Total

38,442

47,509

2012

2011

617,252
1,450,867
860,767

593,200
1,420,052
1,292,231

2,928,886

3,305,483

Amounts in €

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
Amounts in €

< 1 year
> 1 < 5 years
> 5 years
Total

Liabilities from long-term contracts signed for the lease of commercial premises are expected to amount to at
least EUR 2,905,614 at the parent company (organizational units in Ljubljana, Nova Gorica and Krško) and to EUR
23,272 at the Group’s subsidiaries.

Disclosure 22: Labor costs
Labor cost

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Wages and salaries
Social security contributions
Other labor cost

5,734,907
920,160
623,552

5,094,637
827,340
1,012,533

Total

7,278,619

6,934,510

Amounts in €

In 2012, the Group calculated labor costs in line with collective agreements for the electricity sector in countries
where GEN-I, d.o.o. and its subsidiaries operate, the job classifications used by individual companies within the
GEN-I Group, and individual employment contracts.
Labor costs include wages and salaries, social security contributions, additional pension insurance, and other labor costs.
In 2012, total labor costs were up 4.96% on the previous year owing to an increase in the number of employees.
Disclosure 23: Amortization and depreciation
Amortization and depreciation

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

632,669
730,522

474,231
640,215

Total

1,363,191

1,114,446

Amounts in €

Amortization/depreciation is calculated individually using the straight-line depreciation method and depending
on the estimated useful lives of individual assets, while fixed assets owned by third parties are depreciated over
the term of the lease.
Depreciation and amortization amounted to EUR 1,363,191 in 2012, up 22.32% on the previous year. The increase
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was linked to more extensive investments in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Disclosure 24: Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Amounts in €

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

246,816

107,791

1,731

824

39,601
109,660
6,311,040

10,501
737,632
1,409,068

6,708,848

2,265,816

Taxes and levies
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets,
impairment of Property, plant and equipment
Donations
Creation of provisions
Other operating expenses
Total

In 2012, other operating expenses were up on the previous year primarily due to amounts from the ineffective portion
of cash flow and fair value hedging based on derivatives at the parent company in the amount of EUR 4,395,502.

Disclosure 25: Profit or loss from financing
Profit or loss from financing

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Interest income
Gain on disposal of interests in associates
Net income from settlement of financial instruments
Other financial income
Collected written-off receivables and reversal of write-offs

898,685
243,639
4,790,220
237,833
249,799

473,925
0
736,518
12,455
207,551

Finance income
Interest expense
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Change in fair value of derivatives
Net foreign exchange loss
Other financial costs

6,420,176
-1,474,124
-993,642
-1,034,105
-1,400,110
-89,937

1,430,449
-1,112,068
-1,801,175
-993,950
-361,206
-50,549

Financial costs
Profit or loss from financing

-4,991,918
1,428,258

-4,318,948
-2,888,499

Amounts in €

Net revenues from the settlement of financial instruments accounted for the majority of financial income. These
instruments were used for the Group’s forward contracts not covered by hedges.
Revenues from interest amounted to EUR 898,685 in 2012 and comprised revenues from interest on current loans
given to other companies, interest from deposits held and revenues from default interest.
Interest expenses totaled EUR 1,474,124 in 2012.
The Group impairs receivables annually in the amount of estimated losses arising from customers’ inability to
repay their liabilities. Last year, revenues from the reversal of impairments for deductible VAT and the payment of
written-off receivables amounted to EUR 249,796, while expenses from the impairment of receivables amounted
to EUR 993,642. Of this amount, revaluation adjustments during the business year accounted for EUR 606,105
and direct write-offs of receivables for EUR 387,537 at the parent company and at GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k.
Expenses in the amount of EUR 1,034,105 from changes in fair value relate to forward currency transactions and
changes in the fair value of forward contracts used to hedge against electricity price fluctuations that do not
meet the conditions for hedge accounting and are recognized immediately in comprehensive income.
The net effect of exchange rate differences was a loss of EUR 1,400,110.
93

ANNUAL REPORT GEN-I FOR BUSINESS YEAR 2012
FINANCIAL REPORT GEN-I GROUP

Other financial income and costs mainly include default interest charged to customers or by suppliers, the costs
of payment reminders and enforcement orders, the result of rounding and the reversal of costs of financial
transactions from previous years.
Disclosure 26: Taxes
Taxes

2012

2011

Current tax
Deferred tax

1,436,740
-35,383

2,328,053
-35,846

Total

1,401,357

2,292,207

Amounts in €

In 2012, the Group disclosed corporate income tax in the amount of EUR 1,436,740 and deferred tax assets in the
amount of EUR 35,383.
Deferred tax assets totaling EUR 35,383 include the amortization of intangible fixed assets not recognized for tax
purposes in the amount of EUR 29,771 and provisions for severance payments and long-service bonuses in the
amount of EUR 5,612.
At the balance sheet date, the Group disclosed a total of EUR 1,102,745 in deferred tax assets from the state, using
a tax rate of 17%.
Effective tax rate
Amounts in €

Gross profit before tax
Statutory tax rate
Income tax at statutory tax rate, prior to changes in tax base
Tax exempt income
Non-deductible expenses
Tax incentives
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions
Effective tax rate
Current and deferred income tax

2012

2011

9,604,885
18%
1,728,879
-178,003
338,248
-124,973
-362,795

16,327,496
20%
3,265,499
-34,064
328,045
-27,459
-1,239,814

14.59%
1,401,357

14.04%
2,292,207

Disclosure 27: Data on related parties
Gross earnings in 2012
Data on groups of persons

Management

Employees under
individual employment agreements

287,279
758,637

2,038,852
193,412

1,045,916

2,232,264

Management

Employees under individual employment
agreements

Wages and salaries
Fringe benefits and other remuneration

270,631
611,653

1,716,803
142,466

Total

882,284

1,859,269

Amounts in €

Wages and salaries
Fringe benefits and other remuneration
Total
Gross earnings in 2011
Data on groups of persons
Amounts in €

None of the Group’s companies have any outstanding receivables from or liabilities to Management Board
members.
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14.8. Financial instruments and risk exposure
Disclosure 28: Credit risk
Items

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Non-current receivables
Receivables
Other current receivables
Short-term deposits
Current loans
Cash and cash equivalents

272,826
126,844,393
32,097,590
864,475
2,000,959
22,061,125

224,368
141,640,412
21,884,137
1,464,695
9,566
20,354,906

Total

184,414,194

185,802,452

Amounts in €

Receivables
Amounts in €

Domestic
Euro area countries
Other European countries
Countries of the former Yugoslavia
Other regions
TOTAL
Receivables
Amounts in €

Wholesale customers
Retail customers
End-user customers
Total

Carrying amounts
2012

2011

34,172,052
25,021,732
18,561,679
17,460,447
31,628,483

25,076,794
28,672,537
8,973,137
44,730,562
34,187,382

126,844,393

141,640,412

Carrying amounts
2012

2011

93,431,837
30,793,361
2,619,195

113,127,979
28,512,434
0

126,844,393

141,640,413

As described in detail in the business report, the GEN-I Group uses an active approach to managing credit risks
and financial exposure to individual business partners. Its approach is based on the consistent application of
internal rules and procedures for identifying credit risks and assessing exposure to them, determining the
permissible limits of risk exposure, and the constant monitoring of the Group’s exposure to risks in its dealings
with individual business partners. In line with the Group’s rules, the risk-management department analyzes the
credit standing of each new trading partner and large customer that wishes to purchase electricity from GEN-I.
This risk-assessment report serves as the basis for future cooperation, enabling the Group to define credit lines
for hedging purposes and offer new partners payment and delivery terms adjusted to their particular risk levels.
When monitoring credit risks and daily credit line exposure, the Group divides individual partners into groups
according to their credit-related characteristics (whether it is a company or a group of companies, trading partner,
end-customer, or retail customer), geographical position, industry, age structure and maturity of receivables,
financial difficulties in the past, and any breaches of contractual obligations based on the estimated level of risk.
In order to minimize risks associated with partners’ inability to settle outstanding receivables, the Group pays
particular attention to using the proper financial and legal instruments when negotiating daily transactions to
ensure that contractual obligations are met. These instruments are incorporated into contractual relationships
with business partners based on analyses of their credit standing and relevant risk assessments.
Impairments of receivables and their maturity structure are described in Disclosure 5.
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Disclosure 29: Liquidity risk
Financial liabilities 2012
Amounts in €

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans
Other liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Trade and other payables

Carrying
amounts

Contractual
cash flows

16,000,000
22,237
216,581
121,566,110

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
Outflow
444,419
Total

138,249,347

Financial liabilities 2011
Amounts in €

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans
Interests
Trade and other payables
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
Outflow
Total

-16,542,612
-22,237
-216,581
-121,566,110

Up to 6
months

-10,139,494
-22,237
-27,867
-121,566,110

-444,419

-264,715

-138,791,959

-132,020,423

6 - 12
Months

1-2
Years

2-5
Years

0
0
-19,774
0

-6,403,118
0
-62,391
0

0
0
-106,549
0

-162,665

-17,039

0

-182,439 -6,482,548

-106,549

Carrying
amounts

Contractual
cash flows

Up to 6
months

6 - 12
Months

1-2 Years

14,000,000
55,289
109,403,831

-14,418,001
-55,289
-109,403,831

-8,157,589
-55,289
-109,403,831

-6,260,412
0
0

0
0
0

554,277

-554,277

-207,650

-314,855

-31,772

124,013,397

-124,431,398

-117,824,359

-6,575,267

-31,772

The liquidity of the entire GEN-I Group is managed by the parent company, which carefully monitors and plans
short-term solvency and ensures it by coordinating and planning all cash flows within the Group. At the same
time, the Group takes into account credit risks associated with possible late payments and poor payment
discipline, which can affect the planning of inflows and the Group’s investment activities.
The Group also constantly monitors and optimizes short-term surpluses and shortages of monetary assets, both
at the level of individual companies and at the Group level. A liquidity reserve in the form of credit lines approved
by commercial banks, the diversification of financial liabilities, constant adjustment of maturity periods of
liabilities and receivables, and consistent collection of receivables are all factors that guarantee the Group’s
successful cash-flow management, thus ensuring its purchasing power and reducing the level of short-term
solvency risks. Thanks to the Group’s active approach to financial markets, its good performance in the past and
a stable operating cash flow, liquidity risks are within acceptable parameters and entirely manageable.
The Group’s long-term solvency is ensured by preserving and increasing its share capital and maintaining
an appropriate financial balance. To achieve this, the Group adjusts its balance sheet structure to match the
maturity of its financial liabilities. As part of liquidity risk management activities, the Management Board intends
to further strengthen the Group’s long-term and short-term solvency and include new subsidiaries in the liquidity
monitoring system.

Disclosure 30: Interest-rate risk
Financial instruments
Amounts in €

Carrying amounts
31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

2,917,592
-8,168,941

0
-8,000,000

Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities

-8,444,419

-6,000,000
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The Group manages interest-rate risks by constantly assessing risk exposure and the possible effects of changing
reference interest rates (the variable part) on its costs from financing activities. It also monitors its loan portfolio,
which could be affected by a change in the relevant interest rates. As part of its risk management activities, the
Group monitors interest rate fluctuations on the domestic and foreign markets as well as on derivatives markets.
The purpose of the Group’s continuous monitoring activities and analyses is to propose timely protective
measures by balancing assets and liabilities in its statement of financial position.

Disclosure 31: Currency risk
Receivables,
payables

EUR USD

HRK

MKD

Amounts in €

Trade receivables 106,422,597
Secured bank
-16,000,000
loans
Trade payables
-98,768,619
Estimated forecast
0
sales
Estimated forecast
0
purchases
Gross balance
-8,346,022
sheet exposure
Net exposure
-8,346,022
Receivables,
payables

0 784,802 10,494,469
0
-22

0

0

-45,318 -2,042,357

Net exposure

RSD

HUF

ALL

ROM

BGN

157,668 5,929,340
0

0

0

1,210,081

0

1,845,436

0

0

0

0

-1,960,518 -1,848,237 -1,729,137

-161,648 -75,511 -3,102,502

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-22 739,484

8,452,112

-22 739,484

8,452,112 -1,802,850 4,081,103 -1,729,137 1,048,433 -75,511 -1,257,066

EUR

HRK

-1,802,850 4,081,103 -1,729,137 1,048,433 -75,511 -1,257,066

MKD

BAM

RSD

ROM

BGN

31/12/2012

Amounts in €

Trade receivables
Secured bank loans
Trade payables
Gross balance sheet exposure
Estimated forecast sales
Estimated forecast purchases
Gross exposure

BAM

31/12/2012

94,129,932
-14,000,000
-74 ,607,390
5,522,542
540,180,351
-526,064,003
14,116,348

2,058,094
0
-34,564
2,023,530
0
0
0

9,119,823
1,312,938
0
0
-1,290,191 -1,096,308
7,829,632
216,630
0
0
0
0
0
0

32,213,501
0
-7,967,160
24,246,340
0
0
0

2,805,871
253
0
0
-3,442,516 -3,764,237
-636,645 -3,763,984
0
0
0
0
0
0

19,638,890

2,023,530

7,829,632

24,246,340

-636,645 -3,763,984

216,630

The GEN-I Group is actively involved in establishing a suitable infrastructure for foreign currency transactions and
implementing a number of currency-hedging mechanisms, including forward contracts and currency clauses,
particularly on markets outside the euro area.
The Group is mainly exposed to currency risks when conducting its core activities, i.e. electricity trading and
sales and cross-border capacity trading, and also with regard to loans and participating interests held in foreign
subsidiaries. Given the scope of its operations, the Group is exposed to currency risks associated with the Serbian
dinar (RSD), Croatian kuna (HRK), Hungarian forint (HUF), Macedonian denar (MKD), Romanian leu (RON) and
Albanian lek (ALL).
Currency risks are minimized by linking the selling prices of goods to the currency used by the sources that finance
the purchase of these goods. To a certain extent, currency risks between subsidiaries are “naturally” hedged
because a part of the expected inflows from individual companies is balanced out by the expected outflows in
the same currency. If necessary, the Group also uses derivatives and a number of forward currency contracts to
hedge against these risks.
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15. Events after the reporting period
Despite the adverse financial conditions on the Slovenian and global market, the parent company GEN-I, d.o.o.
successfully concluded the sale of money-market instruments (360-day commercial paper, designation GEN01)
in the total nominal amount of EUR 30 million. The purpose of the commercial paper issue is the short-term
financing of the issuer’s operations and the diversification of the base of short-term debt investors among banks
and institutional investors. The commercial paper bears an annual interest rate of 4.30%, with a maturity of
February 10, 2014. The commercial paper will be traded on the Ljubljana Stock Exchange in the bond market
segment – money-market instruments – commercial paper.
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16. Statement by the management board
The Management Board hereby certifies that the annual report and all of its components were compiled and
published in accordance with the Companies Act and the International Financial Reporting Standards.
The Management Board approves the consolidated financial statements of the GEN-I Group for the business year
that ended December 31, 2012, including the notes to the consolidated financial statements from page 71 of
the financial report onwards.
The Management Board certifies that all relevant accounting principles were consistently used in drafting the
consolidated financial statements of the GEN-I Group. Accounting estimates were prepared according to the
principles of prudence and due diligence. The Management Board also certifies that this annual report provides
a true and fair picture of the assets of the GEN-I Group and its performance in 2012.
The consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes were prepared on a going concern basis and in
line with the relevant legislation and International Financial Reporting Standards.

Martin Novšak						Robert Golob, Ph.D.
Vice President of the Management Board			
President of the Management Board

Krško, February 26, 2013
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17. Certified auditor’s report
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18. List of disclosures
Disclosure 1: Property, plant and equipment
Disclosure 2: Intangible assets
Disclosure 3: Investments in associates
Disclosure 4: Non-current receivables and loans
Disclosure 5: Operating receivables
Disclosure 6: Advances and other assets
Disclosure 7: Financial investments and loans
Disclosure 8: Cash and cash equivalents
Disclosure 9: Share capital and reserves
Disclosure 10: Loans
Disclosure 11: Cost and maturity of loans
Disclosure 12: Other financial liabilities
Disclosure 13: Non-current provisions
Disclosure 14: Deferred taxes
Disclosure 15: Other current financial liabilities
Disclosure 16: Operating liabilities
Disclosure 17: Advances payable and other current liabilities
Disclosure 18: Classification of financial instruments and fair values
Disclosure 19: Contingent liabilities and assets
Disclosure 20: Revenues
Disclosure 21: Cost of goods, materials and services
Disclosure 22: Labor costs
Disclosure 23: Amortization and depreciation
Disclosure 24: Other operating expenses
Disclosure 25: Profit or loss from financing
Disclosure 26: Taxes
Disclosure 27: Data on related parties
Disclosure 28: Credit risk
Disclosure 29: Liquidity risk
Disclosure 30: Interest-rate risk
Disclosure 31: Currency risk
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Accounting Report
of GEN-I d.o.o.
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19. The company’s financial statements
19.1. Statement of financial position
Items

Note

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

1
2
3
4
5
15

1,088,517
1,260,512
3,163,519
0
272,827
1,102,745

1,265,116
742,553
2,038,954
240,000
224,368
113,803

9

6,888,120
159,354,369
32,268,896
5,643,943
261,050
18,330,602

4,624,794
148,838,043
18,689,487
8,306,643
107,003
15,356,967

10
10
10

215,858,860
222,746,980
15,877,610
932,152
24,628,066

191,298,143
195,922,937
15,877,610
9,657,691
12,411,591

15

41,437,828
41,437,828
6,000,000
168,941
186,157
0
0

37,946,892
37,946,892
0
0
94,281
439
2,017,483

11
16
17
18

6,355,098
10,036,457
492,059
126,279,051
38,146,487

2,112,203
19,257,798
554,277
95,350,059
40,701,708

174,954,054
181,309,152
222,746,980

155,863,842
157,976,045
195,922,937

Amounts in €

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Interests in associates
Non-current receivables and loans
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets
Operating receivables
Prepayments and other assets
Other investments and loans
Current tax assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets
Assets
Share capital
Reserves
Retained earnings
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Equity
Loans and borrowings
Other non-current financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Other financial liabilities, including derivatives
Operating liabilities
Advances payable and other current liabilities
Current liabilities
Liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
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19.2. Income statement
Items

Note

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Revenue
Other operating revenues
Cost of goods sold
Cost of materials
Cost of services
Labor costs
Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expenses

21
21
22
22
22
23
24
25

1,487,571,557
8,203,691
-1,471,194,963
-308,920
-6,196,116
-6,522,427
-1,335,695
-6,145,935

982,445,513
387,556
-963,991,372
-214,765
-4,924,148
-5,662,818
-1,093,864
-874,624

Operating profit or loss
Financial income
Financial costs

26
26

4,071,192
14,645,435
-3,676,090

6,071,478
6,523,933
-3,347,575

10,969,345
15,040,537
-805,265
14,235,272

3,176,358
9,247,836
-1,120,490
8,127,346

Note

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

10

14,235,272

8,127,346

10

-4,563,827

10,087,413

10

-11,132,754

0

15

2,971,042

-2,017,483

-12,725,539

-8,069,930

1,509,732

16,197,276

Amounts in €

Profit or loss from financing
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit or loss for the period

27

19.3. Statement of other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income
Amounts in €

Profit or loss for the period
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash
flow hedges
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges
transferred to profit or loss
Income tax on other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the period, net
of tax
Total comprehensive income for the period
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19.4. Cash flow statement
Items
Amounts in €

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit or loss for the period
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization
Write downs of property, plant and equipment
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment property
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment property
Financial income
Financial costs
Income tax
Operating profit before changes in net current assets and taxes
Changes in net current assets and provisions
Change in receivables
Change in prepayments and other assets
Change in operating liabilities
Change in advances payable and other current liabilities
Change in provisions
Change in deferred income
Income tax paid
Net cash flow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Dividends received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets
Proceeds from sale of associates
Proceeds from decrease in loans given
Proceeds from settlement of derivatives
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Acquisitions of subsidiaries
Acquisitions of associates
Acquisitions of other investments
Expenses for increase in loans given
Expenses from settlement of derivates
Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Repayment of short-term loans
Receipts from long-term loans received
Receipts from short-term loans received
Change in equity
Dividends paid
Net cash from financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

14,235,271

8,127,346

1,335,695
1,731

1,093,864
54

-3,602

-1,503

0

740

-14,395,638
3,224,293
805,265

-6,316,382
3,124,516
1,120,490

5,203,015

7,149,125

-11,220,477
-13,579,409
30,910,193
-2,555,221
91,876
-439
-994,695

-55,689,604
-8,493,189
20,972,472
39,208,340
19,006
439
-1,048,115

7,854,843

2,118,474

962,642
10,701,486

318,785
4,964,697

4,907

1,503

483,639

0

4,630,000
0
-1,680,089
-1,124,565
0
-12,682
-2,000,000
-14,319,973

16,265,000
10,867,776
-1,457,151
0
-240,000
-8,760
-23,995,000
0

-2,354,634

6,716,850

-1,543,175
-28,100,000
6,168,941
18,947,660
4,000,000
-2,000,000

-1,076,813
-52,140,000
0
52,539,980
3,000,000
-6,000,000

-2,526,574
15,356,967
2,973,635
18,330,602

-3,676,833
10,198,476
5,158,491
15,356,967
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19.5. Statement of changes in equity
Changes in 2012
Changes in equity
Amounts in €

Share
Share
capital premium

Legal
reserve

Hedging
reserve

0

1,587,761

8,069,930

0

0

0

14,235,271

14,235,271

0

0

0

-3,819,336

0

-3,819,336

0

0

0

-8,906,203

0

-8,906,203

0

0

0

-12,725,539

0

-12,725,539

0

0

0

-12,725,539

14,235,271

1,509,732

0 4,000,000
0
0

0
0

Balance at 01/01/2012
15,877,610
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the period
Profit or loss for the period
0
Other comprehensive income
Effective portion of changes in fair value of
cash flow hedges, net of tax
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges
transferred to profit of loss, net of tax
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the
period
Transactions with owners, recorded directly
in equity
Entry of additional capital payments
Dividend (shares) payout
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control
Other eliminations (decreases) of equity items
Balance at 31/12/2012

0

0

15,877,610 4,000,000

0

1,587,761

Retained
earnings

Total
equity

12,411,591 37,946,892

0
0 4,000,000
0 -2,000,000 -2,000,000

-18,797

-18,797

-4,655,609 24,628,065

0

41,437,827

Changes in 2011
Changes in equity
Amounts in €

Balance at 01/01/2011
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the period
Profit or loss for the period

Share
capital

Legal
reserve

Hedging
reserve

Retained Total equity
earnings

12,877,610

1,287,761

0

10,584,246

24,749,617

0

300,000

0

7,827,345

8,127,345

0

0

8,069,930

0

8,069,930

0

0

8,069,930

0

8,069,930

Other comprehensive income
Effective portion of changes in fair value of
cash flow hedges, net of tax
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the
period
Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity
Entry of share capital
Dividend (shares) payout

0

300,000

8,069,930

7,827,345

16,197,275

3,000,000
0

0
0

0
0

0
-6,000,000

3,000,000
-6,000,000

Balance at 31/12/2011

15,877,610

1,587,761

8,069,930

12,411,591

37,946,892
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20. Notes to the financial statements
20.1. The reporting company

estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The reporting company GEN-I, d.o.o. (hereinafter: the
Company) is based in Slovenia. Its registered office is at Estimates and assumptions are mainly associated with:
• estimated useful lives of amortizable assets,
Vrbina 17, SI-8270 Krško, Slovenia.
• asset impairment,
The Company’s core activities include: trading • employee earnings,
electricity internationally on a number of exchanges • provisions,
and organized electricity platforms and through • contingent liabilities, and
various forms of bilateral trading, selling electricity • derivatives.
to end-customers, and purchasing the electricity
necessary for trading and sales from producers. The
Company expanded its activities in 2012 to include the 20.3. Significant accounting
sale of natural gas.
policies
The financial statements of GEN-I, d.o.o. were prepared GEN-I, d.o.o. consistently applied the accounting policies
for the business year that ended on December 31, 2012. described below to all periods presented in its financial
statements.

20.2. Basis of preparation

(a) Foreign currency

(a) Statement of compliance

(i) Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are converted into
the functional currency of the Company using the
exchange rate applied on the day they arise. Cash,
cash equivalents and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are converted into the functional currency
using the exchange rate applicable at the end of
the reporting period. Positive or negative exchange
differences are differences between the amortized cost
in the functional currency at the beginning of a period,
increased or decreased by the amount of applicable
interest and payments within the period, and the
amortized cost expressed in foreign currency, converted
using the exchange rate at the end of the period. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies and measured at fair value are converted into
the functional currency at the exchange rate applicable
on the day their fair value was determined. Exchange
rate differences are recognized in the income statement.

The financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and the provisions of the Companies Act.
The financial statements were approved by the
Company’s Management Board on February 26, 2013.

(b) Measurement basis
The financial statements were compiled on a historical
cost basis, except in the case of derivatives and
financial instruments at fair value through profit and
loss, where fair value was used.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are expressed in euros, the
Company’s functional currency. All accounting data
presented in euros is rounded to the nearest integer.

(b) Financial instruments
(d) Use of estimates and judgments
(i) Non-derivative financial assets
Loans, receivables and deposits are initially recognized
on the day they arise. Other financial assets (including
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss)
are initially recognized on the exchange date or on the
day the Company becomes a party to the instrument’s
contractual provisions. Financial assets are derecognized
when the contractual rights to cash flows from these
The estimates and underlying assumptions are assets expire, or when the Company transfers the
reviewed on a regular basis. Revisions to accounting rights to cash flows from financial assets based on a
When preparing the financial statements, the Company’s management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported values of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses in accordance with
the IFRS. Actual results may vary from these estimates.

108

ANNUAL REPORT GEN-I FOR BUSINESS YEAR 2012
FINANCIAL REPORT GEN-I, d.o.o.

transaction that involves the transfer of all risks and
benefits associated with the ownership of the financial
asset. Each share in the transferred financial asset
generated or transferred by the Company is recognized
as an individual asset or liability. Financial assets and
liabilities are netted, and the net amount is disclosed in
the statement of financial position only if the Company
has the legal right to either settle the net amount or cash
in the asset, and settle its liability. The Company’s nonderivative financial instruments include the following:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, heldto-maturity financial assets, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial assets and liabilities are netted, and the amount is disclosed in the statement of financial position
if and only if the Company has the legally recognized
right to offset the recognized amounts and intends to
either settle the net amount or cash in the asset and
settle its liability.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Instruments are stated at fair value through profit or loss
if they are available for sale or if they are classified as such
after initial recognition. Financial assets are measured at
fair value through profit or loss if the Company is capable
of managing the assets and deciding on their purchase
and sale based on fair value. After initial recognition, the
related transaction costs are recognized in the income
statement when they arise. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and the
amount of any changes in the fair value is recognized in
the income statement.

Other financial liabilities include loans, bank overdrafts,
and operating and other liabilities.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted on an
active market. They are initially recognized at fair value
and increased by any direct transaction costs. After
initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
reduced by impairment losses. Loans and receivables
include operating and other receivables.

The Company discloses non-derivative financial liabilities as other financial liabilities. Such financial liabilities
are initially disclosed at fair value increased by any costs
directly attributable to the transaction. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized
cost less payment of principal.

(iii) Share capital
Share capital is the called-up capital contributed by
shareholders. The Company’s total equity comprises
called-up capital, the share premium account, legal reserves, reserves for cash flow hedging and retained earnings.
Dividends
Dividends are recognized as liabilities and stated in the
period in which the general meeting of shareholders
decides on their payment.
(iv) Derivatives
The Company uses derivatives to hedge against market
and currency risks.

The Company uses forward contracts and a number of
different financial trading instruments to hedge against
market risks caused by electricity price fluctuations. The
Company primarily uses forward currency contracts to
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and hedge against currency risks.
sight deposits. Bank overdraft facilities repayable
on demand, which form an integral part of cash The Company uses non-standardized forward contracts to
management, are included as a component of cash and hedge against market risks arising from electricity prices
and currency risks. These are agreements on the sale or
cash equivalents in the cash flow statement.
purchase of an underlying instrument whose price is
determined at the time of the agreement’s execution,
(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Any debt securities issued and the underlying liabilities but with a future effective date. The prices of forward
are initially recognized on the day they arise. All other transactions are determined based on the underlying
financial liabilities are initially recognized on the financial instrument. At the time of execution, the value
trading day when the Company becomes a party to the of the contract equals zero because the strike price (the
agreed settlement price) is equal to the forward price.
contractual provisions of the instrument.
Not taking into account the costs of supply, the value
Financial liabilities are derecognized if the obligations of a non-standardized forward contract is equal to the
set out in the contract are fulfilled, cancelled or have difference between the current price of an underlying
instrument at maturity and the contractual forward
lapsed.
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price or the agreed settlement price. The forward price measured at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from the
changes during the validity of the contract depending remeasurement of fair value is calculated as described
on changes in current market prices and the residual below.
maturity of the forward contract.
Cash flow hedge
Standardized forward contracts (futures) are binding agree- The Company accounts for cash flow hedges used for
ments on the purchase or sale of a standardized quan- standardized forward contracts and non-standardized
tity of well-defined standard quality instruments on a forward transactions by recognizing the proportion of the
standardized day in the future (standard specification) gain or loss from a hedging instrument that is deemed
at a price determined in the present. Standardized prod- effective in other comprehensive income; the amount is
ucts are a prerequisite for exchange trading. The main recognized as a hedging reserve and disclosed directly
advantage of standardized products is the minimization in equity. The ineffective proportion of the gain or loss
of transaction costs associated with trading. When such from a hedging instrument is recognized in the income
products are used, there is no need for buyers and sellers statement as other operating revenues or expenses. The
to define the contractual elements of each transaction; amounts recognized in equity as a hedging reserve are
they only need to agree on the price of individual for- transferred to the income statement in the period in
ward contracts. Transactions are concluded without the which the hedged item affects profit or loss.
physical presence of the goods. A standardized forward
contract comes into effect only when registered with If a hedging instrument no longer meets hedge
a clearing (settlement) house. This type of contract is accounting criteria, or if it is terminated, sold, revoked,
transferable to enable exchange trading and its liquidity or exercised, hedge accounting ceases. The accumulated
is determined by exchange trading volumes. Non-stan- gain or loss recognized in equity remains in equity until
dardized forward contracts, on the other hand, are not the forecast transaction occurs.
liquid because there is hardly any exchange taking place
with these contracts. When trading forward contracts, a Fair value hedging
security deposit must be placed with the clearing house The Company calculates fair values hedges against the
for both sales and purchases. This deposit includes an risk of fluctuating prices for standardized forward contracts by recognizing changes in the fair value of deinitial margin and a variation margin.
rivatives immediately in the income statement. Gains
In 2011, the Company met hedge accounting require- or losses from hedged items that can be attributed to
ments in order to hedge against risks associated with hedged risks must be adjusted to the carrying amount
electricity price changes. When introducing hedge ac- of the hedged items and recognized in the income
counting, the Company prepared formal documents statement. If an unrecognized firm commitment is
clarifying the relationship between hedging and risk defined as a hedge item, the subsequent cumulative
management targets, and outlined a strategy for the change in the fair value of the firm commitment that
hedge accounting project. The Company defined hedg- can be prescribed to a hedge is recognized as an asset
ing instruments, hedged items, the types of risks for or liability, with the relevant gain or loss recognized in
which hedging was used, and the methodology for as- the income statement. The initial measurement of an
asset or liability arising from the fulfillment of a firm
sessing the effectiveness of hedging instruments.
commitment by the Company is adjusted by including
The Company assesses the effectiveness of hedging the cumulative change in fair value of the commitment
instruments at the start of a hedge relationship and also that can be attributed to a hedge previously recognized
on a regular quarterly basis. A hedge is considered highly in the statement of financial position.
effective if changes in the hedging instrument offset the
changes in the cash flow of the hedged item by between (c) Plant and equipment
80% and 125%. In the case of hedging against cash flow
risks, the forecast transaction, which is the subject of (i) Recognition and measurement
the hedge, must be highly probable and exposed to cash Items of property, plant and equipment are disclosed
flow changes that may significantly affect profit or loss. at historical cost, reduced by depreciation costs and
impairment losses.
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value;
any transaction costs are recognized in the income The historical cost includes the costs that can be directly
statement. After initial recognition, derivatives are attributed to the procurement of assets. Costs of assets
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produced comprise the costs of materials, direct costs
of labor, other costs that can be directly attributed to
enabling the use of assets for their intended purpose,
costs of disposal and removal, costs of restoring the
location of the asset to its original state and capitalized
borrowing costs. Any computer software that
contributes significantly to the assets’ functionality
should be capitalized as part of these assets.

(d) Intangible assets
(i) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets with limited useful lives are
disclosed at historical cost, reduced by amortization
costs and accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs associated with intangible assets
Components of items of property, plant and equipment are only capitalized if they increase future economic
that have different useful lives are accounted for as benefits arising from the asset to which the cost is
separate items.
related. All other costs are recognized as expenses in the
income statement when they arise.
(ii) Subsequent costs
Costs arising from the replacement of parts of fixed (iii) Amortization
assets are recognized at the carrying amount if future Amortization is calculated based on an asset’s historical
economic benefits associated with a part are likely cost or another amount that is used in its place.
to increase and if its historical cost can be measured
reliably. All other costs (such as daily maintenance) Amortization is recognized in the income statement
are recognized as expenses in the income statement using the straight-line method and is based on the
immediately after they arise.
useful life of intangible assets, starting from the date
the asset is available for use. This is the most accurate
(iii) Spare parts
method for predicting the patterns of future economic
Spare parts and maintenance equipment of lower value benefits associated with the asset. Estimated useful
with useful lives of up to one year are treated as inventory lives for the current and comparative year are as
and recognized as costs in the income statement. Spare follows:
parts and equipment of significant value with estimated • Software		 2 to 5 years
useful lives exceeding one year are recognized as items
of property, plant and equipment.
Amortization methods, useful lives and other values are
reviewed at the end of each business year and adjusted
(iv) Depreciation
if necessary.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method based on the useful life of each component (e) Asset impairment
of an item of property, plant and equipment. This is
the most accurate method for predicting asset usage (i) Financial assets (including receivables)
patterns. Leased assets are depreciated over the lease The Company assesses the value of financial assets at
term and their useful lives. Land is not depreciated.
the reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of asset impairment. A financial
Estimated useful lives for the current and comparative asset is considered impaired if there is objective
period are as follows:
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
Plant and equipment			
2 to 5 years
events that led to a decrease in estimated future cash
Furniture and built-in equipment
4 to 5 years.
flows of the financial asset.
Investments in fixed assets owned by third parties are Impairment loss associated with a financial asset that
depreciated for the duration of the lease period (1 to 10 is disclosed at fair value in other comprehensive income
years).
is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the asset.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and Impairment loss associated with a financial asset
adjusted if necessary. Estimates regarding fixed assets disclosed at amortized cost is measured as the difference
were not revised during the business year.
between the asset’s carrying amount and the value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.
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Impairment loss associated with available-for-sale amount if no impairment loss had been recognized for
financial assets is calculated using the current fair the asset in previous years.
value of the asset.

(f) Employee earnings
Impairment assessments of significant financial
assets are carried out individually. The impairment of Liabilities from short-term employee earnings are
remaining financial assets is assessed collectively with measured on an undiscounted basis and are recognized
regard to their common risk exposure characteristics.
as expenses as soon as the work performed by an
employee and related to the short-term earning is
All impairment losses are reported in the Company’s completed.
income statement for the accounting period.

(g) Provisions
Impairment losses are derecognized if they can be
objectively associated with events that occurred after their
recognition. Impairment losses associated with financial
assets that are stated at amortized cost and available-forsale financial assets that are considered debt instruments
are derecognized in the income statement.

Provisions are recognized if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
which can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
(ii) Non-financial assets
current market assessments of the time value of money
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
carrying amount of non-financial assets (except deferred
tax assets) to determine if there are any indications of Provisions for severance payments and long-service
impairment. If there are such indications, the asset’s bonuses
recoverable value is assessed. Impairment of goodwill Pursuant to the law, the collective agreement, and
and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life not internal rules, the Company is obliged to pay longyet available for use is reviewed at each reporting date. service bonuses and severance payments to employees,
and has created long-term provisions for this purpose.
The recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating There are no other pension liabilities.
units is the higher of their value in use or fair value Provisions are created in the amount of estimated
reduced by costs of sale. In determining an asset’s value future severance payments and long-service bonuses,
in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted discounted at the end of the reporting period.
to their current value at a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of The Company created provisions for severance payments
money and the risks specific to the asset. In order to test and long-service bonuses based on the current value
them for impairment, assets are consolidated into the of its liabilities to employees. Their amount was
smallest asset groups that generate cash inflows.
determined based on an actuarial calculation of future
payments to each employee, taking into account the
The impairment of an asset or cash-generating unit is costs of severance payments upon retirement and the
recognized whenever its carrying amount exceeds its costs of all estimated long-service bonuses until the day
recoverable value. The impairment is recognized in the of retirement. The chosen discount interest rate was
income statement.
4.60% p.a., which was the return on 10-year gilt-edged
corporate bonds in the euro area at the end of November
With respect to other assets, impairment losses 2012, plus a local risk premium.
from previous periods are evaluated on the balance
sheet date, to determine whether or not there has (h) Revenues
been a reduction of loss and whether or not the loss
still exists. Impairment losses are derecognized if the (i) Revenues from goods sold
estimates that were used to determine the recoverable Revenues from goods sold are recognized at the fair
value of assets have changed. An impairment loss is value of payments received or the resulting receivables,
derecognized to the extent that the asset’s carrying reduced by returns, discounts and quantity discounts.
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that Revenues from sales are recognized at the moment when
would have been determined in the net amortized risks and benefits connected with the ownership of assets
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are transferred to the buyer, when the payment and the
associated costs are certain, and when the Company
ceases to have effective control over the goods sold. If
discounts are likely to be offered and their amount can
be measured reliably, they are recognized as revenue
reductions at the time when the sale itself is recognized.
(ii) Revenues from services rendered
Revenues from services rendered are recognized in the
income statement according to the stage of completion
of individual transactions at the end of the reporting
period. The stage of completion is assessed based on
inspections of the work performed.

(k) Income tax
Income tax includes current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognized in the income statement, except where
it relates to business combinations or items recognized
directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity
or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
profit for the business year, using tax rates in force at
the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is disclosed taking into account temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
relevant amounts for tax reporting purposes. Deferred
tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to
be applied to temporary differences when they are
reversed based on laws that are in force or substantively
(iv) Revenues from rents
Revenues from rents are recognized on a straight-line in force at the end of the reporting period.
basis over the term of lease.
The Company must reconcile deferred tax assets and
liabilities if it has an enforceable right to do so and if
(i) Government grants
these assets and liabilities relate to income tax for the
All types of government grants are initially recognized same tax authority and the same taxable unit, or if the
as deferred revenue if there is reasonable assurance that tax relates to different taxable units that intend to
the grants will be received and that the Company will pay or receive the resulting net amount or settle their
comply with the associated conditions. Government liabilities and reverse the assets.
grants that compensate the Company for costs are
recognized as revenues on a systematic basis in the A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it
period in which the costs occur. Government grants is probable that future taxable profits will be available
associated with assets are recognized as other operating against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax
revenues in the income statement on a systematic basis assets are reduced by the amount of tax benefits that
are not expected to be realized.
over the useful life of the asset.
(iii) Commissions
If the Company acts as an intermediary in a transaction
and not as a parent company, the resulting net
commission is disclosed as revenue.

(j) Financial income and financial costs
Financial income includes interest from investments,
dividend income, changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, positive
exchange rate differences, and gains from hedging
instruments recognized in the income statement.
Interest income is recognized when it arises at a
contractually agreed interest rate.

(l) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a part of the Company that
carries out business activities from which it generates
income and incurs costs that relate to transactions with
other members of the same group. In 2012, the Company
defined business segments for the purpose of internal
reporting, but does not disclose them for external
reporting purposes. There are two segments used
for internal reporting at the Company: the wholesale
Financial costs include borrowing costs, negative segment and the retail segment.
exchange rate differences, changes in the fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
losses from impairments of financial assets and losses
from hedging instruments recognized in the income
statement. Borrowing costs are recognized in the income
statement at a contractually agreed interest rate.
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(m) New standards and interpretations that
have not yet entered into force

The Company does not expect the standard to have a
significant impact on its financial statements, as the
Management Board believes that the methods and
The new standards and interpretation stated below assumptions currently used in the measurement of fair
have not entered into force and were not taken into value are in line with the provisions of IFRS 13.
account in the preparation of financial statements as
• IAS 19 (2011) – Employee benefits
at December 31, 2012:
(Applies to annual accounting periods beginning
on or before January 1, 2013. Transitional provisions
• Amendment to IFRS 7 Disclosures – Offsetting of
apply. Application prior to the aforementioned date is
financial assets and financial liabilities
(Applies to annual accounting periods beginning permitted.)
on January 1, 2013 and to interim periods within
those accounting periods. Application prior to the This amendment requires that actuarial gains and
losses being recognized directly in other comprehensive
aforementioned date is permitted.)
income. The standard abolishes the “range” approach
The amendment includes new requirements regarding used for the recognition of actuarial gains and losses
the disclosure of financial assets and financial liabilities and prevents companies from recognizing all changes
in the scope of a commitment for specific benefits
that are:
and compensation program in the income statement,
• offset in the statement of financial position; or
• the subject of executable general agreements on as currently permitted in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 19. The amendment also requires
offsetting or similar agreements.
that the expected return from a compensation program
The aforementioned amendment is not expected to recognized in the income statement be calculated on the
have a significant impact on the Company’s financial basis of the criterion used to discount the commitment
statements, as its does not offset financial assets and for specific benefits.
financial liabilities, and has not concluded any general
The Company does not expect this amendment to have
agreements on offsetting.
a significant effect on its financial statements, as it does
not have compensation programs.
• IFRS 13 – Fair value measurement
(Applies to annual accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013. Application prior to the • IAS 27 (2011) – Separate financial statements
(Applies to annual accounting periods beginning on
aforementioned date is permitted.)
January 1, 2014. Application before the aforementioned
IFRS 13 replaces instructions regarding the measure- date is only permitted if IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12 and IAS 28
ment of fair value set out in individual standards with (2011) are applied early.)
one source or standard. That standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and Existing requirements regarding disclosures in financial
states disclosure requirements associated with fair value statements were transposed from IAS 27 (2008) to
measurement. IFRS 13 defines “how” to measure fair val- IAS 27 (2011), but with minor instructions clarifying
ue when so required or permitted by other IFRS. The stan- use. The amended IAS 27 (2011) also includes existing
dard does not introduce new requirements for measur- requirements regarding separate financial statements
ing assets and liabilities at fair value, nor does it distin- from IAS 28 (2008) and IAS 31. The standard no longer
guish exceptions or cases when fair value measurement addresses the principle of control or requirements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
is unfeasible that currently exist in certain standards.
statements included in IFRS 10 – Consolidated financial
The standard includes a comprehensive framework statements.
of disclosures that provides additional provisions to The Company does not expect IAS 27 (2011) to have a
existing disclosure requirements, on the basis of which significant impact on its financial statements, as its
the users of financial statements can more easily assess accounting policies remain unchanged.
the methods and inputs used to measure fair value, and
the impact of measurements (in the event of multiple
measurements that include significant inputs) on
profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
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• Amendment to IFRS 32 – Offsetting of financial assets
and financial liabilities
(Applies to annual accounting periods beginning on or
before January 1, 2014. Application prior to the aforementioned date is permitted, but conditional on disclosures
that are in line with the amendment to IFRS 7 Disclosures
– Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities.)

payment will not be necessary thanks to the ownership
of the patent or trademark. The fair value of customer
relationships obtained through business combinations
is determined using a special multi-period excess
earnings method, while the value of individual assets
is determined after the fair return from all assets that
contribute to the cash flow is deducted.

The amendment does not introduce new requirements
regarding the offsetting of financial assets and
liabilities, but clarifies offsetting criteria and deals with
inconsistencies that arise in the process.

(iii) Operating and other receivables
The fair value of operating and other receivables is equal
to the carrying amount of future cash flows, discounted
using the market interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

According to the amendment, a company has a legally
enforceable right to offsetting if:
the right is not conditional on a future event; and
the right is only legally enforceable in the scope of
operations or in the event of default, or the insolvency or
bankruptcy of one or more counterparties.

(iv) Derivatives
The fair value of forward contracts is equal to their
quoted market price at the end of the reporting period
if the market price is available. If it is not available, fair
value is determined as the difference between the
contractual value of the forward contract and its current
The Company does not expect this amendment to have bid value, taking into account the residual maturity of
a significant effect on its financial statements, as it does the contract and using a risk-free interest rate (based on
not offset financial assets and financial liabilities, and government bonds).
does not conclude general agreements on offsetting.
(v) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Fair value for reporting purposes is calculated based
20.4. Determining fair value
on the present value of future principal and interest
In accordance with the Company’s accounting policies, payments, discounted at a market interest rate at the
the measurement of the fair value of both financial and end of the reporting period. The market interest rate for
non-financial assets and liabilities is necessary in several finance leases is determined by comparing such leases
instances. The fair value of individual asset groups for with similar lease contracts.
accounting and reporting purposes was determined
using the methods described below. Where additional 20.5. Managing financial risks
clarifications regarding the assumptions used to
determine fair value are necessary, they are given in Overview
the breakdown of the Company’s individual assets or GEN-I, d.o.o. is exposed to the following risks in its
liabilities.
operations:
• strategic,
(i) Property, plant and equipment
• financial and
The fair value of property, plant and equipment from • operational risks.
business combinations is equal to their market value.
The market value of property is equal to the estimated GEN-I’s prudent approach to risk management helps
value for which property, having been appropriately the Company maintain its high level of operational
advertised, could be exchanged on the valuation date quality and is crucial for achieving its business goals. The
between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s use of standard methodologies and risk management
length transaction. The market value of plant, equipment procedures enables quality risk assessment, timely
and small tools is based on the quoted market price of responses, and minimum exposure of the Company
similar objects.
to major risks. A detailed description of individual risks
and the appropriate risk management procedures
(ii) Intangible assets
can be found in the business report in Chapter 8 Risk
The fair value of patents and trademarks acquired Management.
through business combinations is based on the
discounted estimated future value of royalties whose
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20.6. Disclosure of items in the financial statements
Disclosure 1: Property, plant and equipment
Property plant and equipment

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

293,723
789,437
5,357
1,088,517

471,935
793,181
0
1,265,116

Amounts in €

Buildings
Other plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment under construction
Total property, plant and equipment

Computer equipment and investments in leased office space account for the majority of property, plant and
equipment.
Total investments in property, plant and equipment in 2012 amounted to EUR 543,012, most of which related to
purchases of computer equipment.
Changes in 2012
Property plant and equipment

Buildings

Amounts in €

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at 01/01/2012
Other acquisitions
Write downs
Disposals
Transfers within property plant and equipment

Total

10,207

1,712,032
0
-7,589
-30,308
527,447

Balance at 31/12/2012
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Balance at 01/01/2012
Write downs
Disposals
Depreciation expense

760,925

2,201,583

5,357

2,967,865

282,539
-3,756
0
188,419

918,850
-5,862
-29,003
528,159

0
0
0
0

1,201,389
-9,618
-29,003
716,578

Balance at 31/12/2012
Carrying amount at 01/01/2012
Carrying amount at 31/12/2012

467,202
471,935
293,723

1,412,145
793,182
789,438

0
0
5,357

1,879,347
1,265,117
1,088,518
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754,474
0
-3,756

Other
Production plant and
plant and
equipment under
equipment construction and advances

0
543,012
0
0
-537,655

2,466,506
543,012
-11,345
-30,308
0
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Changes in 2011
Property plant and equipment

Buildings

Amounts in €

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at 01/01/2011
Other acquisitions
Write downs
Disposals
Transfers within property plant and equipment

Other
Production plant and
plant and
equipment under
equipment construction and advances

Total

224,966
0
-4,224
0
533,732

1,275,920
0
-344
-3,208
439,664

114,645
858,751
0
0
-973,396

1,615,531
858,751
-4,568
-3,208
0

Balance at 31/12/2011
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Balance at 01/01/2011
Write downs
Disposals
Depreciation expense

754,474

1,712,032

0

2,466,505

147,405
-4,224
0
139,358

434,732
-291
-2,468
486,877

0
0
0
0

582,137
-4,515
-2,468
626,235

Balance at 31/12/2011
Carrying amount at 01/01/2011
Carrying amount at 31/12/2011

282,538
77,562
471,936

918,850
841,188
793,181

0
114,645
0

1,201,388
1,033,395
1,265,117

Disclosure 2: Intangible assets
Intangible assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

737,021
523,491

608,292
134,261

1,260,512

742,553

Amounts in €

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets under construction and development and advances
Total intangible assets

Other intangible assets include property rights in the form of software, which amounted to EUR 138,937, and
long-term licenses for trading on foreign markets in the amount of EUR 598,084.
Total investments in intangible assets in 2012 in the amount of EUR 1,137,077 comprise software for information
support for common services, support for the sale of electricity to end-customers and server support. A portion of
the aforementioned assets in the amount of EUR 747,846 was activated already in 2012.
Changes in 2012
Intangible assets

Other intangible
assets

Intangible assets
under construction and
development and advances

Total

1,789,478
0
747,846

134,260
1,137,077
-747,846

1,923,738
1,137,077
0

Balance at 31/12/2012
2,537,324
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Balance at 01/01/2012
1,181,186
Amortization expense
619,117

523,490

3,060,815

0
0

1,181,186
619,117

Balance at 31/12/2012
Carrying amount at 01/01/2012
Carrying amount at 31/12/2012

0
134,260
523,490

1,800,303
742,552
1,260,512

Amounts in €

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at 01/01/2012
Internally developed intangible assets
Transfers within intangible assets
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Changes in 2011
Intangible assets

Other intangible
assets

Intangible assets
under construction and
development and advances

Total

1,257,767
0
-199
531,910

67,770
598,400
0
-531,910

1,325,537
598,400
-199
0

Balance at 31/12/2011
1,789,478
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Balance at 01/01/2011
713,756
Write downs
-199
Amortization expense
467,629

134,260

1,923,738

0
0
0

713,756
-199
467,629

Balance at 31/12/2011
Carrying amount at 01/01/2011
Carrying amount at 31/12/2011

0
67,770
134,260

1,181,186
611,781
742,552

Amounts in €

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at 01/01/2011
Other acquisitions
Write downs
Transfers within intangible assets

1,181,186
544,011
608,292

Disclosure 3: Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries were up by EUR 1,124,566 in 2012 as follows:
• the establishment of GEN-I Istanbul in the amount of EUR 844,566, and
• an increase in the capital of the subsidiary GEN-I Milano S.r.l. in the amount of EUR 280,000.

Disclosure 4: Investments in associates
The Company sold its 40% stake in Enerve d.o.o. in 2012, resulting in a gain of EUR 243,639.

Disclosure 5: Non-current receivables and loans
Non-current receivables and loans

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Total non-current operating receivables
Non-current financial receivables and lease

219,710
53,117

183,933
40,435

Total non-current receivables and loans granted

272,827

224,368

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

44,730,250
91,578,563

65,669,703
66,914,735

136,308,813
167,727
8,711,956
14,165,873
159,354,369

132,584,438
200,034
0
16,053,571
148,838,043

Amounts in €

Disclosure 6: Operating receivables
Operating receivables
Amounts in €

Trade receivables – subsidiaries
Trade receivables – others
Trade receivables
Interest receivable
Other receivables related to financial income
Other operating receivables
Total operating receivables

Trade receivables resulting from regular operations accounted for the largest portion of operating receivables.
Customers settled their receivables by the contractually agreed dates or with a slight delay. In the case of late
payment, domestic and foreign customers were charged default interest at a contractually defined rate.
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Receivables from customers that purchase electricity and cross-border capacity rights based on general or annual
agreements are usually secured with bills of exchange or bank guarantees. Such collateral is used for receivables
that exceed the limits set for individual customers. Receivables from some customers that have signed EFET
general agreements with GEN-I are well-regulated by the agreements. In some cases, the Company does not
request any collateral for its receivables because of the customers’ strategic position and/or financial stability.
Other operating receivables comprised current receivables from deductible VAT in the amount of EUR 14,036,712
and other minor receivables from employees, banks and other government institutions.
The Company calculated fair value hedges for contracts for future sales and purchases of electricity that were
concluded from January 1, 2012 onwards. The majority of other receivables linked to financial income thus related
to changes in the fair value of physical contracts for sales and purchases of electricity that were hedged using
derivatives (futures) and relate to the following periods:
• the 2013 business year in the amount of EUR 4,358,825;
• the 2014 business year in the amount of EUR 3,472,907; and
• the 2015 business year in the amount of EUR 396,585
in the total amount of EUR 8,228,317. The effect of changes in the fair value of physical contracts for sales and
purchases of electricity were offset in the income statement against changes in the fair value of associated
derivatives in the amount of EUR 8,496,365. The net effect in the amount of EUR 268,048 was recognized in other
expenses.
Age structure and changes in the impairment of receivables
Aging of receivables

Gross amount

Amounts in €

Not past due
Past due up to 90 days
Past due from 91 to 180 days
Past due from 181 to 360 days
More than one year
Total

Impairment

Gross amount

31/12/2012

Impairment

31/12/2011

132,510,372
26,201,401
346,612
478,678
466,852

0
78,796
46,570
84,286
439,894

119,190,952
29,162,144
349,407
874,342
637,324

0
100,492
233,300
424,345
617,989

160,003,915

649,546

150,214,169

1,376,126

The Company recorded impairments of receivables in the amount of EUR 649,546, including EUR 358,178 for
receivables from debtors against which the Company initiated court proceedings in order to collect debt, or
against which bankruptcy or liquidation proceedings were initiated in 2012. The remaining revalued receivables
relate to outstanding receivables in the amount of EUR 291,368, which will probably not be recovered in full due
to the debtor’s insolvency.
Impairments of receivables are assessed individually.
Impaired trade receivables accounted for 0.41% of all current operating receivables, a decrease on the previous
year, as a portion of the receivables were written off and charged to previously created impairments.
Movement in impairments of receivables
Amounts in €

Impairment
2012

2011

Opening balance at 01/01
Increase in impairments
Decrease in impairments
Write downs of receivables

1,376,127
280,836
-128,274
-879,143

577,284
1,006,393
-207,551
0

Closing balance at 31/12

649,546

1,376,126
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Disclosure 7: Advances and other assets
Advances and other assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Advances paid
Short-term deferred costs and/or expenses
Short-term accrued revenue

6,152,214
1,757,728
24,358,954

2,338,176
2,123,764
14,227,547

Total advances and other assets

32,268,896

18,689,487

Amounts in €

Advances of EUR 6,152,214 paid by the Company include a deposit paid for the purchase of cross-border transfer
capacities in the amount of EUR 4,125,235, advances for electricity purchases in the amount of EUR 1,989,303, and
other smaller purchases of goods and services.
Short-term deferred costs and expenses in the amount of EUR 1,757,728 include expenses for cross-border transfer
capacities in the amount of EUR 1,405,703 for the electricity supplied in the first quarter of 2013, maintenance
costs associated with property, plant, equipment and intangible assets, accrued bank fees, costs of accessing
databases for electricity trading purposes, and other deferred expenses for the 2013 business year.
Accrued revenues in the amount of EUR 24,358,954 include revenues from customers whose electricity and
natural gas purchases in the amount of EUR 23,216,509 will be invoiced in 2013 in accordance with contractual
provisions, and accrued revenues from financial transactions in the amount of EUR 1,142,445.

Disclosure 8: Financial investments and loans
Loans

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Loans to subsidiaries
Loans to others
Current interest receivables

3,620,000
2,000,000
23,943

8,250,000
0
56,643

Total current investments and loans

5,643,943

8,306,643

Amounts in €

A loan in the amount of EUR 3,620,000 was granted to the subsidiary GEN-I Sofia SpLLC. The interest rate on
loans granted is set in accordance with the Rules on the recognized rate of interest for associates. Loans to others
comprise a loan to a subordinated company with an annual interest rate of 3.5%.

Disclosure 9: Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

11,768,342
6,562,111
149

8,038,597
7,318,020
350

18,330,602

15,356,967

Amounts in €

Cash in banks
Call deposits
Cash in hand
Total

Cash and cash equivalents include bank account balances, cash in hand and call deposits.
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Disclosure 10: Share capital and reserves
Share capital comprises the owners’ cash contributions in the amount of EUR 15,877,610.
Reserves
Reserves

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

4,000,000
1,587,761
-4,655,609

0
1,587,761
8,069,930

932,152

9,657,691

Amounts in €

Share premium
Legal reserve
Fair value reserve
Total

In 2011, the Company achieved the legally defined threshold of 10% of share capital for legal reserves, the amount
of which remained unchanged. The balance of the share premium account in the amount of EUR 4,000,000
comprised subsequent payments by the owners.
At the end of 2012, hedging reserves were negative in the amount of EUR 4,655,609 EUR and related to:
a) cash flow hedges from standardized forward contracts for hedging against electricity price fluctuations for:
• the 2013 business year in the negative amount of EUR 4,376,172
• the 2014 business year in the negative amount of EUR 847,599
• the 2015 business year in the negative amount of EUR 376,846.
b) cash flow hedges from non-standardized forward contracts for hedging against exchange rate fluctuations for:
• the 2013 business year in the negative amount of EUR 9,060
• the 2014 business year in the amount of EUR 510
• reduced by deferred taxes in the amount of EUR 953,558.
Retained earnings
Retained earnings

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

14,235,272
10,392,794

8,127,345
4,284,246

24,628,066

12,411,591

Amounts in €

Net profit or loss for the period
Retained net profit or loss
Total

Allocation of undistributed profit from 2011
In accordance with a decision of the general meeting of shareholders held in June 2012, the Company paid out
EUR 2,000,000 of its net profit from the previous year, which totaled EUR 12,411,591 EUR, to its two shareholders.
The remaining profit was not distributed.
Distributable profit
The Company generated a net profit of EUR 14,235,272 during the 2012 business year. Retained profit was reduced
by EUR 18,797 in 2012 due to a correction for the 2011 business year, and stood at EUR 10,392,794 on December 31,
2012. The Company’s distributable profit thus amounted to EUR 24,628,066 on December 31, 2012.
In accordance with Article 20 of the Memorandum of Association and Article 494 of the Companies Act (ZGD1), the Company’s Management Board will propose that the general meeting of shareholders distribute EUR
2,800,000 of GEN-I, d.o.o.’s distributable profit in the total amount of EUR 24,628,066 to the Company’s owners
as follows:
• 50% or EUR 1,400,000 to IG energetski sistemi d.o.o., and
• 50% or EUR 1,400,000 to GEN energija d.o.o.
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Disclosure 11: Loans
Non-current loans and borrowings

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Amounts in €

Secured bank loans

6,000,000

0

Total non-current loans and borrowings

6,000,000

0

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Borrowings from subsidiaries
Secured bank loans
Current interest payable

0
10,000,000
36,457

5,199,980
14,000,000
57,818

Total current financial liabilities

10,036,457

19,257,798

Current loans and borrowings
Amounts in €

Loans received were recognized at fair value less acquisition costs. At the reporting date, they were measured at
amortized cost less principal payments, taking into account acquisition costs, discounts and premiums.

Disclosure 12: Cost and maturity of loans
At the reporting date, the Company’s liabilities from long-term and short-term loans totaled EUR 6,000,000 and
EUR 10,000,000, respectively. Loans from Slovenian commercial banks were secured with bills of exchange.
One long-term loan bears a variable interest rate tied to the 3-month EURIBOR with a mark-up of 3%. The final
loan installment is due in 2014.
Short-term loans comprise two loans, the first bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.1% and a revolving loan bearing a
variable interest rate tied to the 3-month EURIBOR with a mark-up of 3%.
The loans are secured solely by bills of exchange.
Interest expenses for long-term, short-term and revolving loans from domestic commercial banks amounted to
EUR 1,465,217, while a loan received from a subsidiary in the amount of EUR 13,356 had been repaid by the end of
2012. The Company’s interest payables as at December 31, 2012 amounted to EUR 36,457.
New loans raised at banks during the business year totaled EUR 14,000,000, while loans totaling EUR 18,000,000
were repaid. New loans from subsidiaries were also received in the amount of EUR 4,900,000, while loans totaling
EUR 10,100,000 million were repaid.

Disclosure 13: Other financial liabilities
Other non-current financial liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Amounts in €

Non-current finance lease liabilities

168,941

0

Total non-current financial liabilities

168,941

0

The Company’s other financial liabilities comprise the long-term portion of financial leases for vehicles.

Disclosure 14: Non-current provisions
The Company created provisions for severance payments and long-service bonuses based on the current value
of its liabilities to employees.
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Their amount was determined based on an actuarial calculation of future payments to each employee, taking into
account the costs of severance payments upon retirement and the costs of all estimated long-service bonuses
until the day of retirement. The chosen discount interest rate was 4.60% p.a., which was the return on 10-year
gilt-edged corporate bonds in the euro area at the end of November 2012, plus a local risk premium.
Provisions

Provisions for severance payments and
long-service bonuses

Amounts in €

Opening balance at 01/01
Provisions made during the period
Provisions used during the period
Closing balance at 31/12

2012

2011

94,281
109,660
-17,784

75,275
21,430
-2,423

186,157

94,281

Disclosure 15: Deferred taxes
Deferred taxes relating to:

Receivables

Liabilities

Amounts in €

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

126,618
953,558

96,848
0

0
0

0
-2,017,483

126,618
953,558

96,848
-2,017,483

22,568

16,956

0

0

22,568

16,956

1,102,745

113,804

0

-2,017,483

Intangible assets
Derivatives
Provisions for severance payments and longservice bonuses
Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Net effect

1,102,745 -1,903,679

Deferred tax assets that effect the Company’s operating results are recognized in the income statement. In
2012, the Company recorded an increase in deferred tax assets in the amount of additionally created provisions
for long-service bonuses and severance payments, for the amortization of intangible assets in cases where
amortization exceeded the amount deductible for tax purposes, and for financial instruments used in cash flow
hedging, where the effective portion of the hedge was recognized directly in other comprehensive income.
Changes in temporary differences
Changes in temporary
differences in the period
Amounts in €

Intangible assets
Derivatives
Provisions for severance
payments and long-service
bonuses
Total

31/12/ Recognized Recognized
2010
in the
in other
income comprehenstatement sive income

61,207
0

35,641
0

13,777
74,984

0
-2,017,483

31/12/ Recognized Recognized
2011
in the inin other
come state- comprehenment sive income

31/12/
2012

96,848
-2,017,483

29,771
0

0
2,971,042

126,619
953,559

3,178

16,955

5,612

0

22,567

38,819

-2,017,483 -1,903,680

35,383

2,971,042

1,102,745

Disclosure 16: Other current financial liabilities
Current financial liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Current finance lease liabilities
Derivatives

47,640
444,419

0
554,277

Total other current financial liabilities

492,059

554,277

Amounts in €

Other current financial liabilities include agreements concluded with financial institutions for the purpose of
hedging against foreign currency risks and the current portion of a finance lease.
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Disclosure 17: Current operating liabilities
Current operating liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Trade payables
Trade payables to subsidiaries

89,961,248
25,223,212

67,692,770
15,012,095

Trade payables
Other current payables to subsidiaries
Current payables to employees
Current payables to state and other institutions
Current payables to others

115,184,460
630,546
1,096,741
9,065,963
301,341

82,704,865
0
839,497
11,634,206
171,491

Other payables
Total operating liabilities

11,094,591
126,279,051

12,645,194
95,350,059

Amounts in €

Current trade payables mainly comprise current liabilities to suppliers of current assets, electricity and electricityrelated variable costs.
Current trade payables to subsidiaries include liabilities for electricity purchased and services rendered.
Other current liabilities to subsidiaries include liabilities from unpaid capital in the newly established subsidiary
GEN-I Istanbul Ltd., which will be paid up within three years from the date of establishment.
Current payables to employees comprise liabilities for December salaries and other employee earnings.
Current liabilities to state and other institutions and other current liabilities comprise liabilities for VAT payments,
excise duties, health and pension contributions for December salaries, and contributions for other employee
earnings payable by the employer.
Disclosure 18: Advances payable and other current operating liabilities
Advances payable and other current liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Current advances payable
Accrued costs and expenses
Deferred revenue

134,323
37,977,859
34,305

2,117
39,487,894
1,211,697

Accrued costs and deferred revenue
Advances payable and other current liabilities

38,012,164
38,146,487

40,699,591
40,701,708

Amounts in €

Current operating liabilities from accrued costs and expenses relate to accrued costs and expenses in the
amount of EUR 37,977,859, which were taken into account in the compilation of the financial statements based
on contracts signed with business partners in 2012, but for which the Company had not received invoices by the
time the financial statements were prepared.

Disclosure 19: Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

78,242,058
28,474,613
3,840,330

65,806,878
37,470,041
9,590,748

110,557,002

112,867,667

Amounts in €

Guarantees and securities – other
Guarantees and securities – subsidiaries operating abroad
Other off-balance-sheet liabilities
Total

Bank guarantees and securities include payment guarantees, performance guarantees, and tender guarantees.
Securities issued to subsidiaries and other contingent liabilities relate to securities for timely payment.
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In addition to contingent liabilities, the Company recorded receivables from guarantees and securities received
and other contingent receivables in the amount of EUR 5,505,378. These primarily included securities for timely
and reliable payment.

Disclosure 20: Classification of financial instruments and fair values
Fair values

Note

Amounts in €

Assets carried at fair value
Interests in subsidiaries
Total
Assets carried at amortized cost
Non-current financial receivables
Non-current operating receivables
Short-term loans
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total
Liabilities carried at fair value
Derivatives

31/12/2012
Carrying
amount

3

5
5
8
6
9

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

3,163,519

3,163,519

2,038,954

2,038,954

3,163,519

3,163,519

2,038,954

2,038,954

53,117
219,710
5,643,943
159,354,369
18,330,602

53,117
219,710
5,643,943
159,354,369
18,330,602

40,435
183,933
8,306,643
148,838,043
15,356,967

40,435
183,933
8,306,643
148,838,043
15,356,967

183,601,741

183,601,741

172,726,021

172,726,021

-444,419

-444,419

-554,277

-554,277

-444,419

-444,419

-554,277

-554,277

-16,000,000
-36,457
-216,581
0
-126,279,051

-16,000,000
-36,457
-216,581
0
-126,279,051

-14,000,000
-57,818
0
-5,199,980
-95,350,059

-14,000,000
-57,818
0
-5,199,980
-95,350,059

Total

-142,532,089

-142,532,089

-114,607,857

-114,607,857

Fair value hierarchy 31/12/2012

Level 2

Total
Liabilities carried at amortized cost
Secured bank loans
Other financial liabilities
Liabilities from leasing
Borrowings from subsidiaries
Operating liabilities

16

31/12/2011

Fair
value

11
11
11
11
17

Level 3

Total

Amounts in €

Assets at fair value
Interests in subsidiaries

0

3,163,519

3,163,519

0

3,163,519

3,163,519

Total
Liabilities at fair value
Derivatives

-444,419

0

-444,419

Total

-444,419

0

-444,419

Fair value hierarchy 31/12/2011

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Amounts in €

Assets at fair value
Interests in subsidiaries

0

2,038,954

2,038,954

0

2,038,954

2,038,954

Total
Liabilities at fair value
Derivatives

-554,277

0

-554,277

Total

-554,277

0

-554,277
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Disclosure 21: Revenues
Sales revenue
Amounts in €

Revenues from the sale of goods and materials
Revenues from the sale of services
Rental income
Total

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

1,474,094,358
13,474,949
2,250

977,907,371
4,528,445
9,697

1,487,571,557

982,445,513

Revenues from the sale of goods in the amount of EUR 1,474,094,358 comprise revenues from the sales of
electricity and natural gas.
Revenues from services, primarily those generated on foreign markets, included access to the electricity system
in the amount of EUR 9,870,038, management fees in the amount of EUR 1,286,795, and other services associated
with electricity sales and purchases in the amount of EUR 1,964,094.
Revenues generated in slovenia or abroad
Amounts in €

Slovenia

Abroad

Total

Generated from 01/01 to 31/12/2012

Revenues from the sale of goods and materials
Revenues from the sale of services
Rental income

283,312,200
219,076
2,250

1,190,782,158
13,255,873
0

1,474,094,358
13,474,949
2,250

Total

283,533,526

1,204,038,031

1,487,571,557

In 2012, revenues from goods sold in Slovenia accounted for 19.1% of total revenues, while revenues from goods
sold on foreign markets accounted for 80.9% of all revenues.
Other operating revenues
Amounts in €

Gain on the sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Other operating revenues
Revenues from subsidies and government grants
Total

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

3,602
8,155,512
44,577

1,503
280,382
105,671

8,203,691

387,556

The majority of other operating revenues is accounted for by gains from the ineffective portion of cash flow
hedging in the amount EUR 7,567,323, while the remainder is accounted for by the reversal of over-accrued
expenses in the previous year, damages received and other revenues.
Revenues from subsidies, government grants and compensation included subsidies from the Slovenian
Technology Agency (TIA) for projects carried out by young researchers, and grants in the form of property, plant
and equipment.

Disclosure 22: Cost of goods, materials and services
Cost of goods sold
Amounts in €

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Cost of goods sold

1,471,194,963

963,991,372

Total

1,471,194,963

963,991,372

The historical cost of goods sold in 2012 was up 52.6% on 2011. The cost includes the purchase price of electricity
and natural gas and associated costs.
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Cost of materials

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

89,117
32,864
180,567
6,372

51,508
32,812
121,035
9,410

308,920

214,765

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Maintenance
Rents
Bank charges and other fees
Intellectual services
Contractual works, meeting attendance fees and student work
Advertising, sales promotion and public relations
Sponsorships
Insurance
Entertainment
Costs of employees’ business travels
Telecommunication
Cleaning, security and public utility services
Training
IT costs
Other services

476,588
803,963
1,330,155
997,745
419,701
423,469
153,345
25,747
34,953
120,757
475,315
62,347
167,530
217,183
487,318

721,599
699,893
1,014,025
526,742
362,069
218,555
179,771
4,654
29,893
138,796
313,084
26,561
94,024
132,789
461,693

Total

6,196,116

4,924,148

Amounts in €

Cost of energy
Materials and spare parts
Office supplies
Other cost of materials
Total
Cost of services
Amounts in €

Maintenance costs in the amount of EUR 476,588 mainly relate to the maintenance of IT equipment.
Costs of rent, which totaled EUR 803,963, comprise the lease of commercial premises in the amount of EUR
634,359, while the remainder relates to the lease of computer equipment and other leases such as the lease of
vehicles, warehouse and parking space and conference rooms.
The costs of intellectual services amounted to EUR 997,745 and included human resource management services
(consulting, selection of candidates), legal and notary fees, auditing and accounting services, business and tax
consultancy services, and IT and software engineering services.
Sponsorships costs, mainly for sporting events, amounted to EUR 153,345 in 2012.
Costs of other services in the total amount of EUR 487,318 include the costs of accessing databases for electricity
trading purposes, transportation services and other services of lesser value.
The Company signed an agreement on the auditing of its financial statements for 2012 with the auditors of
KPMG Slovenija, podjetje za revidiranje, d.o.o. in the amount of EUR 16,700, while other auditing costs totaled
EUR 1,983.
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease

2012

2011

610,235
1,434,612
860,767

552,559
1,413,327
1,288,243

2,905,614

3,254,129

Amounts in €

< 1 year
> 1 — < 5 let
> 5 years
Total
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Liabilities from long-term contracts signed for the lease of commercial premises in Ljubljana, Nova Gorica and
Krško are expected to amount to at least EUR 2,905,614 in the coming years.
Disclosure 23: Labor costs
Labor cost

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Wages and salaries
Social security contributions
Other labor costs

5,153,945
842,768
525,714

4,352,446
715,859
594,513

Total

6,522,427

5,662,818

Amounts in €

Labor costs include wages and salaries, social security contributions, additional pension insurance, and other
labor costs (allowances for meal expenses, transportation costs to and from work, annual leave pay, severance
payments, long-service bonuses, etc.).
In 2012, the Company calculated labor costs in accordance with the Collective Agreement for the Slovene
Electricity Industry, the Company’s current job classification and individual employment contracts.
Other labor costs include allowances for transportation to and from work and meal allowances, annual leave pay,
additional pension insurance and severance payments and long-service bonuses.

Disclosure 24: Amortization and depreciation
Amortization and depreciation
Amounts in €

Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Total

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

619,117
716,578

467,629
626,235

1,335,695

1,093,864

Amortization/depreciation is calculated using the straight-line depreciation method at rates that are adjusted
to the useful lives of individual assets, while investments in fixed assets owned by third parties are depreciated
over the term of the lease.

Disclosure 25: Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Amounts in €

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

113,169

51,863

Taxes and levies
Loss on the sale of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets,
impairment of property, plant and equipment
Donations
Creation of provisions
Contributions to political organizations, syndicates, etc.
Other operating expenses

1,731

794

36,988
109,660
6,400
5,877,987

10,501
21,430
8,000
782,036

Total

6,145,935

874,624

Other operating expenses totaling EUR 5,877,987 comprise the ineffective portion of cash flow and fair value
hedging based on derivatives in the amount of EUR 4,395,502, expenses not recognized for tax purposes in the
amount of EUR 1,107,989, and membership fees, damages, fines and scholarships paid to students in the amount
of EUR 374,497.
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Donations

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

13,101
13,937
5,000
450
3,800
200
500

1,800
1,201
0
0
3,000
4,500
0

36,988

10,501

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2012

Generated from
01/01 to 31/12/2011

Dividend income from interests in subsidiaries
Interest income
Gain on the disposal of interests in associates
Net gain from the settlement of financial instruments
Other financial income
Collected written-off receivables and reversal of write-offs

10,701,486
918,060
243,639
2,520,571
11,882
249,796

4,964,697
355,974
0
985,944
9,767
207,551

Financial income
Interest expense
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Change in fair value of derivatives
Net foreign exchange loss
Other financial costs

14,645,434
-1,478,573
-668,374
-1,034,105
-451,797
-43,241

6,523,933
-1,111,203
-1,019,175
-993,950
-223,059
-188

Financial costs
Profit or loss from financing

-3,676,090
10,969,344

-3,347,575
3,176,358

Amounts in €

Humanitarian purposes
Charitable purposes
Scientific purposes
Educational purposes
Sports purposes
Cultural purposes
Environmental purposes
Total

Disclosure 26: Profit or loss from financing
Profit or loss from financing
Amounts in €

The following subsidiaries paid out dividends in 2012: GEN-I Zagreb, d.o.o. in the amount of EUR 314,319, GEN-I,
d.o.o., Belgrade in the amount of EUR 1,079,454, GEN-I, d.o.o., Sarajevo in the amount of EUR 303,170, GEN-I, dooel
Skopje in the amount of EUR 1,932,757, S.C. GEN-I Bucharest S.R.L. in the amount of EUR 1,355,596, GEN-I Athens
SMLLC in the amount of EUR 442,697, GEN-I Sofia SpLLC in the amount of EUR 684,642, GEN-I Tirana Sh.p.k. in the
amount of EUR 4,574,130 and Gen-I Vienna GmbH in the amount of EUR 14,721.
Interest income totaled EUR 918,060 and included default interest, interest from loans granted, and interest from
deposits and positive bank balances.
Gains on the disposal of interests in associates comprise the sale of Enerve, d.o.o.
Net gains from the settlement of financial instruments totaled EUR 2,520,571 in 2012.
Interest expenses included interest on loans received from banks and subsidiaries in the total amount of EUR
1,478,573.
The net effect of exchange rate differences was a loss of EUR 451,797.
Write downs relate to impairments and write downs of receivables due to customers’ inability to settle their
obligations.
Each year, the Company creates revaluation adjustments due to impairment in the amount of the estimated
loss from operating and other receivables. Last year, revenues from the reversal of impairments for deductible
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VAT and the payment of written-off receivables amounted to EUR 249,796, while expenses from the impairment
of receivables amounted to EUR 668,374. Of this amount, revaluation adjustments during the business year
accounted for EUR 280,836 and direct write-off of receivables for EUR 387,538.
Other financial income and costs mainly include default interest charged to customers or by suppliers, the costs
of payment reminders and enforcement orders, the result of rounding and the reversal of costs of financial
transactions from previous years.
Expenses in the amount of EUR 1,034,105 from changes in fair value relate to forward currency transactions and
changes in the fair value of forward contracts used to hedge against electricity price fluctuations that do not
meet the conditions for hedge accounting and are recognized immediately in comprehensive income.

Disclosure 27: Taxes
Taxes

2012

2011

Current tax
Deferred tax

840,648
-35,383

1,159,310
-38,820

Total

805,265

1,120,490

Amounts in €

In 2012, the Company reported income tax in the amount of EUR 840,648 and deferred tax assets in the amount
of EUR 35,383.
Deferred tax assets totaling EUR 35,383 include the amortization of intangible fixed assets not recognized for tax
purposes in the amount of EUR 29,771 and provisions for severance payments and long-service bonuses in the
amount of EUR 5,612. Income tax was calculated using an 18% tax rate applicable in 2012.
At the balance sheet date, the Company recorded a total of EUR 1,102,745 in deferred tax assets from the state,
using a tax rate of 17%.
Effective tax rate

2012

2011

15,040,536
18%
2,707,296
-2,104,270
327,210
-124,973

9,247,836
20%
1,849,567
-1,027,003
325,386
-27,459

5.35%
805,265

12.12%
1,120,490

Amounts in €

Gross profit before tax
Statutory tax rate
Income tax at statutory tax rate, prior to changes in tax base
Tax exempt income
Non-deductible expenses
Tax relief
Effective tax rate
Current and deferred income tax
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Disclosure 28: Data on related parties
Remuneration of Management Board members
Current year 2012
Remuneration of the management board
members -gross

Fixed portion
of remuneration

Variable portion of remuneration

Robert Golob, Ph.D.
Martin Novšak
Andrej Šajn, M.Sc.
Igor Koprivnikar, Ph.D.

128,729
0
0
151,010

80,000
0
0
80,000

551
2,381
2,953
1,412

14,127
23,446
27,967
2,653

223,407
25,827
30,920
235,075

Total

279,739

160,000

7,297

68,193

515,229

Fixed portion
of remuneration

Variable portion of remuneration

Refund of Other remuexpenses
neration

Total

Robert Golob, Ph.D.
Martin Novšak
Dejan Paravan, Ph.D.
Igor Koprivnikar, Ph.D.

24,000
0
103,797
107,782

80,000
0
90,327
90,314

0
3,223
0
0

16,326
15,750
7,553
7,545

120,326
18,973
201,676
205,641

Total

235,579

260,640

3,223

47,174

546,617

Amounts in €

Refund of Other remuexpenses
neration

Total

Previous year (2011)
Remuneration of the management board
members - gross
Amounts in €

Employees under individual employment agreements
Data on groups of persons

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Wages and salaries
Fringe benefits and other remuneration

1,559,795
193,412

1,243,777
40,149

Total

1,753,207

1,283,926

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Non-current receivables
Other non-current financial receivables
Non-current operating receivables
Receivables
Other current receivables
Short-term loans
Cash and cash equivalents

272,827
53,117
219,710
136,308,813
23,045,556
5,643,943
18,330,602

224,368
40,435
183,933
132,584,438
16,253,605
8,306,643
15,356,967

Total

183,874,568

172,950,389

Amounts in €

20.7. Financial instruments and risk exposure
Disclosure 29: Credit risk
Items
Amounts in €
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Receivables
Amounts in €

Domestic
Euro area countries
Other european countries
Countries of the former yugoslavia
Other regions
Total
Receivables
Amounts in €

Wholesale customers
Retail customers
End-user customers
Total

Carrying amount
2012

2011

34,172,052
35,110,110
18,561,679
21,774,745
26,690,227
136,308,813

25,076,796
31,340,059
9,065,370
40,093,907
27,008,306
132,584,438

Carrying amount
2012

2011

104,449,989
29,239,630
2,619,195

108,620,998
23,963,440
0

136,308,813

132,584,438

As described in detail in the business report, GEN-I, d.o.o. uses an active approach to managing credit risks and
financial exposure to individual business partners. Its approach is based on the consistent application of the
Company’s internal rules and procedures for identifying credit risks and assessing exposure to them, determining
the permissible limits of risk exposure, and the constant monitoring of the Company’s exposure to risks in its
dealings with individual business partners. In line with the Company’s rules, the risk-management department
analyzes the credit standing of each new trading partner and large customer that wishes to purchase electricity
from GEN-I. This risk-assessment report serves as the basis for future cooperation, enabling the Company to
define credit lines for hedging purposes and offer new partners payment and delivery terms adjusted to their
particular risk levels. When monitoring credit risks and daily credit line exposure, the Company divides individual
partners into groups according to their credit characteristics (whether it is a company or a group of companies,
trading partner, end-customer or retail customer), geographical position, industry, age structure and maturity of
receivables, financial difficulties in the past, and any breaches of contractual obligations based on the estimated
level of risk. In order to minimize risks associated with partners’ inability to settle outstanding receivables, the
Company pays particular attention to the use of appropriate financial and legal instruments when concluding
daily transactions to ensure that contractual obligations are met. These instruments are incorporated into
contractual relationships with business partners based on analyses of their credit standing and relevant risk
assessments.
Impairments of receivables and their maturity structure are described in Disclosure 6.
The Company has defined criteria for handling debtors and exposures that require more in-depth monitoring.
Such exposures and debtors are constantly verified in order to define the Company’s approach to them. The
Company has also defined criteria for handing over debtors to the department responsible for collecting disputed
receivables. If the Company finds that exposure to individual debtors can be restructured in a satisfactory
way, it drafts a restructuring plan and then monitors its execution and results. If debtors file for bankruptcy,
the Company ensures that the relevant departments and contractors are involved in the process of collecting
collateral, provided the Company’s exposure was secured.
Based on internal guidelines, the Company has defined several different impairment categories. The need for
impairment is assessed based on past experience with individual partners and future expected inflows from
these partners. Each impairment is dealt with individually, taking into account the following criteria: publicly
known cash flow problems, breaches of commercial contracts or terms, and bankruptcy or other legal procedures
that may result in loss for the Company.

132

ANNUAL REPORT GEN-I FOR BUSINESS YEAR 2012
FINANCIAL REPORT GEN-I, d.o.o.

Disclosure 30: Liquidity risk
Financial liabilities
2012

Carrying
amount

Up to 6
Months

6 - 12
Months

1-2
Years

2-5
Years

16,000,000 -16,542,613 -10,139,494
36,457
-36,457
-36,457
216,581
-216,581
-27,867
126,279,051 -126,279,051 -126,279,051

0
0
-19,774
0

-6,403,118
0
-62,391
0

0
0
-106,549
0

Amounts in €

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans
Other liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Trade and other payables

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
Outflow
444,419
Total

142,976,508

Financial liabilities
2011

Contractual cash
flows

-264,715

-162,665

-17,039

0

-143,519,121 -136,747,584

-444,419

-182,439

-6,482,549

-106,549

Carrying
amount

Contractual cash
flows

Up to 6
Months

6 - 12
Months

1-2
Years

14,000,000
5,199,980
57,818
95,350,059

-14,418,001
-5,355,818
-57,818
-95,350,059

-8,157,589
0
-57,818
-95,350,059

-6,260,412
-5,355,818
0
0

0
0
0
0

Amounts in €

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Secured bank loans
Borrowings from subsidiaries
Other liabilities
Trade and other payables
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
Outflow
Total

554,277

-554,277

-207,650

-314,855

-31,772

115,162,134

-115,735,973

-103,773,116

-11,931,085

-31,772

The liquidity of the entire GEN-I Group is managed by the parent company, which monitors and plans shortterm solvency on a daily basis, and ensures it by coordinating and planning all cash flows within the Group. At
the same time, the Company takes into account risks associated with possible late payments and poor payment
discipline, which can affect the planning of inflows and the Group’s investment activities.
The Company also constantly monitors and optimizes short-term surpluses and shortages of monetary assets. A
liquidity reserve in the form of credit lines approved by commercial banks, the diversification of financial liabilities,
constant adjustment of the maturities of liabilities and receivables and consistent collection of receivables are all
factors that facilitate the Company’s successful cash-flow management, thus ensuring its purchasing power and
reducing the level of short-term solvency risks. Thanks to the Group’s active approach to financial markets, its
good performance in the past and a stable operating cash flow, liquidity risks are within acceptable parameters
and entirely manageable.
The Company’s long-term solvency is ensured by preserving and increasing its share capital and maintaining
an appropriate financial balance. To achieve this, the Company adjusts the structure of its financial position to
match the maturity of its financial liabilities. As part of liquidity risk management activities, the Management
Board intends to further strengthen the Group’s long-term and short-term solvency and include new subsidiaries
in the liquidity monitoring system.
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Disclosure 31: Currency risk
Receivables, payables

EUR

USD

RON

Amounts in €

Trade receivables
Secured bank loans
Trade payables
Gross balance sheet exposure
Estimated forecast sales
Estimated forecast purchases
Gross exposure
Net exposure

Receivables, payables

132,672,512
-16,000,000
-111,490,018

0
0
-22

3,636,301
0
-1,965,283

0
0
-1,729,137

5,182,494
927,385,733
-904,315,399

-22
0
0

1,671,018
0
0

-1,729,137
0
0

23,070,334
28,252,828

0
-22

0
1,671,018

0
-1,729,137

EUR

USD

HRK MKD

RON

HUF

Amounts in €

Trade receivables
Secured bank loans
Trade payables
Gross balance sheet exposure
Estimated forecast sales
Estimated forecast purchases
Gross exposure
Net exposure

HUF
31/12/2012

TRY BGN
31/12/2011

128,658,066
-14,000,000
-79,547,688

0
0
-27

0
0
-2

0 3,049,940
0 876,432
0
0
0
0
-188 -2,479,749 -387,890 -288,810

0
0
-511

35,109,050
540,180,351
-526,064,003

-27
0
0

-2
0
0

-188
0
0

570,191 -387,890 587,622
0
0
0
0
0
0

-511
0
0

14,116,348
49,226,726

0
-27

0
-2

0
-188

0
0
0
570,191 -387,890 587,622

0
-511

GEN-I, d.o.o. is actively involved in establishing a suitable infrastructure for foreign currency transactions
and implementing other currency-hedging mechanisms, including forward contracts and currency clauses,
particularly on markets outside the euro area.
The Company is most exposed to currency risks when performing its core activities, i.e. trading and selling
electricity and cross-border transfer capacities. Given the scope of the Company’s operations, it is exposed to
currency risks primarily from the following currencies: the Hungarian forint (HUF), the Romanian lev (RON) and
the Turkish lira (TRY).
Currency risks are minimized by linking the selling prices of goods to the currency used by the sources that finance
the purchase of these goods. To a certain extent, currency risks between subsidiaries are “naturally” hedged
because a part of the expected inflows from individual companies is balanced out by the expected outflows in
the same currency. Derivatives are also used where necessary.
Disclosure 32: Interest-rate risk
Financial instruments
Amounts in €

Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities
Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

Carrying amount
2012

2011

5,673,117
-8,216,581

8,290,435
-13,754,257

0
0

0
0

-8,444,419

-6,000,000

The Company manages interest-rate risks by constantly assessing risk exposure and the possible effects of
changing reference interest rates (the variable part) on its costs from financing activities. It also monitors its
loan portfolio, which could be affected by a change in the relevant interest rates. As part of its risk management
activities, the Company monitors interest rate fluctuations on the domestic and foreign markets as well as on
derivatives markets. The purpose of the Company’s continuous monitoring activities and analyses is to propose
timely protective measures by balancing assets and liabilities in its statement of financial position.
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21. Events after the statement of financial
position date
Despite the adverse financial conditions on the Slovenian and global market, GEN-I, d.o.o. successfully concluded
the sale of money-market instruments (360-day commercial paper, designation GEN01) in the total nominal
amount of EUR 30 million. The purpose of the commercial paper issue is the short-term financing of the issuer’s
operations and the diversification of the base of short-term debt investors among banks and institutional
investors. The commercial paper bears an annual interest rate of 4.30%, with a maturity of February 10, 2014. The
commercial paper will be traded on the Ljubljana Stock Exchange in the bond market segment – money-market
instruments – commercial paper.
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22. Statement by the management board
The Management Board hereby approves the financial statements of GEN-I, d.o.o. for the business year that
ended on December 31, 2012, including the notes to the financial statements from page 108 of the financial
report onwards.
The Management Board certifies that all relevant accounting principles were consistently used in drafting the
Company’s financial statements. Accounting estimates were prepared according to the principles of prudence
and due diligence. The Management Board certifies that this annual report provides a true and fair picture of
GEN-I, d.o.o.’s assets and performance in 2012.
The financial statements and accompanying notes were prepared on a going concern basis and in line with the
relevant legislation and International Financial Reporting Standards.

Martin Novšak						Robert Golob, Ph.D.
Vice President of the Management Board			
President of the Management Board

Krško, February 26, 2013
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23. Certified auditor’s report
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24. List of disclosures
Disclosure 1: Property, plant and equipment
Disclosure 2: Intangible assets
Disclosure 3: Investments in subsidiaries
Disclosure 4: Investments in associates
Disclosure 5: Non-current receivables and loans
Disclosure 6: Operating receivables
Disclosure 7: Advances and other assets
Disclosure 8: Financial investments and loans
Disclosure 9: Cash and cash equivalents
Disclosure 10: Share capital and reserves
Disclosure 11: Loans
Disclosure 12: Cost and maturity of loans
Disclosure 13: Other financial liabilities
Disclosure 14: Non-current provisions
Disclosure 15: Deferred taxes
Disclosure 16: Other current financial liabilities
Disclosure 17: Current operating liabilities
Disclosure 18: Advances payable and other current operating liabilities
Disclosure 19: Contingent liabilities
Disclosure 20: Classification of financial instruments and fair values
Disclosure 21: Revenues
Disclosure 22: Cost of goods, materials and services
Disclosure 23: Labor costs
Disclosure 24: Amortization and depreciation
Disclosure 25: Other operating expenses
Disclosure 26: Profit or loss from financing
Disclosure 27: Taxes
Disclosure 28: Data on related parties
Disclosure 29: Credit risk
Disclosure 30: Liquidity risk
Disclosure 31: Currency risk
Disclosure 32: Interest-rate risk
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